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PATRICK SWAIN 
COUNTY AUDITOR 

(409) 835-8500 

March 16,20 17 

Citizens of Jefferson County, Texas: 

Honorable DistIict Judges: 
Donald Floyd, Presiding Judge, 172nd DistJict Court 
Jolm Stevens, Jr., Judge, Criminal District Court 
Kent Walston, Judge, 58th District COUll 
Justin Sanderson, 60th Disttict COUll 
Baylor WOllham, Judge, 136th District COUll 
Raquel West, Judge, 252nd Disttict COUli 
Randy Shelton, Judge, 279th DislIict CO Ull 
Larry Thome, Judge, 317th District COUll 

Honorable C01llll1i.ssioners' COUli: 
JeffBranick, County Judge 
Eddie Amold, Commissioner, Precinct No. I 
Brent Weaver, Commissioner, Precinct No.2 
Michael "Shane" Sinegal, Commissioner, Precinct No.3 
Everette "Bo" Alfred, Commissioner, Precinct No.4 

1149 PEARL ST - 7TH FLOOR 
BEAUMONT, TEXAS 77701 

The County Auditor 's Office ("the Auditor's Office") is pleased to present the Comprei1ensive 
Ammal Financial RepOli ("CAFR") of Jefferson County, Texas (the "County") for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2016. This report is submitted in accordance with Section 114.025 of the 
Texas Local Government Code and has been prepared by the County Auditor's staff. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information 
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of intemal controls that it has 
established for this purpose. Because the cost ofintemal controls should not exceed anticipated 
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather thall absolute, assurance that the flllanci al 
statements are free of any matelial misstatements. 

Pattillo, Brown, & Hill , LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified ("clean") 
opinion on the County's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 20 16. The 
independent auditors' report is located at the front of the financial section of this repOll . 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors' 
report and provides a naJTative introduction, overview, and aJlalysis ofthe basic financial statements. 
MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

Jefferson County was created in 1836 and organized in 1837 as one of the original counties of the 
Republic of Texas. It is a 954 square mile county that is located on the upper Texas Coast and is a 
component ofthe Beaumont-POli Arthur-Orange Metropolitan Statistical Area. According to the 
U.S. DepaJiment of Commerce-Bureau of the Census, the 2015 population of the County was 
252,235. The County is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located 
within its boundaries. 

Jefferson County is a political subdivision ofthe State of Texas and the Commissioners' COUli is the 
governing body of the County. It is composed of the County Judge elected from the County at large, 
and four Commissioners, each elected from a separate precinct, all elected for four-year terms. The 
County Judge is the presiding officer of the Commissioners' COUli. 

TIle County (primary government) solely or in cooperation with other local governmental entities 
provides a full range of services authorized by the Texas Constitution and Statutes that includes 
construction and maintenance of roads and bridges, health aJ1d housing services, assistance to 
indigents, juvenile and adult justice programs, economic development, recreation and cultural 
emiclunent, an airpOli, an entertainment complex, and general administration. 

The combined finaJ1cial statements ofthe County as a financial reporting entity report all activities, 
organizations, and functions of the County, both as the primary government and its legally separate 
components units for which (1) the elected officials of the County are financially accountable and/or 
(2) exclusion of component units activities would cause the County's financial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. The County's component units have been repOlied as blended with the 
County as the primary government or as discrete (separate) component unit, as appropriate. Criteria 
used by the County for including activities in preparing these financial statements are in confonnity 
with GASB 14, The Financial Reporting Entity aJ1d GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations are Component Units. Based on the requirements ofthese accounting standards, the 
County reports the Southeast Texas Govennnent Employee Benefits Pool as a blended component 
unit. 

The County is required to adopt a final budget no later than close of the fiscal year. TItis aruma] 
budget serves as the foundation for the County's finaJ1cial plaJ111ing and contro1. The level of 
budgetary control is the department within the individual funds. The County maintains an 
encumbrance accounting system as a method to accomplish budgetary contro1. DepaJiment heads 
may transfer resources within a department as needed. Transfers between depaJiments, however, 
require approval by Commissioners' Court. 
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FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITIONS 

Local economy 

The information presented in the frnancial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the County 
operates 

The area is served by deep-water ports located at Beaumont, Port Arthur, Orange, and Sabine Pass. 
The Sabine Neches Watelwayprovides deep-water access to ocean-going vessels, which are served 
by public ports within the County. The waterway is the 3m largest POlt in the US by tonnage. 

The County is traversed by Interstate Highway 10, US Highways 90 and 69-96-287, State Highways 
73,87, and 105 and three farm-to-market roads. Rail and motor freight carriers also provide freight 
service to the County. The Jack Brooks Regional Airport located between Beaumont and Port 
Arthur provides passenger and freight service and is cUlTently serviced by one commuter passenger 
air carrier. 

The economy of the County is based primarily on petroleum refining; the production and processing 
of petrochemicals, bio-fuels and other chemicals; the fabrication of steel and steel products; shipping 
activity; the manufacture of wood, pulp, food and feed products; agriculture; and health care 
services. The County continues to diversify its economic base as evidenced by the increase of jobs in 
the services and govemment sectors . The County is also home to the largest military off-load port in 
the world. 

Several large projects are in construction, pennitting, and development for the area and the County 
continues to work with other taxing entities to create a business environment conducive to this 
growth. These include such notables as Lucite, Air Products, Vitol, Golden Pass Products, OCI, 
Exxon Mobil , Golden Pass LNG, and Sempra Energy. 

Petrochemical expansions at the Motiva, Total, and Valero facilities located in Jefferson County 
represent approximately Sl5 billion in project improvements. In addition, hundreds of millions of 
dollars are being spent on tenninal and pipeline facilities to SUppOlt these projects. Construction of 
the Trans-Canada Keystone XL pipeline which wi ll deliver Canadian tar sands crude to Jefferson 
County and help in relieving our dependence on oil from more politically volatile regions is awaiting 
federal pennit approval. In addition, recent rail tenninal facility expansions and new construction 
has significantly increased the transportation of Canadi an tar sands oil and bitumen to our area for 
processing by area refineries. 

Cheniere, one of two companies with Liquefied Natural Gas Tenniuals on the border of the 
Texas/Louisiana Coast, is completing construction of a $10 billion liquefaction facility. Golden Pass 
LNG opened their tenninal in mid-2011. With their opening, our ship channel is now home to over 
40% of the nation's LNG capacity. Golden Pass LNG has filed with federal authorities for permits 
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allowing it to build a $1 0 billion gas liquefaction facility in Jefferson County, as has Sempra Energy. 
It is anticipated that these permits should move through the approval process more expeditiously 
now that fanner Texas governor Rick Perry has been confinned as the new Secretary of Energy. 

The County has participated in a study by the u.s. Army Corps of Engineers into the feasibility of 
d$(Openingthe.Sa9ine-Nech~s \,{<iteIJ'lJ'Y- Ihis will allgYf.pOlis in .south~~st Te;.:as,tP§J.hirdJargest 
in the nation, to accommodate newer deep draft vessels and thus remain competitive with other ports 
on the Gulf Coast. Recently, the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers issued their "Chiefs RepOli" which 
paves the way for federal funding of this project. The U S House and Senate recently passed 
legislation which was signed by the President authorizing tlle construction of tlle waterway 
improvements at a cost in excess of $1 billion. Congressional appropriations for the project are 
expected shortly. 

The County continues to work with indusny leaders, tile Texas Workforce COlmnission, Lamar 
Institute of Teclmology, Lamar University and non-profIt groups to supply a workforce able to 
handle the growing labor needs of the County. This is especially critical given the interest of the 
intemational community in locating facilities in our county. 

The resurgence in U. S. oil and gas exploration and production has made the County the place of 
choice for those industrial sectors seeking to exploit opportunities to profit fi·om historically low 
pliced energy cOlmnodities. Our excellent water bound, rail, highway, and pipeline infrastructure, 
the readily availability of water resources, and our business-fiiendly governmental environment, 
coupled with a lower than average tax environment, has caught the attention of energy and 
manufacturing companies worldwide. As a result, the County fully expects a significant increase in 
indusnial and cOlmnercial ad valorem values over the next ten years. 

Long-term financial planning & relevant financial policies 

COlmnissioners' Court continues to follow their policy guideline for budgetmy and pLnming 
purposes of building and maintaining an unassigned fund balance in the general fund of at least 15% 
of total general fund expenditures and transfers. The County ended the fiscal year with an 
unassigned fund balance of29.4% of total general fund expenditures and transfers. Tbis falls witlUn 
the policy guidelines. 

Major Initiatives 

The Commissioners' Court set the property t<L,{ rate at $ .365 per $100 of assessed property valuation 
to provide funds for services and debt service for fiscal year 2016. Budget initiatives for fiscal year 
2016 included: 

• Maintained the same propeli)' tax rate which was 2.9% below tile effective tax rate. 

• Provided a 2% salary increase for all employees. 
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• Commissioners' Court would utilize previously transfelTed funds to complete outstanding 
capital projects. 

• Maintain capital expenditures for durable goods to replace needed equipment to necessary 
levels. 

AWARDS 

The Government Finance Officers Assoc iation of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Cert ificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Jefferson County, Texas for its 
comprehensive annual financi al report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30,2015. This 
was the eighteenth consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive aJl1lual financial repmi. This report must satisfY 
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requi.rements and we are submitting it to 
GFOA to detennine its eligib ili ty for another celii fi cate. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation ofthis report could not have been accomplished without the dedicated services of 
the staff of the COUllty Auditor's Office. I express my sincere appreciation to all the members of this 
office who contributed to its preparation. Also, I express my appreciation to the members of the 
Commissioners ' COUli, their staff, and all other COUl1ty offi cials and employees who have given their 
support in planning and conducting the financial operations of Jefferson County, Texas in a 
responsible maImer. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial repmi is designed to provide an overview of the County's finances for individuals 
who are interested in this infonnation. Questions concerning any of the data provided in this 
report or requests for additional infOlmation should be addressed to the County Auditor's Office, 
1149 Pearl Street 7th Floor, Beaumont, Texas 77701. 
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Patrick Swain, C .. A. 
COUllty Auditor 
Jefferson County, Texas 



VI 



Government Finance Officers Association 

Certificate of 
Achievement 

for Excellence 
in Financial 
Reporting 

Presented to 

Jefferson County 

Texas 

For its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report 

for the Fiscal Year Ended 

September 30, 2015 

Executi Ve Director/CEO 

VII 



VIII 



ORGAN IZATION CHART OF JEFFERSON COlJNT Y 
As or Septcmber 30, 2016 

r-- ,J-EFF I':R.50N C O I I:";"I"!"' CI 'IJZI~:~~S-
- I 

I I 
I 

C l'ilnilllli Con~ t ;lbl H. Co mnli~ioncr~ Court I CO""O 
UI'lric l Tal Pet. 1 • White Judge· Branlck Oiomi: r I Co urlS lit 

Auurnc)" AS5c. tr, r Pet. 2 • Bates I :r~~hurc: 1 Pet. 1 - Arnol d Cuuru U1W 

Wortham Co!t.,:~.o ' Pet. 4 - Trahan Pet. 2 - Weaver 

I Ge'" Pet. 6 - Baker Pet. 3 - Sinegal 
Pet. 7 - Greenway Pet. 4 - Alfrod 

Count} Pet H _ Coli;"' ,----- I I 
Clerk J LlS li t'ti Civil 1 C,;m;", ' "I Crilllili al I Civil 

Guidry Shcri~! I I 0'" ,;" I of tb ~ 58th - Walston Criminal - Stevens NO. 2· Crenshaw No 1 - EddlC 

Woods CI~r~ I]<e" ~ i: 60th - Sanderson 252nd - West No. 3 - C. Woods 
I Sm"" Pet. 1 PI. , • Dollinger 136th - Shuffield 

cfr] I Pet. 1 PI . 2 - Beaulieu 172nd - Floyd 

~ Pet. 2 - DeRouen 317th - Thorne 
1 (·· ...... °"":1 L,b Pet. 4 - Chess on 279th - Shelton 1l<i1l Iiotn· i~rul1 

Pet. 6 • JOnes J~""'M 

I C;,II I 
No.1· Eddins 

Pet. 7 . Burnett I -' 
Pet. 8 · Gillam CUlI l l l ,)' 

>< 
.\wHI{jt' 

~8~ 
Swain 

.Juvenile' purlasin i ~ ~ ' '< 
(lj ord BOr rd 1< '+ I Elecled I ~ "'"'" .. ~ 

JUY91J1", ,·.m~"", I * 1f I AI'lIOl,udl Prubllllmi Az.ull Jiex~S 'w, Clark 
iHle'[ltiOII 

~ Cockrell 

I I I I I 
IlliL j I V"""", E'''''''''''''''I 

1 
S,,..i,, 1 BlIiWillV I. 1I~I~ril~~11 I tlJll1r!;" lll~: 11 """,d. ~ 

M,\llu:Nuof:.In Scrvkl!l> Clllili roi Ce'lIIc r i\ l jjlllll~~;n t" I IUIC.hh!e'rUI' I Clllmulbl.~1 M ... II"~C! UI<!I' 1 1\ IIlI Illl! ~l1Ir."1 

1'"., •• n Offino Conlin Z4l lita Kni t Rao McMahen F0 4lntain MeMahen 

: Guest ~ (.:uu rr 

l MU""'J I 110'.'" ~ I MII~II: 

I 
Airl lilln I :I II '" 

RCS(Iun:~ A~ricu II VI' .u Gist Rupp \\ d run" 

Eriek"" n [ u cJ1sJQU ~ 

1 
Non. "I Sen'/('. 

1·,.. ~tlli lllllJ r Garlick 

I, 0. .. ,I Ad visory 

I·r~i .... 0'.""" I GOlln] 

H d c'.lIn RdOIIIIlOJl I 
Hawtnorn 

.. 



ELECTED OFFICIALS 
As of September 30, 2016 

COMMISSIONERS' COURT 

County Judge 

Commissioner Pel. 

Corr~~issioneI..p.cl. 2 
Commissioner Pet. 3 

Commissioner PeL 4 

SHERIFF 

TAX ASSESSOR - COLLECTOR 

DISTRICT CLERK 

COUNTY CLERK 

COUNTY TREASURER 

JUSTICES OF THE PEACE 

J.P. Pet. I PI. 
J.P. Pet. I PI. 2 

J.P PeL 2 

J.P. Pet. 4 

J.P. Pet. 6 

J.P. Pel. 7 
J.P. Pet. 8 

CONSTABLES 

Constable Pet. I 

Constable Pet. 2 
Constable Pet 4 

Constable Pet. 6 
Constable Pel. 7 
Constable Pet. 8 

COUNTY COURTS AT LAW 

County Court at Law No. I 

County Court at Law No.2 
County Court at Law No.3 

DISTRICT JUDGES 

Criminal Court 

252nd District Court 
58th District Court 

60th District Court 

136th District Court 
[nnd District Court 
279th District Court 

317th District Court 

DISTRJCT ATTORNEY 

X 

.feffBranick 
Eddie Arnold 
Brent ,?!ea.~e! 
Shane Sinegal 

80 Alfred 

Mitch Woods 

Allison Getz 

Jamie Smith 

Carolyn Guidry 

Tim Funchess 

Kenneth Dollinger 
Naney Beaulieu 
Marcus DeRouen 

Ray Chesson 

Duce Jones 

Brad Burnett 
Tom Gillam 

Earl \Vhite 

Christopher BaLes 
James Trahan 

Dana Baker 

Jeffrey Greenway 

Eddie Collins 

Gerald Eddins 

Cory Crenshaw 
Clint Woods 

John Stevens, Jr. 

Raquel West 
Kent Walston 
Gary Sanderson 

Milton Shuffield 

Donald Floyd 
Randy Shelton 

Larry Thorne 

Bob Wortham 



APPOINTED OFFICIALS 
As of September 30, 2016 

Agricu ltural Extensio n Service 

AiIport 
Audi tor 
Auto Service Ceo ter 

Buildings Maintenance 
Communi ty Supervision 

Court Master 
Data Processing 
Dispute Resolution Center 
Emergency Management 

Engineering 

Envirown enta.l Control 
Health aod Welfare 
Human Resources 
Juvenile P robation & Detention 

Mosquito Control 
Nurse Practitioner 

Purchasing Agenr\Printing 
Risk Manageruent 

Veterans Services Office 

Xl 

Starla Garlick 
AJex Rupp 
Pallick Swa in 

Jose Zurita 
David Knight 
Jerry Jolmson 

Larry Gist 
Paul HeJegda 
KarOl Hawthorn 
Greg fountain 
Don Rao 

Ronda Conlin 
Dr. Cecil Walkes 

Cary Erickson 

Edw ard Cockrell 

Kevin Sexton 
Leslie Little 
Deborah Clark 

Cary Erickson 

Hilary Guest 



XII 



\ FINANCIAL 

SECTION 

, 
i 



PAT TIL L 0, B HOW N & H ILL, L. '- . p . 
CERT IFIED PUBLIC AC COUN TANT S . BUSINESS CO NSULTA NTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable County Judge and 
Commissioners' Court 
Jefferson County , Texas 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson 
County, Texas, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise Jefferson County, Texas' basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Jefferson County, Texas' management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to li'aud or errOr. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with audit ing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free Irom 
material misstatement. 
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
di sclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effecti~elless_of the e".tity's internal control. Accor,9,inglx , we;, express no such opinion. An au~it a,lso 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial pos ition of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund , and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jefferson County, Texas, as of September 30, 
2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended , in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management' s discussion and analysis, the Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balance-Budget and Actual-General Fund, pension infonnation, and Other Post Employment 
Benefit-Schedule of Funding Progress be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
infonnation, although not a part of the bas ic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial repOiting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or histo rical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the infonnation and comparing the infonnation for 
consistency with management' s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
suffic ient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other biformotion 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Jefferson County, Texas ' basic financial statements. The introductory section, 
combining and individual nonmajor fund fmancial statements and schedules, capital asset schedules, and 
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and capital 
asset schedules are the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such infOlmation 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
celtain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the 
underl ying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
fmancial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual 
nonmajor fund fi nancial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Otber Reporting Required by Gove/'l1ment Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Stondords, we have also issued our report dated March 
16,2017 on our consideration of Jefferson County, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial repolting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 
an audit perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Stondw'ds in considering Jefferson County, 
Texas' internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Waco, Texas 
March 16,2017 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of Jefferson COWlty, we offer readers of the Jefferson County's financial 
statements thi s narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the county fo r 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. Please read it in conjunction with the 
additional infonnation that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be 
found in the introductory section of this repori. 

Financial Highlights 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Jefferson County exceeded its 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of fiscal year 2016 by 
$81 ,443,779 (net position), a decrease of $ 12,693,6 15 in net position from the 
previous year. As a result, the county's overall fmancial position has deteriorated 
from the previous year. 

• Of the net position, $140,8 17,541 is net investment in capital assets, $25 ,282,712 
is restricted for specific uses, and $(84,656,474) is unrestricted. 

• As of th e close of fiscal year 2016, Jefferson County's govemmental fu nds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $74,385,7 12, a decrease of 
$2, 122,823 in comparison with the prior year. About 45% of the total amount, 
$33,558,820 is available for spending at the county's discretion (unassigned fund 
balonce). 

• At the end of fiscal year 2016, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$34,142,140, or 29.4% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers. In 
addition, the General Fund had a nonspendable fund balance of $889,865 and 
assigned fund balance of $ 12,478,022. 

• The Capital Projects Fund is classified as a major fund. It had a restri cted fund 
balance of $5,013,3 17. 

• The COWlty 'S total bonds payabJ e decreased by $5 ,006,869 during the current 
fiscal year. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the County 's basic 
financial statements, which are comprised of the following three components: I) 
Government-wide financial statements; 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the 
basic fmancial statements. TIlls report also contains other supplementary infonnation 
which is included in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Gove1'l1/1lent-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all County assets, defened 
outflows ofresources, liabilities, and defened inflows of resources, with the difference 
representing net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information that indicates how net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that 
will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County 
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (govermnental 
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portion of their 
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The govennnental 
activities of the County include general govennnent, judicial and law enforcement, 
education and recreation, health and welfare, and maintenance of equipment and 
stlllctures. The business-type activities of the County include an airport and an 
entertainment complex. 

Component units are included in our basic financial statements and consist of legally 
separate entities for which the County is financially accountable and they have 
substantially the same board as the County or provide services entirely to the County. 
The County's component unit, Southeast Texas Govel11lnent Employee Benefits Pool, 
has been reported as blended with the County as the plimary govelmnenl. For more 
detailed infonnation on this component unit refer to Note IA and Note 13 of the basic 
financial statements. 

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and 
demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County can be 
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proplietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 
the govel11lnent-wide financial statements, governmental funds fmancial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating the County's near-tenn financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the govel11lnent-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
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Jefferson COUlZty, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds 
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The County maintains 72 individual goverrunental funds. lnformation is presented 
separately in the governmental fund s balance sheet and in the governmental funds 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the major 
governmental funds. Data fi·om other govemmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. lndividual fund data for each of these non-major governmental 
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. An enterprise fund is used to repoli the same 
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The County uses enterpIise funds to account for the operations of an airport 
and entertailUnent complex. lnternal service funds are an accounting device used to 
accumulate and allocate costs intemally among the County's val10us functions. The 
County uses internal service funds to account for its liability activities, workers 
compensation, and the public entity Iisk pool that provides health insurance benefits. 
Because these selv ices predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type 
functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the govemment­
wide flllancial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. Both of the enterpIise funds are considered to be major 
funds of the County. TIle County's internal service funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation in the propIietary funds fu1ancial statements. lndividual fund 
data for the internal service funds is provided in the fonn of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report . 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside 
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the govemment-wide financial 
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to suppOli the County's 
own programs. The County's only fiduciary funds are 11 agency funds. Agency funds 
are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional infonnation that is essential 
to a full understanding of the data provided in the govenunent-wide and fund financial 
statements. The notes can be found starting on page 30 of thi s report. 

Required SupplementalY Information is presented concerning the County's General 
Fund budgetary schedule. The County adopts an annual budget for tbis fund. A 
budgetary comparison schedule, which includes the original and final amended budget 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

and actual figures, has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
Required supplementary info=ation can be fOUl1d starting on page 67 of this report. 

The combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier provide 
info=ation for non-major govemmental funds and intemal service funds and are 
presented immediately following the required supplementary info=ation. 

Governrnent-'Vide Financial Analvsis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment' s 
financial position. In the case of the County, assets and deferred outflows of resources 
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows ofresorces by $81,443,779 for fISCal year 2016 
and $94,019,823 for fiscal year2015. 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2016 

Primary Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Reclassifications Total 

Current and other assets $ 91,657,472 $ 2,167,141 $ $ 93,824,613 
Capital Assets 98,363,320 82,294,523 180,657,843 

Total Assets $ 190,070,792 $ 84,461,664 $ $274,482,456 

Deferred OmflO\NS of Resources 
Deferred Loss GIl Refunding $ 981,120 $ $ $ 981,120 
D.=::fCITf:d Outflows Related to 
Pensions 37,809,906 693,054 38,502,960 

Total Deferred Outflows of 
Resources $ 38,791,026 $ 693,054 $ $ 39,484,080 

Current and otherliabilities $ 8,013,188 $ 1,243,015 $ $ 9,256,203 
Long-term liabilities 220,269,899 1,535,521 221,805,420 

Total Liabilities $ 228,283,087 $ 2,778,536 $ $231,061,623 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions $ 1,434,834 $ 26,300 $ $ 1,461,134 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 1,434,834 $ 26,300 $ $ 1,461,134 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets $ 96,137,672 $ 82,294,523 $ (37,614,654) $140,817,541 
Restricted net position 25,282,712 25,282,712 
Unrestricted net position (127 ,326,487) 55,359 37,614,654 (84,656,474) 

Total Net Position $ (906,103) $ 82,349,882 $ $ 81,443,779 

8 



Jefferson COllnty, Texas 
Managem ent's Discllssion and Analysis 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2015 
Primar~ Government 

Governmental Business-type 
Activi ties Activities Reclassifications Total 

Current and other assets $102, 112,513 $ 1,165,563 $ $ 103,278,076 
Capital Assets 95,253,769 83, 107,097 178,360,866 

Total Assets $197,366,282 $ 84,272,660 $ $28 1,638,942 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Deferred Loss on Refunding $ 1,152,975 $ $ $ 1,152 ,975 
Deferred Outflo ws Related to 

Pensions 13,502,109 247,493 13,749,602 
Total Deferred Outflows of 

Resources $ 14,655,084 $ 247,493 $ $ 14,902,577 

Current and other liabilities $ 12,667,639 $ 913 ,9 17 $ $ 13,581,556 
Long-term liabilities 187,806,143 1,133,997 188,940, 140 

Total Liabi lities $200,473,782 $ 2,047,91 4 $ $?02 ,52 1 ;696 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capi!al assets $ 93,8 14,603 $ 83, 107,097 $ (39,220,834) $ 137,700,866 
Restricted net posi.tion 24,695,909 24,695,909 
Unrestricted net position (106,962,928) (634,858) 39,220,83 4 (68,376,952) 

Total Net Position $ 11 ,547,584 $ 82,472,239 $ $ 94,019,823 

The largest portion of the County's current fiscal year net position (172.9 percent) 
reflects its investments in capital assets (e.g. land, improvements, buildings, equipment, 
and infrastructure) ; less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding. The main use of these capital assets is to provide services to ci tizens; 
consequently, tl1ese assets are not avai lable for future spending. Although the County's 
investment in its capital assets is repOlted net of related debt, it should be noted that 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabili ties. Another portion of the 
County's CUtTent fiscal year net position (3l.0 percent) represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The County's CUtTent fiscal year 
net position is reduced by (103.9 percent) for the negative unrestricted net position. 
Unrestricted net position may be negative when entities incur long-telm liabili ties which 
are not offset by corresponding assets or when it covers post-retirement benefits on a pay­
as-you-go basis rather than advance-funding such costs in a trust aCCOUl1t. 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discllssion and Analysis 

At the end of the fiscal year 2016 and the 20 I 5 fiscal year, the County reported positive 
net position in two of the tlu·ee categOlles as a whole. The County reported positive 
balances in two of the three categories of net position for its govemmental activities for 
fiscal year 2016 and fiscal year 2015. Business-type activities had positive balances in 
two categories of net position for fiscal year 2016 and only one of the categories of net 
position for fiscal year 201 5. 

The County had a reclassification of$37,614,654 in fiscal year 2016 and $39,220,834 in 
in the prior fi scal year to move the debt associated wi th the construction of Ford Park 
from Umestricted net position to Net investment in capital assets. The capital assets are 
reported in the business-type activities and the debt is reported in the governmental 
activities. 

The County's net position decreased by $12,693,6 15 dUllng the current fi scal year. The 
following table indicates changes in net position for governmental and business-type 
activities : 
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Jefferson COUllty, Texas 
Management's Disclission alld Analysis 

Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended September 30, 20 16 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activ ities Total 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 21,555,263 $ 6,068 ,512 $ 27,623,775 
Operating grants and 

contributions 11,359,382 50,000 11,409,382 
Capital grants and contributions 4,246,945 3,012,750 7,259,695 

General revenues: 
Taxes - levied for general 

purposes 74 ,486,620 74,486,620 
Taxes - levied for debt service 5,612,488 5,612,488 
Sales Taxes 26,479,752 26,479,752 
Investment earnings 353,495 I , III 354,606 
Miscellaneous 27,589 27,589 

Total revenues 144,12 1,534 9,132,373 153 ,253,907 

Expenses: 

General government 40,583 ,261 40,583,261 
Judicial and law enforcement 84,656,946 84,656,946 
Education and recreation 1,214,705 1,214,705 
Health and welfare 10,490,353 10,490,353 
Maintenance - equipment and 

structures 14,693 ,137 14 ,693 ,137 
Interest and charges on long-

term debt 1,320,790 1,320,790 
Airport 5,478,254 5,478 ,254 
Entertainment Complex 7,5 10,076 7,510,07 6 

Total expenses 152,959,192 12,988,330 165,947 ,522 

Excess (deficiency) before 
transfers (8,837,658) (3,855,957) (I 2,693,615) 

Transfers (3 ,733,600) 3,733,600 
Change in net position ( 12 ,571 ,258) (122 ,357) (12 ,693,6 15) 

Net position - beginning 11 ,547,584 82,472,239 94,019 ,823 
Prior period adjustment 117,571 117,571 
Net position - beginning - restated 11 ,665,155 82,472,239 94,137,394 

Net position - ending $ (906, I 03) $ 82,349,88 7 $ 81,443,779 

11 



Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Statement of Acti vities 
For the Year Ended September 30, 20 15 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

_Rev:enues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 21 ,266 ,721 $ 6,939,151 $ 28,205,971 
Operating grants and 

contributions 10,935,535 10,935,535 
Capital grants and conlributloDS 8,711 ,24 1 2,442,839 11,154,080 

General revenues: 
Taxes -levied for general 

purposes 76,925,495 76,925,495 
Taxes - levied for debt service 6,197,358 6,197,358 
Sales Taxes 24,995,680 24,995,680 
Investment earnings 468,561 788 469,349 
Miscellaneous 29,686 52,260 81,946 

Total revenues 149,530,277 9,435 ,138 158,965,415 
Expenses: 

General government 40,203,444 40,203,444 
Judicial and law enforcement 80,018,632 80,018,632 
Education and recreation 1,425,539 1,425,539 
Hea1tl1 and welfare 10,362,461 10,362,461 
Maintenance - equipment and 

structures 14,076,436 14,076,436 
Interest and cbarges on ]ong-

tenn debt 1,423 ,776 1,423,776 
Airport 5,894,51 8 5,894,5 18 
Eotenainment Complex 7,752 ,545 7,752,5 45 

Total expenses 147,510,288 13 ,647 ,063 16 1,157,351 
Excess (deficiency) before 

transfers 2,0 19,989 (4,21 1,925) (2 ,191,936) 
Transfers (2,594,492) 2,594,492 
Change in net position (574,503) (1 ,6 17,43 3) (2,191,936) 
Net position - beginning 49,587,224 84,777,108 134,364,332 
Prior period adjustment (37,465,137) (687,436) (38,152,573) 
Net position - beginning - restated 12,122,087 84 ,089 ,672 96,2 11,759 

Net position - ending $ 11,547,584 $ 82,472 ,239 $ 94,019 ,823 
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Governmental activities 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Govemmental activities decreased the County's net position by $12,571,258. 

This decrease is due to the increase in the OPEB (Other Post Employment Benefits) 
Obligation of about $13.9 million. Commissioners' Court has decided to continue 
funding OPEB on the pay-as-you-go basis. More discussion on OPEB can be found in 
Note 9 starting on page 57. 

For the most part, other changes (increases/decreases) in expenses typically had 
corresponding changes in revenues as programs or projects ramp up or wind down. 

Business-type activities 

Business-type activities decreased the County's net position by $122,35 7. The largest 
area of decline is reduction in Net Investment in Capital Assets due to depreciation of 
assets. The County continues to look for additional revenues sources as well as cost 
saving measures to have these business-type activities se lf-supporting without having to 
rely on transfers from the General Fund to subsidize operations. 

Revenue by Source - Business-type Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities 
Year Ended September 30, 2016 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

Entertainmen t Complex 

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County's govemmental funds is to provide 
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources, Such 
information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In paliicular, 
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a govemment' s net resources 
available for spending at the end of the fIscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Jefferson County' s governmental funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $74,385,712 a decrease of $2,123,609 in comparison 
with the prior year. About 45% of this total amount ($33,558,820) constitutes unassigned 
fund balance, which is available for spending at the County's discretion. The remainder 
of fund balance is nonspendable, committed, restricted, or assigned to indicate that it is 
not avai lable fo r new spending. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $34,142, 140, while total 
fund balance reached $47,510,027. As a measure of the general fund 's liqu id ity, it may 
be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund 
expenditures and transfers. Unassigned fund balance represents 29.4 percent of total 
General Fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balances represents 40.9 
percent of that same amount. 

The fund balance of the County 's General Fund decreased by $370,830 during the current 
fiscal year. This decrease is in mostly due to lost property tax revenue for a contested 
propeliy tax valuation for one of the large industrial taxpayers. 

The Capital Projects Fund has a total fund balance of $5,013,317, all of which is 
restricted for maintenance of structures and equipment. The net decrease in fund balance 
during the current year in the Capital Projects Fund was $3,482,984. This decrease was 
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in large pmi as progression of ongoing projects for which funding had already been 
provided in prior years . 

Proprietary Funds. The County's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of 
infonnation found in the business type activities of the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

TI1e Jack Brooks Regional Airport Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operation 
of the County airport. As of September 30, 2016, unrestricted net position is $(444,902), 
an increase of $539,186 from the prior year. This increase is mostly due to increase in 
transfers from the General Fund. 

The Ford Park Fund is used to account for the day-to-day operation of Ford Park. As of 
September 30, 2016, unrestricted net position is $500,261, an increase of$151 ,031 from 
the prior year. This increase is mostly due to increase in transfers from the General Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The total original budget adopted on September 21, 2015 did not have to be mnended 
during the year. Budget transfers were done during the year to adjust departments as 
needed. 

DUling the year actual revenues and transfers were more than budgetary estimates by 
$2,372,005. Actual expenditures and transfers were less than budgetary estimates by 
$7,210,142. The budget had a projected reduction of $9,952,977 to the fund balance. 
The net effect of over-realization of revenues and under-utilization of appropriations 
resulted in a positive variance of $9,582, 147 thus only reducing the existing fund balance 
of$370,830 on a budgetary basis. 

The largest positive variance of $1,343,183 is due to an increase in Sales Tax revenue. 
The area continues to have growth due to several large industrial expansions. 

Revenue from Property Taxes had the largest negative valiance of $697,759 due to a 
settlement for a contested property tax valuation for one of the large industrial taxpayers. 
This settlement resulted in a reduction of about $1.4 million in property tax revenue. 

Many depmiments achieved savings over the fi scal year mostly due to unfilled staff 
positions and moving employees through their salary ranges whereby leaving unspent 
funds. The total amount of savings for salary and fringe benefits was about $4.1 million. 
Departments also did well in controlling their spending in other budgetary areas. 

Budget variances are not expected to impact fi.lture services or liquidity. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets. The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and 
business-type activities as of September 30, 2016, amounted to $180,657,843 
(net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, 
improvemeuts, structures, park improvements and facilities, infrastructure, equipment, 
vehicles, machinery, other tangible and intangible assets, and construction in progress. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

• The County had a variety of building improvements, purchases of equipment, 
roads and bridges construction, and COllstruction of airport facilities. 

• At September 30,2016, the ending fund balance for all capital projects funds was 
$6.71 million. 

For further infonuation regarding capital assets, see Note 5. 

Governmental Acti vities: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Infrastructure 
Buildings & Improvements 
Equipment 

Less: Accumulated 
depreciation 

Total governmental 
activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings & lmprovemenls 
Equipment 

Less: Accumulated 
depreciation 

Total busiuess-type 
activities 

Balance 
September 30, 2016 
$ 3,840,787 

$ 

$ 

$ 

24,962,508 
59,114,166 

105,090,205 
42 ,601,445 

235,609,111 

(137,245 ,791) 

98,363,320 

5,154,600 
6,248 ,896 

129,320,283 
12,459,3 66 

153,183,145 

(70,888,622) 

82,294,523 

Balance 
September 30, 2015 -

Restated 
$ 3,840 ,787 

$ 

$ 

$ 

19,9 64,968 
59,114, 166 

102,718 ,113 
41,959,248 

227,597,282 

(13? ,225, 156) 

95,372,126 

5,154,600 
2,893,850 

129,843,264 
12,335,094 

150,226,808 

(67,119,711) 

83,107,097 

Long-Term Debt. At September 30, 2016, the County had a total long-tenn debt 
outstanding of $221,805,420. Refer to Note 7 for further infonnation on the County's 
long-term debt. County officials, citizens, and investors will find the ratio of net bonded 
debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita as useful indicators 
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Jefferson County, Texas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

of the County's debt position. This information is presented in the statistical section of 
this repOlt. 

Govenunental Activities: 
Bonds Payab)e 
Capital leases 
Claims & Judgments 
Compensated Absences 
Pension Liability 
OPEB Obligations 

Tota) governmental 
activities 

Business-type Activities: 
Compensated Absences 
Pension Liabili ty 

Total business-type 
activities 

Outsta nding at 
September 30, 2016 
$ 39,437,454 

$ 

$ 

$ 

) ,383,968 
1,882,30·) 

)2,293,578 
72,592,973 
92,679,625 

220,269,899 

204,897 
1,330,624 

1,535,52 1 

Outstanding at 
September 30, 2015 
$ 44,444,323 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1,707,363 
2,685,€in 

12,156,652 
47,988,665 
78,823,51 7 

187,806, 143 

254 ,368 
879,629 

1,133,997 

The bond rating services of Moody's Investo rs Services, Inc. and Standard & Poor's 
Ratings services have assigned the County's long tenn bond ratings of Aa2 and AA­
respectively. 

Econonric Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The COlmnissioner' s CO\l1i adopted the County's 2016-2017 budget on September 26, 
2016 for the General Fund and Debt Service funds. The budget was adopted based on 
estimated balances that would be available at the end of fiscal year 2016 and estimated 
revenues to be received in fiscal year 2017. The total resources for all funds for fIscal 
year 2016 are estimated to be $165.0 million. 111e budget was adopted with estimated 
expenditures in the amount of $129. 5 millioll. The 20 16-2017 budget forecast utilizing 
$ 12,478,022 of fund balance. 

For 2016-201 7, the propeliy tax rate will remain at $.365 per $ 100 of taxable assessed 
value and taxable assessed property values are anticipated to decrease a little over 2% for 
the 2016-2017 budget year. 

The average unemployment rate fo r Jefferson County for September 20 16 was 7.4%; this 
is a decrease from the plior year rate of7.8%. The state 's average unemployment rate for 
September 20 16 was 4.9%. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances 
for all those with an interest in the County finances. Questions concerning any of the 
infonnation provided in this report or requests for additional financial infonnation should 
be addressed to the County Auditor's Office, 1149 Pearl St. _7'h Floor, Beaumont, Texas 
77701. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEwrENT OF !'\£T P OSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

rIUllL\R \' r;O"I: A.N~ rr./I'T 

GO\ "EA.."l<Il:NTAl. b\.lSIi'l tss-n Tt 

-,CIl \TTU:!f "'''''''''' ru:CLASSIAC-,n Of'iS 

ASSETS: 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS , 59,043,799 795,450 
lNVESTMTh'TS 1) ,014, :!82 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 35 .SS 3 1-4 5 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Nel 408,13 1 271 .478 
DUE FRO M OTHER GOVERNt-.1ENTAL ENTITIES 9.051,721 9; J ,7S~ 

lNVENTORIES, At Cost 564 ,824 147,887 
PREPAID ITEMS 357,899 398 
DELil'l"QURTT TAXES RECEN ABLE , Net 4,251.019 
PENALlY AND INTEREST RECEIV ABLE, Net 2.029,800 
OTHER RECETV ABLES, Nel 1,821,603 
DEPOS ITS 75,500 
CA PITAL ASSETS: 

lAND 3.840,787 5, 154 ,600 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 24,962 .508 6,248.896 
OTIlER CAPITAL ASSETS , Net of depreciation 6956°1° 25 7°1891 ,027 

TOTA L ASSETS , 190,020,792 84.46 \.664 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOUR CES: 
DEFERRED LOSS ON BOND REFUNDING , 981,120 
DEFE RR F.D OlITFlOWS RELATED TO PENS IONS 37.809.906 693,054 

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 38.791,016 693,054 

LL~BILITlES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 6,931 ,870 9 15,440 
lNTEREST PAYA BLE 235.155 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERN MENiAL ENTrn ES 360 
IJl\'EARNED REVENUE 84 5,803 294,958 
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 32 ,6 17 
LONG·TERM UAIlll.JTIES 

DUE WJTHn-( ONE YEAR 7,7:!5.011 57.293 
DUE IN MORETIlAN ONE YEAR 112.544 .888 1.478,223 

TOT.-\L LlABILITrES 22 8.283.087 2,778,5 36 

DEfERR ED c'l"FLOWS OFRESOr..;RCES: 
DEFERRED fNFLOWS RELATED TO PENSIONS 1.434.834 16.300 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF R ESOLTRCES S lA34,8)4 26,300 

N ET POSITION 
NET .INVESTMENT IN CA PITAL ASS ETS $ 96,137.672 81 ,294,51) (37,614.654) 
RESTRlCTED FOR: 

DEBT SER VlCE 602,07 1 
CONSTR UCTION 30,705 
PUBUC INTEREST 2.927 ,892 
NDICA L & LAW ENFORCErvIENT 5,693.110 
EDUA TION & RECREATION 1,837,8 19 
HEALrn & WELFARE 8,861,906 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES & EQUIJ>MENT 5,)29,209 

UNRESTRICTED ( 122.)26.487) 55 1359 37,614,654 

TOTAL NET POS ITIO N S (906, 103) 81.349,8 81 

The reclaHijiC(JlioJl is /or the debt associated Willi Ihe COII Sll1Ielloll 0/ Ford Pork. 7711! a:rsel is DeCOU/lied jo/' ill the a"si/less·lype 
Dctiyities CO/WIll/ olld 'he debt is accoullled for in 'he GOI't'J"IIlIIellloJ Aclil';, ies collllJll/. 

lbe notes to the financial SlalemeniS are an inteb,'r.ll part of Ihis s lalemenl. 
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TOTAl.. 

59,839,249 
13,0 14,18:! 

36,018 
679 .609 

[0,004 ,5 0; 
711 .711 
358,297 

4.252,029 
2,029.800 
2,822,603 

75,500 

8,995,387 
31,2 11 ,404 

140,451 ,0;2 

274,482.456 

98 1,120 
38 ,502,960 

39,484,080 

7,S47 .3 10 
235 .155 

360 
1,140 .761 

32 .61 7 

7.782.,304 
214.02 3, 11 6 

23 1 ,061.61) 

1,461 ,134 

1.461.1 34 

140,8 17,5-1\ 

602,071 
30,705 

2,92 7.891 
5,693,[1 0 
1.837,8 19 
8,861.906 
5,319,109 

(84.656.474) 

81.443,779 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVlTlES 

FOR THE YEAR E"DED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
GENERALGOVERh~NT 

JUDlCIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 
NUUNTENANCE-EQUTPMENT 

AND STRUCTURES 
INTEREST AND CHARGES 

ON LONG-TERM DEBT 
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVTTIES 

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES: 
AIRPORT 
ENTERTAINMENT COMPLEX 

TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVlTIES 
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

PROGRAM REVENUES 
OPERATING CAPITAL 

C H-ARGES FOR GRANTS AND-- GRA.l'<T-S AND 
EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ 40,583,26 1 S 5,219,872 $ 153 
84,656,946 10,307,890 10,769,052 

1,214,705 13,428 II 
10,490,353 401,391 240,737 

14,693,137 5,612,682 349,429 

!,320,790 
$ 152,959,192 $ 21,555,263 $ 11,359,382 

5,478,254 2,780,094 50,000 
7,510,076 3,288,4 18 

S 12,988,330 $ 6,068,512 $ 50,000 
$ 165,94 7,522 $ 27,623,775 $ 11,409,382 

GENERAL REVENUES 
TAXES: 

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR GENERAL PURPOSES 
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED FOR DEBT SERVlCE 
SAlES TAXES 

UNRESTRJCTED INVESTNIENT EARNINGS 
MlSCELLANEOUS 

TRANSFERS 
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUE AND TRANSFERS 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 

NET PosmON - BEGINNING 
PRIOR PERJOD ADJUSTMENT 
I--'ET POSITION - BEGINNING, ResLated 

NET POSITION - ENDING 

$ 

$ 

S 
$ 

190,817 

4,056,128 

4,246,945 

2,966,087 
46,663 

3,012,750 
7,'59,695 

The notes to the financial staten ents are an integral part of this statement. 
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NET (EXPENS ES ) REVENUES AND CHANGES IN NET 
POSITION 

PRlMARY GOVERNMENT 
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 

ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL 

$ (35,363,236) $ $ (35,363,236) 
(63,389, 187) (63,389,187) 

0,201,266) (1,20 1,266) 
(9,848,225) (9,848,225) 

(4,674,898) (4,674,898) 

( 1,320,790) (1,320 ,790) 
$ (11 5,797,602) $ 5 ( 11 5,797,602) 

317,927 3 I 7,927 
(4,174 ,995) (4,174 ,995) 

$ $ (3,857,068) 5 (3,85 7,068) 
$ (115 ,797,602) $ (3 ,857,068) S (] 19,654,670) 

$ 74,486,620 $ $ 74,486,620 
5,612,488 5,612,488 

26,479,752 26,4 79,752 
353,495 1,111 354,606 

27,589 27,589 
() ,733,600) 3,733,600 

$ 103,2?6,344 $ 3,734,71 1 $ 106,961,05 5 

$ (12,571 ,258) 5 (l22,357) $ ( 12,693,615) 

11,547,584 82,472,239 94,019,823 
117,571 I I 7,57 1 

11 ,665, 155 82,472,239 94, I 37,394 

$ (906, 103) 5 82,349,882 $ 81,443,779 
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JEFFERSO;o.; COUNTY, TEXAS 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERi'''l"!\-[ENTAL FUi\"DS 
SEPTEt-mER 30, 2016 

CAPITAL :'>O:'>~ I.UOR TOTAl 

PROJECTS GO\t:IL'OIE:'>TAL GOYElL"'.\IENTAL 

GCSERAL n":"D n;SDS fl";NllS 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUJV ALE}!TS 29,258.323 5,211,627 23,371,536 57,841,486 
ll,nI"ESTMENTS 13,014,282 13,014,282 
ACCOUNTS RECErv ABLE, Nel 236.305 139,887 376,192 
rNTEREST RECEIVABLE I 1.947 1.471 5,973 19,391 
DUEFRO~IOTHERFUNDS 4,77096 4,774,296 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 7,400,767 35 ,673 1,340,525 8,776,965 
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, }!el 4.154,683 97,346 4,252,029 
PENALlY A}!D INTEREST RECEJV ABLE, Net 1,933,330 46,470 2,029,300 
il'-:VENTORIES, At Co51 532,589 32,235 564,824 
PREPAID ITEM 357,276 623 357.899 

TOTAL ASSETS , 61.723.798 5,248,771 25.034.595 92,007.164 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, Ai\D FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE , 5AS7,977 231,269 1, 192,859 6,912,105 
COMPENSATED A.BSENCES PAYABLE 84,002 18,10-1- 102.106 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 961,020 961.020 
DUE TO OTHER GOVER.N/I1ENT.A.L ENTITIES 360 360 
UNEARNED REVENUE 845.803 8~5.803 

TOTAL LLJ...IHUTJES S 5.572 ,339 231.]69 3,017,786 8,821,39-1-

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOCRCES: 
UNAVA . .il..,illLE REVHIUE- PROPERTY T.","'US S 5,955,077 1J1,574 6.086,65\ 
UNAVAll...lillLE REVENVE- INl'vLA.TE HOUSING 2,686,355 2.686.355 
UNAVAILI\BLE REVENVE- GRANTS 4.185 22.867 27.052 

TOTAL DEFERRED LNFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES 81641 ,432 4,185 154.441 8,800.058 

FUND BALANCES: 
NONSPENDABLE FOR: 

[l'[VENTORY 532,589 32 ,235 564,824 
PREPAID ITEMS 357,276 623 357,899 

RESTRICTED FOR: 
DEBT SERVICE 581,539 581,539 
CO:-.rSTRUCTION 30,705 30,705 
PUBLIC INTEREST 2,927,392 2,927,892 
JUDICLA.L & LAW ENFORCEMENT 5,660,252 5,660,252 
EDUCA nON & RECREATION 1,837,819 1,837,819 
H E.A,l TH & \-VHF.ARE 8,861 ,906 8,361,906 
/vlAlNTEN.A.NCE OF STRUCTURES 

& EQUiPMENT 5,013,317 315,892 5.329.209 
COMMITTED fOR: 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 532,034 532.034 
ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,664,791 1.664,791 
ASSIGNED FOR ADOPTED BUDGET 

UTll..lZATION OF FUND BAL . .\NCE 12,478,022 12,478,022 
lJNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 34 ,142.1-1-0 (583.320) 33.553.820 

TOTAL FUND BALAI~CES , 47,5\0,027 5,0\3,317 21,862,368 7-1-.385.712 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, Ai'i'D FUND BALAJ\CES S 61,723,798 5.248,771 25,034 ,595 92.007.164 

The notes to the firmncinl >tnlements an: on u.egral part of lhis Slnlemerll. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIA nON OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALAl'lCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

ToLal fund balances for governmental funds .$ 74,385,712 

Total nel position reponed for governmental activities in the statement ofneL p:!siLioo 
is different because: 

Capital asscLS used in governmental activities are Dot rmancial resources and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Lmd 
Construction in progress 
Infrastructure, net of S41 ,086,140 accumulated depreciation 
Buildings, net of£65,661,294 accumulated depreciation 
Equipment, oct of $30,498,357 accumulated depreciation 

Tolal capilal asseLS 

Long-term asseLS are ooL recognized in tbe current period and accordingly 
are not reported as fund assets. Balances as of September 30, 2016 were: 

Accrued interest receivable 

Long-term liabilities applicable to Jefferson County's aClivities are not 
due and payable in the currenl period and accordingly are not reported as fund 
liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but 
rather is recognized as an expenditure wben due. AJlliabilities - both current 
and long-tenn are reported in lhe Statement of Net Position. 
Balances as of September 30,2016 were: 

Accrued interest on bonds and loans 
Bonds payable 
OPES Obligations 
Pension Liability 
Capital leases 
Compensated absences 
Pensions - Contributions after 12/31120}5 
Pensions - Economic/demographic (gains) 
Pensions - Economic/demographic losses 
PeJ.lSiOllS -Investment (gains) or losses 
Pensions - Changes in Assumption 
GainlLoss on Refunding Bonds 
Premiurn/DiscounLS on Bonds 

Internal service funds are used by the County. The assets and liabilities 
of the internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in the 
Statement ofNe! Position. Internal service fund net position are: 

Some of the County's receivables are classifted as long-term and therefore 
are not reponed in the funds. Receivable reported net of $2,273, 193 allowance 
for uncollectible accounts. 

Some of the County's revenues will be collected after year-end but are not 
available soon enough to pay [Or the current period's expcnditures and 
therefore are reported as available resources in the funds. 

Total net position of governmental activities 

TIle notes to the rmancial statements are an illlegraJ pan ofulis slillemeni. 

23 

$ 3,840,787 
24,962,508 
18,028,026 
39,428,911 
P,103,088 

16,152 

$ (235,155) 
(36,070,000) 
(92,679,625) 
(72,592,973) 

(1,383,968) 
(12,191,472) 

8,995,925 
(1,434,834) 

571,760 
24,755,955 

3,486,266 
981,120 

(3,367,454) 

98,363,320 

16,[52 

(181,164,455) 

(4,129,493) 

2,822,603 

8,800,058 

(906,103) 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

CAl'IT.U NOJlolo lA.IOR 

PROJECTS GO\'l:RNl\fl: /'o, AL 

C£1i£RAL rurm rur-.1JS 

REVENUES, 
PROPERTY TAXES S 74,771 ,585 5,629,065 
SALES TAXES 25,268 , 183 1,211 ,569 
FEES 9,536,260 4,575,279 
LICENSES 502,532 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,443,457 1,126,72 8 13,987,872 
SALES, RENTAL &SERVICES 2,100,328 985,530 
FINES AND FORFE[TURES 1,817,0 16 264 ,047 
INTEREST 220,208 22, 159 89,868 
MISCELLANEOUS 27, 589 
CONTRIBUT[ONS AND DONATIONS 3 [5 [ 1.808 

TOTAL REVENUES S 115,687,47) 1,148,887 26 ,755,038 

EXPENDITURES, 
CURRENT 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT S 2 I ,989 ,258 480,852 
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 67,056,128 14,815,481 
EDUCATION AND RECREATIO N )49,917 915,058 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 10,233,5[ [ 34,265 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

AND EQUIPM ENT 11 ,806,970 43 ,970 
CAPITAL OUTlAY 4,) 44 ,7 16 3,473,678 
DEBT SERVICE 

PRINCIPAL 323 ,395 4,590,000 
INTEREST ANDCOMM[SSIO>J 46 ,440 [ ,539,896 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES S 111,435,784 4,714,551 25,893,200 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES S 4,251,689 (3,565,664) 861,838 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES), 
TRANSFERS IN 5 139,709 129, [51 1,230,019 
TRANSFERS OUT (4,762 ,228) (46 ,471 ) (360,866) 

T OT AL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 5 (4,62?,519} 82,680 869,153 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BM-ANCES 5 (370,830) (),482,984) 1,730,991 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING S 47 ,880,857 8,496,301 20,132,163 
PRJOR PERJOD ADJUSTMENT (786) 

fUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (Restllled) 5 47,880,857 8,496,301 20,131,377 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 5 47,510,077 5,013,3 [7 21.867,368 

The notes 10 the financial statements are ao inTegral pan of lIus statement 
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TOTAL 

C OVER!'If<IE"TAL 

nIND' 

80,400,650 
26,479,752 
14,111,539 

502,532 
16,558,057 
3,085,858 
2 ,08 1,063 

)32,2 35 
27,589 
12 ,P3 

(4),591,)98 

22,470,110 
8 1,871,609 

1,264,975 
[0,267,776 

[ 1,850,940 
7,8 [8,394 

4,91) ,395 
1,586,))6 

142,043,53 5 

1,547,863 

[,498,879 
(5,169,565) 

(3,670,686) 

p,122,82)) 

76,509,321 
(786) 

76,508,535 

74,385 ,7[2 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RECONCILIATJON OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVlTIES 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Net cban ge in fund balaoces • total governmental funds 

Governmenta l funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the staLement of ac tivities 
the cost of these assets is aUocated overthc ir estimated useful1ives a[ld reported as depreciat ion 
expense. 

Capital Expenditures 
Capital asset donations to Business type activi ties 
Ne t adjuslmem for sale or disposal of capital assets 
Depreciati on Expense 

Net adj uSlment 

Debt proceeds arc reported as financing sourees in governmental funds and thus contribute to the 
change in fund balance. to the statement ofoel posilioo, however, issuing debt wcreases long-term 
Iiabililjes and does not affect the Statement of Acti vities. Similarly, repayment ofprincipaJ is 30 

expenditure in the govemmellta l funds but reduces tbe liabili ty in the S tmemeot ofNe( Position. 

Re paYlDeots: 
To payiug agent for bond principal 
Capita l Lease principal 

Net adjustment 

Under thc modilied accrua l bnsis of accounting used ill the govcmmen la l funds, expenditures are 
oot recognized for transactions that are not nonnaUy pnid with expendable avai lnble financial resources. 
Ln the sta tement ofaelivities, however, whieli is presemed on the accrual basis, expenses and 
liabilities are repon.ed rega rdless ofwben fwnocini resources are available. 10 addition, interest 00 

lon g-term dcbt is not recognized undcr the modified accrual basis ofaccoun tillg until due, rather as 
it accru es. The adjustment cowbiDes me oet cuanges oflcn bal;loces. 

Compensated absences 
O PES Obligations 
Pension Linbiti ty 
Pensions - Eeonoruiddemograpbic (gains) losses 
Pc nsions - Cbange in assumption (gains) losses 
Pensions - Investmen t (gains) of losses 
Peosioos - Di fference in CoolJibutions 
AnJon ization of bond premium 
Amoni.zation ofrefuodiog difference 
Accrucd interest on debt 

CombiDcd adjustment 

inte rnal serv ice fund s are used by the County. l be net chnnge in position ofmc inte rnal service funds 
are reported ..... ith governmeotal activities. 

Some of the County's rcceivables are classified as long-term ;lnd thcrefore the nel of revclluc and 
bad debt expeose associa ted wit.h theses receivables arc 001 reported in the fund s. 

Becanse some revenues will 001 be colIected for several months nftcr the County's fiscal year end, 
they do nol provide current financial resources ;lnd they arc not reported as reveoues in the funds. 

Tola l cbange in net posiLion of governmeota1 activities 

The ooles to the financial M21emen lS are 1lJ1 integral pan oflhis 513lemenl. 

25 

s 

s 

9,406,017 
(62 ,9 14) 

(118 ,366) 
(6,223,553) 

4.5 90,000 
323,395 

S (H,347) 
(13,856,108) 
(24,604 ,308) 

(1 ,625,41 1) 
3,486,266 

21,275 ,886 
(263,768) 
416,869 

(17 1,855) 
20,53') 

$ (2, 121,823) 

2,991,194 

4,9 13,395 

(2,049 ,411) 

11 ,040 

(935,399) 

S (1 2,5 71 ,258) 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ­

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

ASSETS: 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

C .. \SH AND C .. \SH EQUJV.UEt\TS S 
ACCOUNTS P..ECEIVABlf, Nrol 

rNITREST RECEIVABLE 

DUE FROM OTHfR GQVERJ>.iMENT A.L ENTITIES 

PREPlill:> ITEMS 

rNVI NTORY. Al Cost 

DEPOSITS 

TOV,] .. CURRENT ASSETS I 
NONCURRENT ASS E'!"S: 

CAPIT.AJ.. ASSETS: 

LAND 

CONSTRUCTIOl\ !NPROGP..ESS 

OTHER CAP\TAl .... SSETS, )\;"ET OF 

DEPRECLATION 

TOTAL NONCLTRREl-.!T ASSETS > 

TOTAL ASSETS > 

DEFERRED OFT FLOWS OF RESOURCES; 

DEFERRED OL:TROWS RELATED T0 P£l\'S IONS 

TOTAL DEFERT-ED Ol:TFLOWS QF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES: 

(""uRRENT UABlLIT!ES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ., 
CLAlMS LHBIU!Y 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

CL'RR£!\'T PORTION - COMPF:NS.4.TEDAl3SENCES 

UNEARNED REVENU[ 

CUS TOMER DEPOSITS 

TOT Ai Cl}RR,EI\'T UABIU TIES $ 
NONCURREl\'T LLABrLI TlES: 

NONCURR£..~T PORriON . CCt-iPEI\ISATF.O A BSENCF_S 

PENSION LlA81l1 TY 

TOTAL NQNCt/IULI'l'T LIABILITIES $ 

TOTA)... LIABILJTIF.5 > 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

DEfERRED INFWWS R.£l.". TED TO PENSIO KS $ 

TOTAL DEFERRED Ol,FLOWS OF RESOURCES 5 

NET POSIT ION: 

I\"ET INVESTMENT IN CAPIT AL AS SETS 5 
lJNRESTRICTED 

TOTAL NET POSITION 5 

[NTI:R1'RJS£ FUNDS 

He" 
BBOOKS 

REG IONAl 

AIJU'ORT 

4 1,763 
41,879 

11 9 
95 1,783 

77 

112,616 

1, 148,237 

3,024,815 
6,230,%6 

22,9 17,594 
32,172,975 

33,32 1,21 2 

__ 693,054 

693,054 

628,483 

20,678 
106,338 
26, 166 

78 1,665 

147,604 
1.330,6')-1 
1,478.228 

2,259,893 

26,300 

26,300 

32, 172,975 
(444,907) 

31,728,073 

f ORD I'AltK 

753,687 
229,599 

26 

32 1 
35,27 1 

1,018,904 

2, 129.785 
18,330 

47,973,433 
50 ,121,548 

51.140.452 

------

286,957 

36,615 
188,620 

6,1l5 1 
5 18,643 

5 18.643 

50,12l,548 
500,761 

50,621.809 

The rlOles 10 fl}HlJIci:tl S\3I<:llIelltJ ~r<::ln illlegr31 part o rlhis ~laleLoen l. 

y -, 

795,450 
27 1,478 
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95 1,783 

398 
147,887 

2. 167,14 1 

5, 154,600 
6,148,896 

70,891,0"'7 
87,294,523 

84,461,664 

693 ,054 

693.054 
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194,958 
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1,300,308 

14 7,601l 
1,330,674 
1,4 78,128 

2,778.536 
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26,300 

82,291l,523 
55,359 
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iJ'.TE:ru',u. 

SE:R\'lCE: 

"'N'" 

1,101,3 13 
31.939 

340 
175,757 

75,500 
1,585,849 
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------

19,765 
1,382,30 I 
3,8J3,?76 

5,7 15,3-12 

-------
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------

(4,129,49 3) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION-
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTB1BER 30, 2016 

ENTERPRISE H INDS 

JACK 

BROOKS fi'\ TERi'IAL 

REG IONAL SERV1CE 

AlRPORT l'ORDPARK TOTAL FUI\US 

OPERATING REVENUES: 

CH.4RGES FOR SERVICES $ 2,780,094 3,288,418 6,068,512 16,662,660 
ElvfPLOYEE CONTRIBUTIONS 2,210,088 

TOTAL OPERATI~G REVENL'ES $ 2,780,094 3,288,418 6,068,512 18,872,748 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

SALARIES & BENEFITS $ 1,73 8,719 1,546,995 3,285,714 
MATERJALS Al\fl) SUPPLIES 92,8 78 129,656 222,534 
M.PJNTENANCE AND REPAIRS 142,1 60 400,655 542,815 
UTlLlTIES 181,740 850,414 1,032,154 
COST OF GOODS SOLD 1,123 ,731 1,425,318 2,549,049 
MISCELLANEOUS 344,731 58,183 402,914 
ADMINISTRATrvE 691,563 691,563 1,666,474 
INCURRED & ESTIMATED CLAIMS 19,960,883 
DEPRECIATION 1,539,943 2,407 ,292 3,947,235 

TOTAL OPERA TINe EXPENSES $ 5,163,902 7,5 10,076 12,673,978 7 I ,677,357 

OPERA TU~G INCOME (LOSS) $ (2,383,808) (4,22 1,658) (6,605,466) (2,754,609) 

NONO PERA l iNG REVENUES: 

INTEREST REVENUE $ 1,050 61 1,111 3,831 
GAIN/(LOSS) ON SAL E OF CAPITAL ASS ETS (3 14,352) (3 14,352) 
REFUNDS AND RECOVERIES 50,000 50,000 701,367 

TOTAL NONOPERA TJNG REVENUES $ (263,302) 61 (263,24 1 ) 705,198 

I!'\COME (WSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS $ (2,647,110) (4,221 ,597) (6,868,707) (2,049,411 ) 

CAPlT I\L CONTRIBUTIONS 2,966,087 109,577 3,075,664 
TRANSFER IN 1,737,746 1,932,940 3,670,686 

CHA.1\'GE IN NET POSITION $ 2,056,723 (2, 179,080) ( 122,357) (2,049,411) 

I\'"£T POSITION, BEGINNING 29,671,350 52,800,889 82 .472 ,239 (',080,082) 

NET POSITION, ENDING $ 31,728,073 50,621 ,809 82,349,882 (4,129,493) 

111e notes to the financial staLements are an integral pmt of this statement. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS­

PROPRJET ARY fUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

E.\'T £ IU'IUS(rl' .... D~ 

J,\ CI\ 

BROOIi$ 

U.£CIO .... .u.. 
ADU'O" FORD PARi.: 

CASH f LOWS FROM OPERA TlNC ACTIVIT IES, 

RECEIPTS FROM CL'STOMERS AND USERS , 2,792,334 3, 184,799 
RECEWTS FROM EMPLOYEES 

I'AYMEl\'TS TO SLiPPLIERS ( 1,562,001) (),506,384) 
PAYMEh'TS TO EMPLOYEES (1,754,002) ( J ,549,449) 
INTERNAL ACTrVrfY-RfCETPTS(PAYMENTS) FROM 

(TO, OTHER FUN DS 

CLAIMS PAID 

OTHER RECEIPTS 82.908 

NET CA.'>H PROYIDED(USED, BY OPERATING ACT MTIES , (440.767) ( 1,87).034) 

CASH FLOWS FROll1 NONCAJ'ITAL n,.,'ANCING .... CTIVITIES, 

TRANSFERS (TO) fROM Olll.ER Fl}l\'DS S 1,7]7,746 1.932,940 

f'<U CASH PROV IDEOCUSEOIOY NOl'IC AI' ITAL 

FlNANCING ACTlv m ES , 1.7]7,746 1,932,940 

CAS H FLOWS FRO~ICAPIT..u.. A.. .... O RfLAT£O FlNA1ot'C L"'G 

ACTI \1T1ES: 

CMIT AL ORAi'ns FROM FED£'RAL £NTlT 1E..<; , 2,031, 176 
ACQuiSITION AND CONSTRUCTION OfCAPfTAL ASSETS (3.3 59.096 ) (14,170) 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES , (1.276,9]0) (14 ,270) 

CAS Il FLOWS FRO;\IINVESiME!'I'T ACTIVITI ES: 

RECEIPTS OF [l><TEREST 9]1 58 

NET CASH PROVIDED fl Y lNVESTMEI\'T ACTIVIT tES S 9] 1 58 

NET I.NCREASE (DECREASE) L" CAS H , 20,990 47,694 
CASH AND CASH EQUI\'ALEJ\"TS - BEGI!'\:-" Ii'-IG 20,773 705,993 

CAS H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS· ENOING , 4 ' 176] 753,687 

RECONCILIATION or OPERATIi'lG TNCO~U:(1..0SS)TO NET 

CASH PRO\'ID[[J\USEDj D\' OPERATIN G ACT 1\'ITltS: 

OPERATING L"ICOM:E(LOSSj , (2,383,808) (4,221 ,658) 
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONClLEOPERAilNG [NCOME 

(LOSS) TO Nfl CASH 

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

DEPREClATION 1,539,943 2 ,407,292 
OTHER NON-OPERATNG REVENUES (EXPENSES) 39,248 

CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LlABlLfT LES: 

ACCOUNTS REnrvABLE (7,1 63) (97,!24) 
DlIE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL O.'TJ":"[ES 32,908 
PR.[PAID ITEMS 9,540 
t\'VENTORY ( 1,585) 14,562 
DEFERRED ourfl.OWS REU,T ED TO PENSIONS (445,561) 

CUSTO MER DEPOSITS (50,199) OO.S21) 
ACCOUNTS PAYABI£ 335.570 34,84) 
CLAIMS llABlLrfY 

DEFERR.ro J}.'Fl.OWS REUTEO TO I'ENS I~S 26,3 00 
DUE ToonlER FUr-iDS 

OTHER LIABIlITIES 473,580 52.332 

I'\£T CAS H PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERA TL'<C ACTI\'ITtCS S (440,767) (1,871,034) 

NON,CAS H OP£RATING, CAPITAL A."iD RELATED 

FINA.'IICING, AND IjI,TESTING Acrr\'lTIES 

CAP IT Ai. COf'<'RlBL"TIONS , 109 ,577 

Tnc fIOICS '0 Ihe r~nP;Ll Sl'Utrl\~~ arc an i~IQil r pM1 of lhis SlIlmlt'Ol . 

" 

.... ,.F, R."'Al 

SCA;\lct 

,m~ rt.,.-OS 

5,977, 133 1,943,241 
2,205,54 7 

(5,068,39 1) ( 1,665,4 13) 
(3,303A5 1) 

16,276,787 
(20.764,205) 

82"908 703,358 

(2.311,801) ( I 300.679) 

3.670,686 

3,670.636 

2,082,176 
(3 1373.3 66) 

(J,19J , 190) 

989 4.075 

989 4,075 

68,684 ( 1,296,604) 
i26.766 1,493,9 17 

795,450 J,202.3 13 

(6,605,466) (2,754,609) 

3,947,135 
39,148 701,367 

( 104,28 7) (2,5~0) 

32,903 ( 105.387) 
9,540 

12,977 
(44 5,56 1) 
(11 1,020) 

370,4 13 1,06 1 
(803,322) 

26,300 
1,662,761 

525 19 12 

(213 11.80 1l ( 1.300.679) 

109,577 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

AGENCY FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

TOTALS 

ASSETS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 13,983 ,356 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, N et 5,790 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 410,104 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 14,399,250 

LIABILITIES 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 12,268,1 97 
DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 796,468 
OTHER PAY ABLES 1,334,585 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 14,399,250 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of Jefferson County, Texas ("County") have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") as applied to governmental units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards"Board-C"GASB") is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental and financial reportingplinciples. The most significant accounting and 
reporting policies of the County are described in the following notes to the financial statements. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. The County is 
governed by Commissioners' C0111i, composed of four County Commissioners and the County 
Judge, all of whom are elected officials. 

The County provides a vast array of services, which include public safety, administration of justice, 
health and human services, recreation services, public improvements, and general administration. 

As required by GAAP, the financial statements of the reporting enti ty i.nclude those of the County 
(the primary government) and its component units in conformity with GASB Statement No. 14, T7,e 
Financial Reporting Entity ("GASB 14"), GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain 
Organizations are Component Units ("GASB 39"), and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial 
Reporting Entity: Omnibus-an amendment ofGASB Statements No. J 4 and No. 34, ("GASB 61"). 

In accordance with these standards, a financial reporting entity consists of the primary government 
and its components units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected 
officials of the County are financially accountable, or the relationship to the County is such that 
exclusion would cause the County's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Blended 
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the County's operations, 
and so data from these units are combined with data of the COWlty. 

The critelia used to determine whether an organization is a component unit of the County and 
whether it is a discretely or a blended component unit includes: financial accountabilityofJefferson 
County for the component unit, appointment of a voting majority, ability to impose the C01111ty'S will 
on the component nnit, fiscal dependency criterion, whether there is a financial benefit to or bnrden 
to the Connty or if operational responsibility for the component nnit rests with management of the 
Connty, and whether services are provided entirely or almost entirely to the primary government. 

Blended Component Units: 

For financial reporting pnrposes, the Sontheast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool (The 
Pool) is included in the operations and activities of the Connty as a blended component nnit. The 
Pool is a pnblic entity risk pool (see Note 13), which the Connty is the sponsor government. The 
Pool provides services almost entirely to the Connty. The Pool is acconnted for as an intemal service 
fund. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Excluded from the reporting entity: 

The following agencies were considered in the detennination of component units of the County's 
financial reporting entity. It was detennined that these entities should not be included as component 
units of the plimruy govemrnent: Jefferson County Navigation Distlict, Drainage District #3, 
Drainage Distlict #6, Drainage District #7, Foreign Trade Zone, Pleasure Island Park Board, 
Jefferson County Health Facilities Development Corporation, Jefferson COUllty Housing Finance 
Corporation, Local Emergency Planning Conunittee (LEPC), aJ1d Jefferson County Industrial 
Development Corporation. 

B. Implementation of New Standards 

In the current year the County implemented the following new standards: 

GASB Statement 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application ("GASB 72"), addresses accounting 
and fmancial reporting issues related to fair value measurements by providing guidaJ1ce for 
deteTI11ining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes ruld guidance for applying fair 
value to certain investments and disclosures related to all fair value measurements. Implementation 
of GASB 72 is reflected in the County's finaJ1cial statements. 

GASB Statement 73, Accounting and Financial ReportingJor Pensions and Related Assets that 
are not 'I'ithin the Scope oj GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions oj GASB 
Statements 67 and 68 ("GASB 73"), establishes requirements for defined benefIt pensions that are 
not within the scope of Statement No. 68, Accountingand Financial ReportingJor Pensions, as well 
as for the assets accumulated for purposes of providing those pensions. In addition, it establishes 
requirements for defined contribution pensions that are not within the scope of Statement 68. It also 
amends certain provisions of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting Jor Pension Plans, and 
Statement 68 for pension plans and pensions that are within their respective scopes. Implementation 
of GASB 73 is reflected in the County's financial statements. 

GASB Statement 76, The Hierarchy oj Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Jor State and 
Local Governments ("GASB 76"), has the objecti ve to identify - in the context of the cun-ent 
govemmental financial reporting enviromnent - the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting 
principles ("GAAP"). Implementation ofGASB 76 is reflected in the County's financial statements. 

C. Financial Statement PI·esentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Govenunent -wide Statements 
Government -wide fulancial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities. These statements report infonnation on all of the non-fIduciary activities of the pri1l1ary 
govermnent and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. However, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

in the process of consolidation. Govemmental acti vi ties, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a 
signifrcant extent 011 fees and-chargesfor support. Likewise, the primary government is financially 
accolmtable. 

The govemment-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focu s and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, revenues are recorded 
when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of 
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for whi ch they are levied . Fines 
and forfeitures are recognized when they have been assessed and adjudicated and eamed. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the County's 
programs are offset by those programs' revenues. Program revenues include; 1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit iI-om goods, services, or privileges 
provided by the program and; 2) grants and contIibutions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational and/or capit al requirements of a par1icular program. Program revenues include those 
generated from General Government, Judicial and Law Enforcement, Education and Recreation, 
Health and Welfare, Contract Services, and Maintenance of Equipment and Structures. Taxes and 
other items not included among program revenues are repor1ed instead as general revenues. 

Miscellaneous general revenues consist of non-program specific contributions. 

Agency funds are excluded in the government-wide presentation of the financial statements. 

Fund-level Statements 

All govenunental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. , when they become 
both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be 
determined and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
be used to pay liabilities of the CUlTent period. The County considers property taxes and other 
revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on governmental long-term debt are 
recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service 
fund for pa)~nents to be made early in the fo llowing year. Grant and entitlement revenues are also 
susceptible to accrual. Encumbrances are used during the year and any remaining encumbrances are 
liquidated at fisca l year end. These funds are accounted for on a spending "financial flow" 
measurement focus. Thi s means that only current assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources, 
and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance (net 
position) is considered a measure of "available spendable resources." Govenunental fund operating 
statements present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of 
sources and uses of "available spendable resources" during a period. 

All proprietary funds, including the enterprise funds and internal service funds, and fiduciary funds, 
including agency funds, are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when earned, arld expenses when they are incurred. Claims incurred but not reported are 
included in payables and expenses. These funds are accounted for using a cost of service or "capital 
maintenance" measurement focus. Tbis means that all assets and liabilities (whether current or non­
current) associated with their activity are included in the funds' balance sheets. The Agency funds 
are custodial in nature and involve no measurement of results of operations. 

The accounts of the County are orgarllzed arld operated on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a 
separ-ate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. 
Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based on the purpose 
for which they are to be spent and the means by wbich spending activities are controlled. 

Funds ar-e classified into three categories: Governmental, Proplietary, and Fiduciary. The County 
reports the following major funds: 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS: Used to account for all or most of a government's general activity. 

General Fund - used to account for the general operations of the County. 

Capital Projects Fund - used to account for all other capital projects of the County for wlllch a 
separate fund has not been established. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS: Used to account for operations that are financed in a manl1er similar to 
those in the private sector, where the detenl1ination of net income is appropriate for sound financial 
adrnilllsh·ation. 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport - used to account for the day-to-day operation of the County airport. 
These facilities are financed primarily through user charges. 

Ford Park - used to account for the day-to-day operation ofFord Park. 111ese facilities ar-e fil18nced 
plirnarily tluough user charges. 

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds - used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one 
department or agency of the COUl1ty to other County departments or agencies on a cost 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

reimbursement basis. TIle County reports three intemal service fund: I) Liability Insurance - to 
account for the County's conuibution and paym ent for liability claims, 2) Workers' Compensation­
to accoWlt for-County' s contribution-and payment for-workers' 'compensation claims, and 3) 
Southeast Texas Govemment Employee Benefits Pool - to account for the County' s Public Entity 
Risk Pool, which provides group health insurance programs for member goverrunents including 
comprehensive major medical and dental care. 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS: Used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and 
therefore cannot be used to support the goverrunent's own programs. 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent on behalf of a third 
p31iy. The County reports eleven agency funds held for various third paliies outside the primary 
goverrunent: Treasurer Maintained Fund, County Clerk Fund, District Clerk Fund, Sheriff's Fund, 
Justice of the Peace Fund, Tax Assessor/Collector Fund, Distri ct Attomey's Seizure Fund, 
Conununity Supervision Trust Fund, Juvenile Probation Trust Fund, Flexible Spending, and 
Women's Center Trust Fund. 

Propri etary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses limn non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from pro viding services 3l1d producing goods in connection 
with the proprietary fund's principal operations. The principal operating revenues ofthe Jack Brooks 
Regional Airpmi and Ford Park are user fees. Operating revenues in the Intemal Service Funds 
consist primarily of charges to the valious County departments. Operating expenses in the enterprise 
and intemal selvice funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, incurred 
and estimated claims, salaries & benefits, materials and supplies, maintenance and repairs, utilities, 
miscellaneous, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these 
definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both reshicted and unrestri cted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources to the extent they are needed. 

D. Budgets 

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data refl ected in the financi al 
statements. 

o Department alillual budget requests are submitted by the Department or Agency Head to 
the County Auditor 's office during the third quarter of the fiscal year for the upcoming 
fiscal year to begin October I. 

o The County Auditor's office prepares an estimate of available resources for the upcoming 
fi scal year. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

Note 1- Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

o The County Auditor's office prepares the proposed annual operating budget to be 
presented to the Commissioners' Court for their consideration. The budget represents the 
financial plan for the new fiscal year. 

o Public hearings are held on the proposed budget. 

o The Commissioners' Court must adopt an annual operating budget by a majority vote of 
the Conunissioners' Court before October 1. The adopted budget must be balanced; that 
is, available resources must be sufficient to support aJU1ual appropriations. 

o The department is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners' Court approval 
is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may not increase 
the total budget. 

o The Commissioners' Court may approve expenditures as an amendment to the budget in 
an emergency situation that could not have been foreseen at the time the original budget 
was approved. 

o Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and Debt Service Funds. 
Budgets for Grant Funds are established pursuant to grant awards and budgets for Capital 
Projects are established on a project basis. 

o Appropriations lapse at year-end for all budgeted funds. 

o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP. 

E. Deposits and Investments 

The County's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
cer1ificates of deposits, and short-tenn investments with original maturities of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition. 

State statute authorizes the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and Federal 
Agencies, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, Bankers' acceptances, money market mutual 
funds, and direct obligations of the State of Texas. 

Investments for the County are stated at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices with the 
difference between the purchase price and market price being recorded as earnings on investments. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. Encumbrances 

'Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and servic'es, 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other cmmnitments for the 
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to rese!ve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is 
employed. All encumbrances are liquidated at fi scal year end. 

G. Receivables and Pay abIes 

Property taxes are levied based on taxable value at January I prior to September 30 and become due 
October 1,2015 and past due after January 31,2016. Accordingly, receivables and revenues for 
property taxes are reflected on the govelmnent-wide statement based on the full accrual method of 
accounting. Property tax receivables for plior year's levy are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible. 

Recei vables Ii-mn other govelmnents include amount due from grantors for approved grants for 
specific programs and reimbursements for services perfonned by the County. Program grants are 
recorded as receivables and revenues at the time all eligibility requirements established by the 
provider have been met. 

Reimbursements for services perfonned are recorded as receivables and revenues when they are 
eamed in the govelmnent-wide statements. Included are fines and costs assessed by court action and 
billable services for certain contracts. Revenues received in advance of the costs being incurred are 
recorded as uneamed revenue in the fund statements. Receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible. 

Lending or borrowing between funds is reflected as "due to" or "due from" (cUlTent portion) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (non-current). Advances between funds, as reported in the fund 
financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable govennnental funds 
to indicate that they are 1I0t available for approPliation and are not expendable available financial 
resources. lnterfund activity reflected in "due to" or "due from" is eliminated on the govenmlent­
wide statements. 

H. Interfund Transactions 

DUling the COUl'Se of nmmal operations, the County has many transactions between funds. The 
accompanying fund level financial statements reflect as transfers the reSOUl'ces provided and the 
expenditures used to provide se rvices, construct assets, and meet debt service requirements. The 
effect of interfund activity has been eliminated in the Goverrunent-Wide fmancial statements, except 
for transactions between govelmnental and business-type activities. 
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I. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the "first-in/first-out" method. 
Reported inventories in the goverrunental funds are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates 
they are unavailable for appropriations even though they are a component of net cunent assets. 
Inventory policy on govemment-wide statements is consistent with fund statements. 

Certain payments to vendors ref1ect cost applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both govemment-wide and fund financial statements and in the fund financial 
statements are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates they are unavailable for 
appropriations even though they are a component of net current assets. 

The cost of governmental fund type inventOIles and prepaid items are recorded as expenditures when 
consumed rather than when they are purchased (consumption method). 

J. Capital Assets and Infrastructure 

Capi tal assets include: land, land improvements, bu ildings and building improvements, park 
improvements and facilities, equipment, machinery, vehicles, other tangible and intangible assets, 
and infrastructure that are used in the County 's operations and benefits more than a single fiscal year. 
Infrastructu re assets are long-lived assets that are geuerally stationary in nature and can typically be 
preserved for a significantly greater number of years than other capital assets. Infi:astructure assets of 
the County includ e roads and bridges. 

Capital assets of the County are defined as assets with individual costs of $1 0,000 or more and 
estimated useful lives in excess of one year. All capital assets are stated at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at 
acquisition cost, which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service 
potential at the acquisition date. 

It is the County's policy not to capi tali ze interest on construction for capital assets reported in the 
governm ental activities of the govemment-wide financial statements. 

Capital assets are depreciated in the government-wide financial statements nsing the straight-line 
method over the following useful lives: 
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K. Compensated Absences 

. Rl!t;lwa,~ 

Buildings 

Building Improvements 

Equipment 

Machinery 

Vehicles 

Other tangible assets 

Computer software 

Infrastructure: 

Bridges 

Roads 

Years 

20,35 
40 

15-25 

3-7 

15 

4- 15 

7-10 

3-5 

25 

40 

Accumulated compensatOlY leave, vacation and sick leave that have matured (reimbursable leave 
still outstanding following an employee's resignati on or retirement) are reported as expenditures in 
the respective govenunelltal funds. Accumulated compensated absences that have not matured are 
reported as long-term liabilities in the governmental activities column of the govemrnent-wide 
Statement of Net Position. The majority of these have typically been liquidated from the General 
Fund in previous years. Accumulated compensated absences of Proprietary Funds are recorded as an 
expense and liability in the respective fund and the business-type activities column of the 
govenllnent-wide Statement of Activities as the benefit accrues for the employee. 

Employees are allowed to accrue 13 days of sick leave per year. Sick leave benefits are recognized 
as expenditures as they are used by the employees. Employees may accumulate up to 1,440 hours of 
sick leave. For employees with 8 years of servi ce and hired prior to October 1,2002, unused sick 
leave benefits are paid at 50% at tennination. For employees with 8 years of service and hired after 
October I, 2002, unused sick leave benefits are paid at 10% at tennination. 

Employees with more than one year of service accrue from two to five weeks vacation per year, 
depending on years of service. Unused vacation benefits lapse on March 15 for the previous 
calendar year. Upon termination ii·om County employment, an employee shall be entitled to payment 
for total accrued but unused hours of vacation. 

Non-exempt employees eam compensatory time at one and one-halftimes their full rate of pay times 
the excess of40 hours per week worked. TIle compensatOly time balance for non-exempt employees 
may not exceed 80 hours except for law enforcement employees, which may accumulate up to 480 
hours. Hours in excess of the maximum must be paid to the non-exempt empl oyee at the rate of one 
and a half times the regular rate. Upon termination, non-exempt employees will be paid for 
compensatory time at their wage rate at time of tennination. Compensatory time is carried forward 
indefmitely. 

38 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

Note 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund fi nancial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-tenn obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the li fe of the bonds using the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable are repOlied net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount. In the fund finan cial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
di scounts during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is repOlied as other financing 
sources. Prerniums received on debt issuances are reported as other financial sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. 

M. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. TIlis separate financial statement element, defelTed outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so w ill not 
be recognized as an outflow ofresources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County has two 
items that qualify for reporting in tlTis categoly. The first is deferred loss on refunding bonds 
repolied in the govenunent-wide statement of net position. A deferred loss on refunding bonds 
results from the difference in the calrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisiti on price. This 
amount is deferred and amorti zed over the shOlier ofthe li fe of the refunded or refunding debt. The 
second is deferred inflows rel ated to pensions. 

In addition to liabiliti es in the statement of financial position will sometimes repmi a separate section 
for deferred inflows ofresources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents illl acquisition of net position that applies to a future peliod(s) and so will not 
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has two items that 
qualify for reporting in thi s category. The first arises only under a modified accrual basis of 
accounting, which qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, that item, unavailable 
reven.ue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The govenunental funds report 
unavailable revenues from propeli)' taxes, grants, and inmate housing. These amounts are deferred 
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the peri od that the amollnts become available. The 
second item is deferred outflows related to pensions and is only recorded in the govenul1ent-wide 
financials. 

N. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows ofresources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expenses, infonnation about the Fiduciary Net 
Position of the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) and additions to/deductions 
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from TCDRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been detennined on the same basis as they are reported 
by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefitstenn s. -Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

O. Net Position and Fund Balances 

Net Position Classifications 

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows (inflows) of resources, and 
liabilities. 

Net position in the proprietary fund financial statements and the govemment-wide financial 
statements are classified in tluee categories: 1) Net investment in capital assets, 2) Restricted net 
position, and 3) Umestricted net position. 

In the proprietary fund ful3Jlcial statements and ill the govemment-wide financial statements, 
restricted net position is repOlted for amounts that are externally restricted by I) creditors (eg. bond 
covenants), grantors, contributions, or laws and regulations of other govemments, or 2) law through 
constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

Fund Balance Classification 

The govenunental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that 
comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor 
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective govemmental funds can be 
spent. The classifications used in the govenullental fun financial statements are as follows: 

• Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that camlot be spellt because they are 
either (a) not in spendable fOlln or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. Nonspendable items are not expected to be converted to cash or not expected to be 
converted to cash within the next year. 

• Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on 
the use ofthe resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributions, or 
laws or regnlations of other govellU11ents, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

• COlmnitted: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by court resolution of the COlmnissioners' Court, the 
County's highest level of decision making authority. These amounts camlot be used for any 
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other purpose unless the Commissioners' Court removes or changes the specified use by 
taking the same type of action that was employed when the funds were initially committed. 
This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources 
have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 

• Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County's intent to 
be used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed . When it is 
appropriate for fund balance to be assigned, the COImnissioners' Court retains the 
responsibility to assign funds. Assignments may occur subsequent to fiscal year end. 

• Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balances for the General Fund. 
The lU1assigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other 
govennnental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of assigned fund balance amowlts. 

When expenditure is inClUTed for purposes for which both restricted and umestricted fund balance is 
available, the County considers restricted fund to have been spent first. When expenditure is 
incuned for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are avai lable, the County 
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally 
unassigned. 

P. Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of cash flows, the. County considers all highly liquid investments (includingrestricted) 
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

Q. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and Ii abilities at 
the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments 

In fiscal year 2016, the County adopted GASB Statement 72 ("GASB 72"), Fair Value 
Measurement and Application. GASB 72 was issued to address accounting and financial 
reporting issues related fair value measurements. 

The COlU1ty categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
general accepted accounting plinciples. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Levell inputs are quoted prices in active markets for 
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identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable imputes; and Level 3 inputs are 
significant unobservable inputs. As of September 30, 2016, the County held the following fair 
fai r value measurements:' 

Investments by fair value level 

u. S. Agency Securities 
Money Market Account 
Certificates of Deposit 

Balance 
9/30/2016 

$ 1,005,615 
7,727 

12,000,940 

$13 ,0 14,282 

Levell 

$ $ 

$ $ 

Level 2 Level 3 

1,005,615 $ 

7,727 
12,000,940 

13 ,014,282 $ 

Weighted 
Average 
Maturity 

(days) 

797 
30 

1,027 

1,009 

Interest Rate Risk - Fair value fluctuates with interest rates and increasing rates may cause fair 
value to decline below cost. In compliance with the County's Investment Policy, the County 
minimized interest rate lisle by limiting the weighted average maturity of the portfolio to 1,096 
days with a stated final maturity date not to exceed 3 years from the date of purchase. In 
addition, the portfolio is structured so that securities mature to meet cash flow requirements, 
thereby avoiding the need to sell secUlities plioI' to matulity and below the Oliginal cost. 

Credit Risk - In compliance with the County's investment policy, as of September 30, 2016, all 
of the County's purchased investments in U.S. Agency Securities were rated AA+ and Aaa by 
Standard & Poor's and Moody's respectively. 

Concentration Risk - TIle County's investment policy is to diversify its portfolio to eliminate the 
lisle of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or 
a specific class of investment. As of September 30, 2016, the County had three investments that 
were with Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), and two investments that were with 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). 

Custodial credit lisle - deposits - In the case of deposits, this is the lisle that in the event of a bank 
failure, the COWlty's deposits may not be retumed to it. The County's investment policy is to have 
all checking accounts placed at the County DepositOly Bank under a depositOlY contract. The 
$74,045,740 bank balance and the Money Market account were covered by federal depository 
insurance or collateralized with securities held by the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company. 
All of the certificates of deposi ts are covered by federal depository insurance. 

Note 3 - Propertv Taxes and Other Receivables 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January I. Taxes are levied on October 
1 and payable by January 31 of the following year. The County bills and collects its own property 
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taxes and it also bills and collects taxes for Jefferson County Navigation District, Jefferson Comty 
Drainage District #3, #6, and #7, POlt of Beaumont, Port ofPOlt Arthur, Water District #10, 
Nederland Independent School District, Northwest Forest Municipal Utility Distri ct, Emergency 
Services District #2, Trinity Bay Conservation District, Port of Sabine Pass, Sabine Pass Independent 
School Dishict, Port Atthur Independent School District, City of Port Arthur, Hamshire Fannett 
Independent School Disttict, POlt Neches-Groves Independent School District, Beaumont 
Independent School District, City of Beaumont, City of Groves, City of Nederland, City of Port 
Neches, City of Bevil Oaks, Emergency Service District #1, Emergency Service District #3, and the 
Emergency Service Disttict #4. Collections of these taxes and remittance of them to the various 
distri cts are accounted for in the Tax Assessor - Coll ector Agency Fund. The County is pemnitted by 
the State Constitntion to levy taxes up to $.80 per $1 00 of assessed valuation for general government 
services and the payment of principal arld interest on Long-Term Debt. In addition to its taxes 
subject to the $.80 tax limitation, the County's voters have authorized the levyofa special tax of $.15 
per $100 assessed va luation so lely for road maintenar1ce expenses. The County is also authorized by 
the voters to levy the Fann to Market and Lateral Road Tax of$.30 per $100 of assessed value for 
the purpose of maintaining roads and bridges. 

For the year ended September 30, 201 6, the combined tax rate to finance general govenunent 
services and the payment of principal and interest on long-tenn debt was $.365. 

On February I of the following calendar year the tax bill becomes delinquent and penalty ai1d interest 
is assessed by the County. The County Conunissioners issue a tax levy for the County's General and 
Debt Service Funds. The levy and collections are restricted to the funds they are allocated for. The 
delinquent tax receivables and penalty and interest receivables represent the past thirty years of 
uncollected tax levies. The allowance for uncollectible was set at thirty percent of the gross tax 
receivable and sixty percent on penalty arld interest as of September 30, 2016. The allowance has 
been recorded for property taxes and Penalty and Interest, which are estimated to be uncollectible as 
required by generally accepted accounting. 

Property tax receivables of$4,252,029 as of September 30, 201 6 are repOliednet of an allowance for 
uncollectible taxes of $1,822,298. 

Penalty and Interest receivables of $2,029,800 as of September 30, 2016 are repOlied net of an 
allowance for uncollectible accounts of $3,044,699 . 

Receivables as of September 30, 2016 consist of the following: 
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Jack 
Capital Brooks Internal 
ProjectS NOll Major Regiooal Serviee 

General -Fimcr Funds - AirPon Ford Park Fun-d5 

Receivables: 

Accounts S 209,496 $ S 135,632 $ 41 ,351 S 254 ,499 S 31 ,939 

Employee 26,809 4,255 528 

Taxes 5,935,261 139,066 

Penalty & 
Inleresl 4,958,324 116,175 

Imer-
govemmenta] 7,400,767 35,673 1,340,525 951,783 775,757 

Gross 
Receivables S 18,530.657 $ 35,673 $ 1,735 ,653 S 993,662 S 254,499 S 307,696 

Less: Allowance 
[0. 

Uncollectibles 4,755,572 111 ,425 24,900 

Net total 
receivables .$ 13.775,085 $ 35,673 S 1,624 ,228 S 993,662 S 229,599 S 307,696 

Agency 
t wias Total 

S 5,790 S 678,707 

31 ,592 

6,074,327 

5,074.499 

4\0.104 10.414,609 

S 415,894 S 22,273,734 

4.891 ,897 

S 415.894 $ 17.381.837 

As of September, 30, 2016, the vanous components of unearned revenue reported in the 
govelmnental funds were as follows: 

Unearned 

Advanced Funcling (Non-major Special Revenue Funds) $ 845,803 

Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 845,803 

Note 4 - Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers 

In the fund financial statements, interfund balances are the result of nonna] transactions between 
funds and will be liquidated in the subsequent fi scal year. Balances between individual 
govenU11ental funds and between govenU11ental funds and internal services funds are eliminated in 
the govenllnent-wide financial statements. 

The composition of inter fund balances as of September 30, 2016, is as follow s: 
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Due tolfrom other funds: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund A mount 

General Fund Nomnajor governmental funds 
Internal Service funds 

$ 961,020 
3,813,276 

Total $ 4,774 ,296 

All of the due to/from transactions are routine in nature. 

The following is a summary of the County's transfers for the year ended September 30, 2016: 

General Fund 

Transfers )n: 

General $ 

Capita! Projects Fund 105,456 

Norul lajor Funds 986,086 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport 1,737,746 

Forti Park ).9)?,940 

S 4,762 ,228 

Transfers Out: 

Capital 
Project Fund 

5 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

$ 139,709 

23,695 

46,471 197,462 

5 46,47 1 $ 360.866 

TOlal 

5 139,709 

129,151 

1,230,019 

1,737,746 

1,932.940 

$ 5, 169.565 

Transfers in the amount 0[$1,737,746 from the General Fund to the Jack Brooks Regional Airport 
were to subsidize operations at the airpOIt. Transfers in the amount of$I,932,940 to Ford Park were 
to subsidize operations of the complex. All other transfers are routine in nature such as grant 
matches, ongoing capital projects, and residual fund balance transfers for close out of funds. 

Transfers in the amount of$62,914 for Ford Park were made between govenunental activities and 
business-type activities for capital assets purchases which were donated to business-type activities in 
the govenunent wide statements. 

Note 5 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,2016 was as follows: 
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Restated - Balanee Balance 
October 1, 20 I 5 Additions Delelions Transfer SeEtember 30, ')016 

GoyerruneDlaJ _ ActiviJies: 

Land S 3,840,787 S S S I 3,840,787 

Construclion work in progress 19,964,968 7,140,982 (\143,442) 24,962,508 

Total capital assets not depreciated S 23,805,755 S 7,140,982 S I (2,143,442) S 28,803,295 

Infi"asl:llJeture 59,114,166 59,114,166 

Buildings & Improvements 101,718,1l3 228,650 2,143,442 105,090,205 

Equipment 41,959,248 1,973,481 (1.331,284) 42,601,445 

Total capital assets depreciated S 203,791,527 S 2,202,131 S (l,331,284) S 2,143,442 S 206,805,816 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Infrasrructllre (39,639,351 ) (1,446,789) (41,086,140) 

Buildings & Improvements (63,666,395) (1,994,8991 (65,661,294) 

Equipment (28,919,410) (2,781,865) 1,202,918 (30.498,357) 

Total accumulated depreciation S (J32,125,156) S (6,223,553 ) S 1.201,918 S S (137.245,7911 

Toral '.:apilal assets depreciatuL nel S 71,566,371 S (4,0
' 

1.4'))) 5 (l28,366) S 2,143,44') S 69,560,025 

Govemmental activities capital a~sets, net $ 95.372,126 S 3,119,560 S ( 128,366) 5 S 98,363,320 

Balance October 1, Balance 
?015 Additions Deletions Transfer September 30,2016 

Business-type Activ]'ties 

Land S 5,154,600 S S S S 5,154,600 

Construction work in pmgress 2.893.850 3.355,046 6.'48.896 

Total capital assets not depreciated S 8.048.450 S 3,355,046 S $ S 11,403,496 

Buildings & Improvements 129,843,264 (522,981) 129,320,283 

Equipment 12,335,094 124.272 12,459,366 

Total capital assets depreciated S 142,178,358 S 124,272 $ (522,981 ) S S 141,779,649 

Less accumnlated depreciation for: 

Buildings & Improvements (58,450,751 ) (3,279,483) 179,925 (61,550,309) 

Equipment (8,668,960) (669,353) (9,338.313) 

Total accumulated depreciation S (67,119,711 ) S (3,948,836) S 179.925 S S (70,888,62?) 

Total capital assets depreciated, Det S 75,058,647 S (3,8')4.564) S (343,056) S S 70,891,027 

Business-type aetivities capital assets, net S 83,107,097 S (469,518) S (343,056) $ S 82,294.523 
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Depreciation expense was charged to the programs of the plimary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General Government 
Judicial & Law Enforcement 
Health & Welfare 
Maintenance - Equipment & Structures 

Total depreciation expense - governmental 
activit ies 

Business-type activities: 

Southeast Texas Regional Airport 
Ford Park 

Total depreciation expense - business-type 
activities 

Note 6 - Operating Leases 

County as Lessor 

$ 794,176 
2,360,335 

110,843 
2,958,199 

$6,223,553 

$1,539,943 
2,407,292 

$3,947,235 

The Cmmty has entered into various operating Jeases of County-owned property to others as 
described below: 

The County's airport conducts a major part of its operations fi'om Jeased faci lities, which 
include office and parking lot spaces for car rental agencies, tenninal space for one airline, a 
travel agency, and hanger space. All leases are classified as operating leases. The rental 
payments under the leases for the car rental agencies are based on a minimum rental plus a 
percentage of sales. The rental payments under the leases for the hanger spaces and travel 
agent are based on a fixed amount per square foot of space leased. All ofthe operating leases 
are month to month and will expire over the next two years and include 30-day cancellation 
clauses. In 1110st cases, the County expects that in the 110nnal course of business, leases wi ll 
be renewed or replaced by other leases. 

The County's airport has nine leases for land located either in the Private Hangar Park or 
surrounding the Airport. These leases are classified as operating leases. The rental payments 
under the leases for the land are a fixed amount for a twenty-five or thirty year period. 111ese 
leases are noncancellable. 
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The following schedule provides an analysis of the County's investment in property on operating 
leases and property held for lease by major classes as of September 30, 2016: 

Airport Terminal & Buildings $ 12,236,087 

Airport Private Hangar Park and Land 3,249,396 

$ 15,485,483 

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,543,241) 

$ 10,942,242 

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rentals on noncancellable operating leases 
as of September 30, 2016: 

Fiscal Year Ending: September 30 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022-2026 

2027-203 [ 

2032-2036 

2037-2041 

2042-2044 

Total 

S 406, i57 

328,797 

248299 

243,129 

230,731 

715,231 

355,199 

321,187 

331,727 

241,639 

S 3,422,096 

Minimum future rentals do not include contingent rentals, which may be received as stipulated in the 
lease contracts. These contingent rental payments occur only if the use exceeds a certain level of 
activity each year. There were no contingent rentals on Airport cancellable operating leases for the 
year ended September 30, 2016. 

Note 7 - Long-Term Debt 

General Obligation Bonds 

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and constmction of 
major capital facilities. All of the 2012 Refunding Bonds and 72% ($828,017) of the 2011 
Refunding Bonds funded and benefited business-type activities, though resources of the 
governmental activities are being used to liquidate the debt. All other general obligation bonds have 
been issued for governmental-type activities. The original amount of general obligation bonds issued 
in prior years was $54,195,000. 
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General obligation bonds are direct obligation and pledge the fu ll fai th and credit on the government. 
General obligation bonds cunently outstanding are as follows: 

$1,340,0002013 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $265,000 to 
$275,000 through August 1,2018; interest rates ranging from .62% to 1.93%. 

$47,305,00020 12 Refunding Bonds due in annual installments from $780,000 to 
$4,465 ,000 through August I , 2025; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0%. 

$5,550,00020 11 Refunding Bonds due in aunual installments from $55,000 to 
$1, 150,000 through August 1,2017; interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 3.0%. 

Total General Obligation Bonds 

$540 ,000 

34,380,000 

1,150,000 

$3 6,070,000 

Arumal debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Principal Interest Total 

20 17 $ 4,690,000 $ 1,41 0,930 $ 6, I 00,930 
2018 3,640,000 1,264,257 4,904 ,257 
2019 3,450 ,000 1,158,000 4,608,000 
2020 3,620,000 1,020,000 4,640,000 
202 1 3,745,000 857,700 4,602,700 
2022-2025 16,925,000 1,540,300 18,465,300 

Total $ 36,070
1
000 $ 7,251,187 $ 43,321,1 87 

There is currently $581,539 available in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation 
bonds. The County has no authorized but unissued bonds at September 30,2016. 

There are a number oflimi tations and restri ctions contained i.n the various bond debentures regarding 
authorized uses of bond proceeds. The County is in compliance with all significant limitations and 
restrictions. 

Capital Lease Obligations: 

111e County has entered into lease agreement for financing the acquisition of electronic election 
system hardware and software. This lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounti.ng 
purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease 
payments as of the inception date. The asset acquired through capital leases is recorded at 
$1,707,363 for govenunental funds. The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value 
of these minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2016, were as follows: 
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Year Ending September 30 

20-17 

2018 

2019 

2020 

Total minimum lease payment') 
Less: amount representing interest 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

369,835 

369,835 

369,835 

369,836 
1,479,341 

(95,373) 

Present value of minimum lease payments ~~==="= $ 1,383,968 

Conduit Debt Obligations 

The County has issued Housing Finance Corporation Bonds and Industrial Development Corporation 
Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of 
facilities deemed to be in the public interest The bonds are secured by the property financed and are 
payable solely from payments received on the underlying loans, Upon repayment of the bonds, 
ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector enti!'j serviced by the bond 
issuance, Neither the County, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any 
m3.1mer for repayment of the bonds, Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the 
accompanying financial statements, As of September 30, 2016, there were two series of Jefferson 
Coun!'j Housing Finance Corporation Bonds with an aggregate principal amount payable of 
$12,466,735, and one series of Jefferson Industrial Development Bonds with an aggregate principal 
amount payable of $44, 190,000, 

Arbitrage Rebate Liabilitv 

The Tax Refonn Act of 1986 established regulations for the rebate to the federal govenunent of 
arbitrage earnings on certain local govenunent bonds issued after December 31,1985, and all local 
govermnental bonds issued after August 31,1986, Issuing govenunents must calculate any rebate 
due and remit the amount due at least every fi ve years, As of September 30, 2016, there are no 
estimated liabilities for arbitrage rebate on govemmental debt The Debt Service Fund and the 
residual balance in the Capital Project Fund have typically been used to liquidate the arbitrage 
liability in previous years, 

Ch3.11geS in long-tenn liabilities 

Long-tenn liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2016 was as follows: 
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Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions EDdinS! Balance 

Governmental Activities: 

Bonds Payable 

General obligation bonds $ 40,660,000 $ $ (4,590,000) $ 36,070,000 

l ess defen"ed amounts: 

Premiwns 3,784,323 (416,869) 3,367,454 

Total bonds payable $ 44 ,444 ,323 S $ (5,006,869) $ 39,437,454 

Capital Leases 1,707,363 (323,395) 1,383,968 

Claims and Judgments 2,685,623 2 1,396,18 1 (22,199,503) 1,882,301 

Compensated Absences 12,156,652 928,0 10 (791 ,084) 12,293,578 

Pension Liabili ty 47,988,665 36,136,885 (1 1,532,577) 72 ,592 ,973 

OPEB ObligJtions 78 ,823 ,517 18,166,06 1 (4,309,953) 92,679,625 

Governmental Activit ies 

l ong-tenn liabilities $ 187,806,143 S 76,627 , 137 1(44 , 163,38 1) $ 220,269,899 

Business-type Activities: 

COinpen.<;ated Absences $ 254,368 $ 13,130 S (62 ,60 1) S 204,897 

Pension Liabili ty 879,629 662,386 (2 11 ,391 ) 1,330,624 

Bus iness-type Act ivities 

Long-term liabilities S 1,133,997 $ 675,5 16 $ (273,992 ) S J ,535.52 1 

Due within 
One Year 

$ 4,690,000 

$ 4 ,690 ,000 

369,835 

1,882 ,30 1 

782,875 

$ 7,725 ,0 11 

$ 57,293 

$ 57 ,293 

Compensated absences liabilities are 110lmally liquidated by the general fund for governmental 
activities and by the corresponding enterprise fund for business type activities, Claims and 
judgments of govemmental funds are nonnally paid from the corresponding internal service fund, 
Claims and judgments of the public entity risk pool are nonnally paid from the corresponding 
intemal service fund, Pension liabilities are normally liquidated by the corresponding funds in 
govemmental activities and by the conesponding enterprise fund for business type activities. OPEB 
Obligations are nonnally liquidated by the General Fund, 

Note 8 - Defmed Benefit Pension Plan 

Plan Description. The County pmiicipates in a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the 
statewide Texas County and DistJict Retirement System ("TCDRS"), The Board of Trustees of 
TCDRS is responsible for the admini stration of the statewide agent, multiple-employer, public 
employee retirement system consisting of nontraditional defined benefit pension plmls, TCDRS 
issues a publicly available comprehensive a1111ual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at 
wv.'W. tcdrs.org. 

All full and part-time non-temporary employees participate in the plan, regardless of the number of 
hours they work in a year, Employees in a temporary position are not eligible for membership , 
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Benefits Provided. TCDRS provides retirement, disability and death benefits for all eligible 
employees. Benefit tenns are established by the TCDRS act. The benefit terms may be amended as 
of January I, each year, 'bust must remain in conformity with the Act. 

Members can retire at age 60 and above with 8 or more years of service, with 20 years of service 
regardless of age, or when the sum oftheir age and years of service equals 75 or more. Members are 
vested after eight years of service, but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to 
receive any employer-financed benefit. Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a 
lump sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer. 

Benefi t amoUllts are determined by the SUln of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, 
and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the 
goveming body of the employer within the actuarial consh'aints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that 
the resulting benefits can be expected to be adeqnately financed by the employer's cOlmnihnent to 
contribute. At retirement, death or disability, the benefit is calculated by converting the sum of the 
employee's accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a monthly 
annuity using armuitypurchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act. Updated armuitypurchase rates 
will go into effect for post-2017 benefit accruals eamed after 2017. Benefits accrued before 2018 
will not be impacted by this update. 111is change was reflected in the 2015 actuarial valuation, 

Employees covered by benefit terms 

At the December 31,2015 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered 
by the benefit tenus: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yel receiving benefits 

Active employees 

771 

622 

1.214 

2 607 

Contributions. 111e contribution rates for employees in TCDRS are either 4%, 5%,6%, or 7% of 
employee gross eamings, as adopted by the employer's governing body. Participating employers are 
required to contribute at actuarially detennined rates to ensure adequate funding for each employer's 
plan. Under the state law goveming TCDRS, the contribution rate for each entity is detennined 
arumally by the actuary and approved by the TCDRS Board of Trustees, The replacement life entry 
age actuarial cost method is used in detennining the contribution rate. The actuarially detennined 
rate is the estimated amoUl1t necessary to fund benefrts in an orderly manner for each participate over 
his or her career so that sufficient funds are accumulated by the time benefit payments begin, with aJ1 
additional amount to finaJ1ce my unfunded accrued liability. 

Employees for the County were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross eamings during the 
fiscal year. The contribution rates for the County were 17.66% and 17.61 % in calendar years 2015 
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and 2016, respectively. The County's contributions to TCDRS for the year ended September 30, 
2016, were $11,644,582, and were equal to the required contributions. 

Net Pension Liability. The County's Net Pension Liability(NPL) was measured as of December 31, 
2015, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

A cfllarial Assl/ IIlptiOIlS 

The Total Pension Liabilityin the December 31,2015, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 

Overall payroll growth 

Investment rate of return 

3.0% per year 

3.5% per year 

8.1 %, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inilation 

Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the following: 

Depositing members 

Service retirees, beneficiaries 
and non-depositing members 

Disabled retirees 

The RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality Table for males with a 
two-year set-forward and the RP-2000 Active Employee Mortality 
Table for females with a four-year se1back, both with the 
projection scale AA and then projec1ed with J J 0% of the MP-
2014 Ultimate scale after that. 

The RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected to 2014 with 
scale AA and then projected with J 10% of the MP-20l4 Ultimate 
scale after that) with a oue-year set-forward for males and no age 
adjustment for females. 

RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table projected 10 2014 with scale 
AA and then projected wi th 110% of the MP-20l4 Ultimate scale 
after that, with no age adjustment for males and a two-year set­
forward for females. 

111e actuaIial assumptions that detennined the total pension liability as of December 31,2015, were 
based 011 the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2009 through 
December 31, 2012, except formOliality assumptions. MOliality assumptions were updated for the 
2015 valuation to reflect projected improvements. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 8.10%. The pension plan's 
policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the 
TCDRS Board of Trustees. 
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The 10ng-telID expected rate ofretum on TCDRS is detennined by adding inflation to expected long­
tenn real retums, and reflecting expected volatility and cOlTelation. TIle capital market assumptions 
and-tnfonnation below are based on-January 2016-infonnatiem·for a -jlo' IO yeartime-horizon; The 
valuation assumption for long-tenn expected rerum is re-assessed at a minimum of every four years, 
and is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was perfonned in 2013. The 
target allocation and best estimates of geometlic real rates retum for each major assets class are 
sUlmnarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

US Equities 

Plivate Equit)' 

Global Equilies 

InLernational Equities - Developed 
International Equities - Emerging 

inveslmeot-Grade Bonds 

H igh-Yield Bouds 

OppOitunistic Credit 

Direcl Lending 

Distressed Debl 

REIT Equities 

Master limited Pannerships (MLPs) 

Private Real Esl.a!e Pannerships 

Hedge Funds 

Benchmark 

Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market Index 

Cambtidge Associates Globa l Private Equity & 
Venrure Capila1lndex 0) 

MSel World (nee) lndex 

MSCl World Ex US A (n~l) 

MSCI World Ex USA (neL) 

8 arcJays Capilal Aggregate Boud lnde.>;; 

C iligroup High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 

Citigroup High-Yield C ash-Pay Capped Index 

Cilig:roup High- Yield C ash-Pay Capped Index 

Ciligroup High- Yield Cash-Pay Capped Index 

67% flS E NARErT Equity REITs Index T 33% 
FRSE EPRNNAREIT Globa l Real Estate Index 

AJelian M LP Index 

Camblidge Assoc iates R eal Estate Index (~) 

Hedge Fund Research , Inc. (HFRI) Fund of 
Funds Composite Index 

(lJ Tmget asset al/ocatioll adopted 01 [he April 1016 TCDRS Board meeting. 

Geometric Real 

Rate of Return 

Target 
(Expected 

minus 
Allocation (I) Inflation) !2l 

14.50% 5.45% 

14 .00% 8.45% 

1.50% 5. 75% 

10.00% 5.4 5% 
8.00% 6.45% 

3.00% 1.00% 

3.00% 5. 10.% 

2.00% 5.09% 

5.00% 6. 40% 

3.00% 8.LO% 

3.00% 4.00% 

3.00% 6.80% 

5.00% 6.90% 

25.00% 5.25% 

r'>J Geametric real rales ofrefum in addiliOIl to assumed iliflatioll of 1. 6% per CliffoiOler's 10 16 capitol markel assump tiolls. 

(JIll/chides viII/age years l006-presel1l of Qllarter Pooled Hori=ol1 JRRs. 

141 Ille/(ides I'illioge years 200 7-p" esel1( ofQuorler Pooled Horizon JRRs. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 8.1 %. The projection of cash 
flows used to detelTl1ine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contJibutiol1s will be 
made at the rates specified in statue. Based on that assumption, the pension plan 's Fiduciary Net 
Position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active 
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and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of retum on pension plan inveshnents 
was applied to all peliod of projected benefit payments to detennine the Total Pension Liability. 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

Balance at 12/31120 14 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 

Interest on total pension liability (l) 

Effect on plan changes (2) 

Effect of econom.ic/demograpbic gains 
or losses 

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 

Refund of contributions 

Benefit paYll1euts 

Adminis trative expenses 

Member contributions 

Net investment income 

Emp loyer contributions 

Other (3) 

Balance at 12/3112015 

Total Pension 

Liability 

(a) 

$ 41 0,636,269 

9,087,096 

32,905 ,759 

(1 ,753,160) 

(1 ,826,418) 

4 ,437,711 

(676,494) 

(20,054,243) 

$ 43 1 7 56.510 

Increase (Decrease) 

Plan Fiduc iary Net Pension 

Net Position Liability 

(b) (a) - (b) 

$ 361,767,975 $ 48,868,294 

9,08 7,096 

32,905 ,759 

(1 ,753,160) 

(1,826,418) 

4,437,711 

(676,494) 

(20,054,243 ) 

(259,107) 259 ,1 07 

4,761,495 (4,761 ,495) 

1,207,991 (1,207,991) 

12 ,012,562 (12,012,562) 

72.744 (72 744) 

$ 358.832 21 3 $ 13 21 3 521 

(}) Reflects the change in the liability due to the (ime value a/money. TCDRS does not chargefees or il1terest. 

(J) Reflects new annuity purchase rales applicable to al/ TCDRS employers effective January 1. 201S. 

(3) Relates to allocation of system-l-l.:ide items. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following presents the net pension liability ofthe County, calculated using the discount rate of 
8. 1 %, as well as what the County's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (7.1 %) or I-percentage-higher (9.1 %) than the current 
rate: 

Total pension liability 

Fiduciary net position 
Net pension 
liabili ty/(asset) 

$ 

$ 

1 % Decrease 

7. 1% 

487,120,611 

358.832.913 

PS 181.688 
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Current 

Discount Rate 1% Increase 

8.1% 9.1% 

$ 4 32,756,520 $ 387,270,507 

358 ,831.913 358.831.923 

$ 73 923 521 $ 18 1 31 584 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEtvfENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Note 8 - Defin ed Benefit Pension Plan (continued) 

Pension Plall Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed infOlmation about the pension pl an's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately­
issued TCDRS financial report. TIle report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tcdrs.org. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

For the year ended September 30,301 6, the County recognized pension expense of$13,507,039. 

At September 30,20 16, the County repOli ed deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions from the fo llowing sources : 

Deferred Deferred 
Inflows Outfl ows 

of Resources of Resources 

Differences bet\Veen expected and 
ac tual economic experience $ 1,461,134 $ 582,241 
Changes in aCTI13rial assumptions 3,550, 169 
Ditference between proj ected and 
actual investment earnings 25,209 ,730 

Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement d ate 9, 160,820 

Tota l $ 1,46 1,134 $ 38,502,960 

$9, 160,820 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resu lting iimn 
contJibutious subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pensiouliability for the year ending September 30, 20 16. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as 
follows: 

Year Ended 
December 3 1, 

20 16 
20 17 
20 18 

20 19 
Thereafter 
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7,240,262 
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6, 160,220 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Note 9 - Other Post-Emplovment Benefits 

Plan Description -

The County sponsors a single-employer defmed benefH post-employment benefit plan. 

Retiree Benefits 

ACTUARIAL VALUA nON INFORMA nON 

Actuarial Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Amortization Method 
Remaining Amortization 
Period 

Asset Valuation Method 

Discount Rate 

General Inflation Rate 

October 1, 2014 
Projected Unit 
Credit 

Level Dollar (open) 

30 years 

Market Value 

4.00% 

3.00% 

The County provides post-retirement health care benefits to all employees who retired on or after 
April 9, 1990. Effective January 1, 1997, Commissioners' Court adopted the following policy 
detailing eligibility requirements for pruticipation in this benefit: 

A) the employee must have retired under the Texas County and District Retirement 
System (TCDRS) guidelines described in Note 8; and 

B) the employee must have at least 8 years of TCDRS credible service witb Jefferson 
County. 

For retirees prior to February 1, 2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for 
those retirees that qualifY. After Februaty 1, 2003, the County will pay on the following scale for 
retirees that qualifY: 

Percentage Percentage 
Years of Paid by Paid by 
Service Retiree County 

8-11 30O/C 70% 

12-15 20O/C 80% 

16-19 10O/C 90% 

20+ Oo/c 100% 
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Retiree Spouse Benefits 
The employee's spouse is eligible for County paid health insurance benefits following the employee's 
retiremenhf: 

A) the employee met the above requirements A and B; and, 

B) the employee's spouse was emolled in the health plan either as a dependent or an 
active County employee. 

Spouse participation will end in the event of a di vorce, at which time COBRA continuation will be 
offered as described below. 

For retirees priOlo to Febmary 1,2003, the County pays 100 percent of health insurance premiums for 
those retirees' spouses that qualify. For retirees between Febmary 1,2003 and Febmary 28,2005, the 
County will pay the same scale as described above for retirees' spouses that qualify. For retirees 
after Febmary28, 2005, the County requires the following premiums to be paid for retirees' spouses 
that qualify: 

f Ao-e 0 Spouse Premium Amount Due 
Less than 65 during ten year Equal to the active employee 

maxunum contribution made for a spouse 

I 
Less than 65 after ten year 

maxilllUill Full Premium 
Same percentage as retiree see 

Over 65 table above 

As of September 30, 2016, there were 584 participants receiving benefits. 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost-

In June 2004, ll1e Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 45 
(GASB 45), creating accounting standards for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) provided by 
governmental entities separately from a pension plan. This Statement establishes standards for the 
measurement, recognition, and display ofOPEB expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), 
note disclosures, and if applicable required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial repOlis 
of state and local governments. 

The Plan contribution rates are set annually by COlmnissioners' Court based on the combination of 
premiums and prior year costs of the self-funded pOliion of the plan. ThePlan is funded on a pay-as­
you-go basis. In 2016 the total contribution was $4,309,953. 

The calculations are based on ll1e OPEB benefits provided under the tenns of the substantive plan in 
effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs berNeen the employer and 
plan members to that point. Actuarial valuation for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of 
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repOIied amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially 
detennined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. Actuari al calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long­
tenn perspecti ve. 

The County's amlUal OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the 
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially detennined in accordance with the parameter ofGASB 45. 
The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover nonnal 
cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actumialliabilities (or funding excess) over·a period not 
to exceed thirty years. The County had its most recent OPEB actuarial valuation perfonned for the 
fiscal year begimung October 1,2014 as required by GASB. The County's annual OPEB cost for the 
cunent year is as follows: 

Annual Required Contribution 
Interest on prior year Net OPEB 
Obligation 

Adjustment to ARC 

AEllual OPEB Cost 

County's Contribution made 

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 

$ 19,397,097 

3,152,941 

(4,383,050) 

$ 18,166,988 

(4,309,953) 

$ 13,857,035 

Net OPEB Obligation - beglluring of year 

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year 

$ 78,822,590 

$ 92,679,625 

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage Net 
Ending OPEB ofOPEB OPEB 

Cost· Contlibuted Obligation 

09/30/2014 $17,017,533 22.27% $65,724,170 

09/30/2015 $17,193,339 23.86% $78,822,590 

09/30120 16 $ 18,166,988 23 .72% $92,679,625 

Funded Status and Funding Progress -
As of October 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 0% funded. 111e 
actumial accrued liability for benefits was $181,924,768, and the actumial value of assets was $0, 
resulting in an unfimded actualia l accrued liability (UAAL) of$181 ,924,768. The covered payroll 
(annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $66,420,345, and the ratio of the 
UAAL to the covered payroll was 274%. 
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The schedule of funding progress is presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend infonnation about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing overtime relativeto thc actuarial· accmed-I i·ability for benefrts. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions -

Projection of benefits for financial reporting are made on the substantive plan (the plan as understood 
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the histOlical pattern of shaling of benefits costs between the employer and plan 
members to that point The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that 
designed to reduce short-tenn volatility in actualial accmed liabilities and the actuarial value of 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In order to perfonn the 
valuation, it was necessary for the County and the actuary to make celiain assumptions regarding 
items such as rates of employee tumover, retirement, and mortality, as well as economic assumptions 
regarding healthcare trend and interest rates. 

TIle Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method is used to calculate the GASB ARC for the County' s 
retiree health care plan. Using the plan benefits, the present health premiums and a set of actuarial 
assumptions, the anticipated future payments are pyojected. The projected unit credit method then 
provides for a systematic funding for these anticipated payments. The yearly ARC is computed to 
cover the cost of benefits being eamed by covered members as well as to amortize a pOliion of the 
unfunded accrued liability. 

In the October 1, 2014, actuarial valuation, a 4% discount rate and a general inflation rate of3.00% 
per year was used. The medical trend rates 10% for 2015, 9.5% in 2016, 9.0% in the third year, 
8.50% in the fomih year, and ultimately grading down to 4.5% per year after the twelfth year was 
used. 

There has not been a separate, audited GAAP-basis postemployment benefit plan report issued. 

Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan 

Employees of Jefferson County, Texas may participate in a defelTed compensation plan adopted 
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (DefelTed Compensation Plans with 
Respect to Service for State and Local Governments). 

The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrelated financial institution. Amendments 
to the laws goveming Section 457 defen'ed compensation plans substantially became effecti ve 
January 1, 1997. The County approved plan amendments such that plan assets are held in tmst by a 
third patiy custodiaJ], for the ex.c1usive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The 
assets will not be di verted to any other purpose. The County's beneficial ownership of plan assets 
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Note 10 - Deferred Compensation Plan (continued) 

will be held for the further exclusive benefit of the plan for the exclusive benefit of participants and 
beneficiaries. 

Accordingly, the County perfonns minimal administrative functions and does not perfonn any 
inves tment functions for the plan. Consequently, the assets held by the custodian are not included in 
the fulancial statements as of September 30, 2016. 

Note 11 - Individual Funds Deficit Equity Balances 

The folJowing funds had deficit equity balances as of September 30,2016: 

Governmental Funds 
Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid 
Drug Diversion Program 
JAG Grant 
Sheriff Dept Granls 
Crime Vlctims Clearing - 2 
Auto Theft Grant 
Drug Jntervention Grant 
GLO Ike Round 2 
Total for Governmental Funds 

Proprietary Funds 
Southeast Texas Government Employee 
Benefits Pool Fund 

Total for Proprietary Funds 

$ 13,394 
815 

9,137 
6,602 
5,378 
6,317 
9,898 

531,779 

$ 583 ,320 

$4,797,167 

$4,797,167 

If funding does not become available to cover these deficit fund balances from other governmental 
entities, the County plans to transfer funds to cover the deficit fund balance. 

Note 12 - rusk Management 

The Liability Insurance Fund was established to account for the contributions iiOln the General Fund 
for payment of general liability claims. Under the laws of the State of Texas, claims for torts are 
limited to $100,000 per person and $300,000 per incident. The Liability Fund records a claim as 
payable when infOlwation prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is 
probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of 
the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a 
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been i.ncurred but not reported. Claim liabilities are calculated 
considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Liability Insurance Fund's claims liability 
(including an estimate for claims inculTed but not reported) were: 
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Note 12 - Risk Management (continued) 

Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred claims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

2016 

$1,308,975 

553,355 
(1,496,744) 

2015 

$371 ,096 

1,327;720 
(389 ,841) 

Liability for claims, end of fiscal yea, $365,586 $1,308 ,975 

The Workers' Compensation Fund was established to account for the County's workers ' 
compensation claims. Contributions are made from the General, Special Revenue, and Enterprise 
Funds for employees covered under the County's workers' compensation policy. Contributions to the 
fund are detennined by position class code within each department. From October 1, 1999, to 
February 14, 2005 the County was fully insured for workers' compensation claims and employers' 
liability. As of February 15, 2005, the County is self insured for workers' compensation claims and 
employers' liability. The County has excess coverage for workers' compensation claims and 
employers' liability claims limiting the County's liability to $500,000 per occurrence for losses 
occurring plior to October 1, 1999 and after FeblUary 15,2005. Settled claims have not exceeded 
commercial coverages in any of the past three fiscal years. Liabilities of the fund are reported when 
it is probable that a loss has occulTed and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incuITed but not reported. Claim liabilities 
aTe calculated considering recent claim settlement trends. Changes in the Worker's Compensation 
Fund's claims liability (including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported) were: 

Liability for clai.ms, beginning of fiscal year 

Incurred ciaims and changes in estimates 
Claim payments 

Liability for claims, end of fiscal yea, 

Note 13 - Public Entity Risk Pool 

2016 

$536,223 

404,399 
(695,729) 

$244,893 

2015 

$396,044 

864,227 
(724,048) 

$536,223 

On November 27, 2000, the Jefferson County Commissioners' Court pursuant to Texas Local 
Govenunent Code Ann. Sec. 172.00 1 organized the Southeast Texas Govemment Employee Benefits 
Pool (The Pool). TIle Pool was organized for the benefit of Texas Political Subdivisions and Special 
Dishicts to make available accident, life, and health benefits for Pool member employees. Twelve 
trustees govem the Pool. Five of these trustees are the Jefferson County Auditor, Jefferson County 
Insurance and Benefits Manager, Jefferson County Human Resources Director, Jefferson County 
Purchasing Agent, and the Jefferson County Assistant District Attomey. Two of the trustees are 
members ofConunissioners' Court. The remaining five trustees are appointed by Commissioners' 
Court. 

The Pool is responsible for adopting underwliting standaTds, qualifications for membership in the 
pool, and establi shing the types of benefits to be provided and associated fees for these benefi ts. TIle 
members of the Pool are responsible for their members' eligibility in the pool and payment of 
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Note 13 - Public Entin' Risk Pool (continued) 

monthly contributions for participation in the Pool. The Pool members are not subject to 
supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies. If the assets of the Pool were to be exhausted, 
members would not be responsible for the Pool's liabilities . Pool members currently include 
Jefferson County, Texas (reporting entity) , Jefferson County Drainage District #3, and Jefferson 
County Drainage Disttict #6. The total number of members in the Pool is 1,667. Operations of the 
Pool are accounted for as an intemal service fund . 

The Pool uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on medical and 
prescription claims. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 20 16, the Pool had stop loss insurance 
contracts to limit the medical and prescliption claims per individualll1ember to $250,000 in a 
calendar year with a $1 ,250,000 aggregating group deductible. The Pool did not exceed these limits 
dUling fiscal year 20 16 or 2015, but did exceed these limits by $78,291 during fiscal year 2014. 

Liabilities of the Pool are reported when it is probable that a loss has occun'ed and the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been inculTed 
but not repOlied. Claim liabilities are calculated considering recent claim settlements trends. 

Changes in the Pool's claims liability (including an estimate of claims inculTed but not repOlied and 
claim adjustment expenses) were: 

2016 201 5 

$840,425 $1,780,650 

20,438 ,427 20 ,436,872 

Liability for claims, beginning of fiscal year 

Incllrred claims and changes in estimates 
Claim paymenls (20,007,030) (21,377,097) 

Liabillty for claims, end of fiscal year $1,271,822 $840,425 

Additional infonnation inclnding ten-year revenue and claim development are addressed in a 
separate aIUmal report. The ammal report may be obtained from Southeast Texas Governmental 
Employee Benefits Pool, 215 Franklin Street Suite 200, Beaumont, Texas 77701. 

Note 14 - Construction and Other SignitIcant CoJ.llil1jtments 

As of September 30, 2016, the County had the following cOlmnitments with respect to unfinished 
capital projects: 
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Note 14 - Construction and Other Significant Commitments (continued) 

Capital IJoject 

Courthouse Restoration 

Phone System Update 

LaBeUe Road 

McFaddin National Wildlife 
Refuge Dune Restoration 

Runway 12130 
Reconstruction 

Note 15 - Contingent Liabilities 

Remaining Construction Expected Date 
Commitment of Completion 

$ 366,074 09/3012017 

219,381 09/30/2017 

1,617,603 09/3012017 

532,034 12/3112016 

681,447 09/3012017 

$ 3,416,539 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the State of Texas. Any disallowed expenditures or claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. TI1e amount, if any, of 
expenditures which maybe disallowed by the grantor cannot be detennined at this time althongh the 
County expects such amounts, if any, to be llmnatelial. 

The County is involved in lawsuits and other claims in the ordinary course of operations. The 
outcome of these lawsuits and other claims are not presently detelminable and the resolutions of 
these matters are not expected to have a material effect on the financial condition ofthe County. 

Note 16 - Prior Period Adjustments 

In the fund level financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2016, a decrease to beginning 
fund balance in the amount of$786 was made to Non Major Special Revenue funds for COlmnunity 
Supervision for correction to plior year adjustment to revenues. 

The County has increased beginning net position as of October I, 2015 by $118,3 57 for 
governmental activities. This is a correction of an error for a donated asset that was not record in the 
amount $658,000 less accumulated depreciation for this asset in the amount of$91,098 and the 
calculation of depreciation expense for infrastructure in prior years which has caused accumulated 
depreciation to be understated by $448,545 

The total effect of these adjushnents increased beginning net position of the goverrnnental activities 
by$117,571. 
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Note 17 - Restatements and Reclassifications 

Certain restatements have been made to the prior year financial statements in order to confonn to the 
presentation of the current year financial statements. 

Note 18 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement 74, Financial ReportingJor Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension 
Plans ("GASB 74"), replaces GASB Statement No. 43, Financial ReportingJor Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. GASB 74 addresses theflllancial reports of defined benefit 
OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet specified criteria. GASB 74 will be 
implemented by the County in fiscal year 2017 and the impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial ReportingJor Postemployment Bene/II Plans Other 
than Pension Plans ("GASB 75"), replaces the requirements ofGASB Statement No. 45, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting by Employers Jar Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB 
75 require goverrunents to report a liability on the face ofthe financial statements for the OPEB that 
they provide. GASB 75 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2018 and the impact has 
not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures ("GASB 77"), requires governments that enter into 
tax abatement agreements to make certain disclosures concerning the agreements to be able to assess 
how tax abatements affect their financial position and results of operations, including their ability to 
raise resources in the future. GASB 77 will be implemented by the COL1l1ty in fiscal year 2017 and 
the impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 78, Pensions Provided Through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 
Pension Plans ("GASB 78") , amends the scope and applicability of GASB 68 in association with 
pensions provided through certain multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and to state of 
local govennnental employers whose employees are provided with such pensions. GASB 78 will be 
implemented by the COL1l1ty in fiscal year 2018 and the impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 79, Certain ExtemalInvestment Pools and Pool Participants ("GASB 79"), 
establishes criteria for an external investment pool to qualify for making the lection to measure all of 
its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. GASB 79 will be implemented by 
the County in fiscal year 2017 and the impact has not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 80, Blending Requirements Jar Certain Component Units, clarifies the fmancial 
statement presentation requirements for ceriain component units which are incorporated as not-for 
profit entities. GASB 80 will be implemented by the County in fiscal year 2017 and the impact has 
not yet been detennined. 

GASB Statement 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, establishes recognition and 
measurement requirements for irrevocable split-interest agreements. GASB 81 will be implemented 
by the County in fiscal year 2018 and the impact has not yet been detennined. 
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Note 18 - Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued) 

GASB Statement 82, Pension Issues, addresses certain issues that have been raised with respect to 
Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting/or Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
RepDrting/orPensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Finw,-ciYll ReportingforPensions and Related 
Assets That Are Not within the Scope o/GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions 
0/ GASB Statements 67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding the 
presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, deviations from the 
guidance of the Actuarial Standards Board, and the classification of payments made by employers to 
satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements. GASB 82 will be implemented by the 
County in fiscal year 2017 and the impact has not yet been determined. 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT MY INFORMATION 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

BUDGETED Ai'lIOUNTS ACTUAL 

ORlGINA..L Flo'AL AMOlP.\'T 

REVEN UES: 

TAXES 
PRO PERTY $ 75,469,344 75,469,344 74,771 ,585 
SALES TA..'{ 23,925,000 23,925,000 25,268, 183 

FEES 8,805, 100 8,805,100 9,536,260 
LICENSES 414,620 414,620 502,532 
SALES, RENTALS, ."'.ND SERVICES 1,576,854 1 ,576,854 2,100,328 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,454,559 1,454,559 1,443,457 
FINES AND FORFHruRES 1,575,000 1,575,000 1,817,0 16 
O'JTEREST 210,500 210,500 220,208 
MISCELLANEOUS 24,000 24,000 27,589 
CONTRiBUllON S AND DONATIONS 200 200 315 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 113,455, 177 11 3.455,177 115,687,473 

EXPENDITURES: 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 23,565 ,795 23,257,508 21,989,258 
ruDlClAL AI\TO LA W ENFQRCEME1'rr 70,069,197 70,232,484 67,056,128 
EDUCAllON AND RECREATION 409,074 409,074 349,9 17 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 10,850,099 10,850,099 10,233,511 
MAINTENANCE - EQUIP1v1ENT AND STRUCTURES 13,620,718 13,620,262 11 ,806,970 
CAPITAL OVTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDl11JRES $ 11 8,5 14,883 118,369,427 111 ,435,784 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 

OVER £XPENDUURES $ (5,059 ,706) (4,914,250) 4,251,689 

OTHER FINANCING SOli~CES (LJSES) : 

TRAN SFERS IN $ 139,709 
TRANSFERS OUT (4,893,271) (5,038,727) (4 ,762,228) 

TOTAL OTHER Fl;'{A.'\'CI,\'G SOURCES (USES) $ (4,893,271) (5,038,727) (4,622,5 19) 

NET CRANGE iN FUND BALANCES $ (9,952,977) (9,952 ,977) (370,830) 

FUND BAl.ANCES, BEGL\'NlNG $ 47,880,857 47,880,857 47,880,857 

FU1\'D BALANCES, ENDING $ 37,927,880 37,927,880 47,510,027 
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(697,759) 
1,343,183 

73 1, 160 
87,9 12 

523,474 
(J 1,102) 
242 ,016 

9,708 
3,589 

115 

2,232,296 

1,268,250 
3,176,356 

59,157 
616,58 8 

1,813,292 

6,933,643 

9, 165,939 

139,709 
276,499 

416,208 

9,582, 147 

9,582,147 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

1. Budgetary Basis 

o Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent with GAAP. 

o The department is the legal level of budgetary control. Commissioners' Court 
approval is necessary to transfer appropriations between departments. Transfers may 
not increase the total budget. 

o Annual budgets are legally adopted for the General Fund and the Debt Service Funds. 

o The Capital Project Fund - Capital Projects Fund which is considered a major fund 
does not have a legally adopted budget. 

2. Analysis of Significant Expenditure Variances from Original Budget 

Commissioners' Court approved approximately $145,000 in budget transfers over the original 
budget for General Services for additional cost for funding for transfers out for capital projects 
and grant matches. 

In addition, the Court approved approximately $310,000 in budget transfers over the original 
budget for the increased cost for indigent defense. TIlese transfers were not part of the original 
budget. 

The above budget transfers were funded with the savings from vaIious departments. 
Commissioners' Court was able to achieve $7,210,1 42 in actual savings from the total budget, 
with the assistance from all County deparhnents. 

68 
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REQ UIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AN D RELATED RATIOS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Plan Year Ended December 31 

Total Pension Liabil ity 

Service Cost 
Interes t total pension liability 
Effect of plan changes 
Effect of assumption changes or inputs 
Effec t of economic/demographic 

(gains) or losses 
Benefit payments/refunds 

of conuibutions 

Net change in total pension liab il ity 

To tal pension liability - beginning 

Total pension liability - ending (a) 

Plan Fiduciary Ne t Position 

Employer contributio ns 
Member contributions 
Investment income net of 

illveSlmen( expenses 
Benefit payments refunds of 

contri butions 
Administrative expenses 
Other 

Net change in plan fi duc iary net position 

Plan fiduciary net pos ition - begiruling 

Plan fidu ciary net position · ending (b) 

Net pens ioo liability - end ing (a) - (b) 

fidu ciary net position as a percentage 
of total pension liab ility 

Pensionable covered payroll 

Net pension ~abi li ty as a percentage 
of covered payroll 

:I: Reporting began in fiscal year 20 15. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
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2014 20 15 

8,802,884 $ 9,087,096 
31,100,2 11 32,905, 759 

1,753,160) 
4,437,71 I 

970,401 1,826,418) 

19,372,249) 20,730,737) 

21 ,50 1,247 $ 22,120,25 1 

389,135,022 4 10,636,269 

41 0,636,269 $ 432 ,756,520 

11 ,131,00 1 $ 12,0 12,562 
4,5 14,879 4,761,495 

23,395,89 1 1,207,991 

19,372,249) 20,730,737 ) 
270,923) 259,107) 
445,436 72,744 

19,844,035 $( 2,935,052) 

34 1,923,940 36 1,767,975 

36 1,767,975 $ 358,83 2,923 

48,868,294 $ 73 ,923,597 

88.10% 82 .92% 

63,934,56 1 $ 68,02 1,353 

76 .43% 108 .68% 



Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 

2014 
20 15 
2016 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

TEXAS COUNTY AND DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Actuarially Actual Contribution Pensionable Actual Contribution 
Determined Employer Deficiency Covered as a % of Covered 

Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll (1) Payroll 

10,889,473 10,889,473 63,52 1,999 17.1 % 
11 ,476,3 13 11,476,3 13 65,197,649 17.6% 
11 ,644,582 11 ,644,582 66,074,018 17.6% 

(1) Payroll is calculated based on contributions as reported to TCDRS. 
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Valuation Date 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Actuarially detennined contribution rates are calculated each December 31, 
two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the contributions are 
reported. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age 

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed 

Remaining Amortization Period 13 .8 years (based on contribution rate calculated inl2/31 120 IS valuation) 

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market 

Inflation 3.0% 

Salary Increases Varies by age and service. 4.9% average over career including inflation. 

Investment Rate of Return 8.0%, net of investment expenses, including inflation 

Retirement Age Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to commence 
receiving benefit payments based on age. The average age at service 
retirement for recent retirees is 61. 

Mortality 

Changes in Plan Pro\~sions 
Reflected in the Schedule* 

In the 2015 actuarial valuation, assumed life expectancies were adjusted 
as a result of adopting a new projection scale (110% of the MP-2014 
Ultimate Scale) for 2014 and later. Previously Scale AA had been used. 
The base table is the RP-2000 table projected with Scale AA to 2014. 

No changes in plan provisions are reflected in the Schedule of Employer 
Contributions. 

• Only changes effective 2015 and later are shown in the Notes in Schedule. 
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Actuarial 
Valuation 

Fiscal Year Date 

20 14 10/1120 13 

20 15 1011120 14 

2016 1011120 15 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Accrued 
Value of Liability Unfunded Funded 
Assets (AAL)* AAL(UAAL) Ratio 

(a) (b) (b-a) (alb) 

$0 $159,551,852 A $159,55 1,852 0% 

$0 $170,556,354 $ 170,556,354 0% 

$0 $181,924,768 $18 1,924,768 0% 

• Actuarial liability determined under the projected unit credit cost method. 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

(e) 

$63 ,647,485 

$65,067,626 

$66,420 ,345 

"Actuarial accrued liability estimated based on roll-forward of prior year October 1 valuation results. 
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UAAL as a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
[(b-a)/c] 

250.68% 

262. 12% 

273.90% 
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JEffERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GENER<IL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

BUDG ETED AMOUNTS ACTUA L 
ORJGINAL FL\A l Al'dOUNT 

GE NERA L GO"ERNMINT: 

TAX ASSESSOR·COLLECTOR , 3,857,301 3.8)7,301 3,7 11,234 
HUMAN RESOURCES 440,054 440,054 403,906 
COUNTY AUDITOR 1,452,050 I A52,050 1,401,272 
COUNTY CLERIC 2,280,5S4 2,no,584 2,1 11,377 
COUNn' JUDGE 893,263 893,263 828,559 
RISK MA..'\IAGEMENT 251,272 251.272 232,253 
COlJNTYTREASURER 381,825 381 ,825 375,68 1 
PRINTING DEPARTMENT J63,52 1 163,521 14 5,227 
PURCHASING AGENT 560,791 560,791 528,759 
GENERAL SERVICES 9,9 10,076 9,601 ,789 8,975 ,006 
DATA PROCES5L~G 2,126,365 2,126,365 2,04 1,100 
VOTERS REGISTRAT I~ DEPARTMEI\'T )44 ,203 144,20; IH ,OJO 
B-ECTlffilS DEJ>ARTMENT 807,578 807,578 745,604 
VETERA""lS SERVICE 296,912 296.9 11 293,250 

TOTAL CENERAl. GOVERNMEr>:T S 23,565.795 23,257.508 2 1.989,258 

JUDICIAL ,IJ\D LAW r:r>:FORC[J\U:~T: 
D L~TRICT A TTOR:"IEY , 6,54 1,322 6,456,322 6,307,952 
DISTRICT CLERK 1,907,002 1,907,002 1,877,401 
CRfMNAL OISTRlCr COURT 1,533,277 1,633,277 1,582, 14 8 
sm-I D1STlUCT COURT 312,943 312,943 284.1 04 
60TH OISTRI CT COURT 292, 139 292,139 28S, 15<1 
136T1--i DISTRICT COURT 300,1 45 300,145 294,8 26 
I nND D1STRlCT COURT 297,368 297,368 277,082 
25~N[) DISTRI!I COURT 1, 157,940 1,3 11 ,940 1,280,654 
2i'ffl-l DISTRKT COllltT 400,192 400. 192 373,266 
317TH DISTRK:TCOURT 774 ,625 774,625 71 3,33 1 
JURy },0 16,433 796,433 77],817 
U. PRECINCT NO. I - pJ ..... CE NO. I 361,649 361,649 348,808 
J.r . PRECINCT NO. I - PLACE NO. 2 362,996 362,996 344,945 
J.P. rRECINCTNO. 2 338, 142 338,142 286,238 
J.P. rREClNCTNO. 4 36 1,252 361.252 346,4 11 
J.P. rRECINCTNO. 6 373 ,062 373.062 354,607 
J.P. rREClNCTNO. 7 363 ,697 363,697 327,25 1 
J p. PRECINCT NO. ~ 372,391 371,391 322,4&7 
COUNTY COURT AT lJ\W NO. I 476,262 476,262 464,728 
COlo"''TYCOURT AT LAW NO. 2 582,195 656,695 645,310 
COur-..'TY COlffiT AT lJ\ W NO.3 726,395 726,395 687.528 
COURT MASTER 483,393 483.393 373,700 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION CENTER 259,728 259,728 196,6 10 
JUVENILE AL lERNA TlYE SCHOOL 393,885 393.885 301,679 
COMMUNm' SUPERVISION J9,003 19,003 15,823 
SHEIUFF 13.303,602 13,410.389 12,717,220 
CRiM F. LA.BO]u'TORY 1,372,578 1,372,573 1.274,685 
JAIL 27,744 ,977 27,744,977 27 ,06 1,210 
JUVEN ILECORRECTIOKAi.. PROBATION 1,579,201 1,579,201 1,298,237 
JUVENILE [)ETTh'TION HOME 2,100,514 2,100,5 14 1,856,857 
CONSTABLE PRECD</CT NO. t 716,963 809,963 761,494 
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 2 45 1,296 45 1,296 425,95 1 
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO. 4 433,505 433,505 398,463 
CONSTAOLE PREC(]>"'CT NO. 6 600.18 1 600,781 575.320 
CONSTABLE PRECINCT NO.1 436,365 436.365 423,141 
CONSTAIlL!; PR[;CINCTNO. g 476,979 476,979 463.62 1 
COUNn' MORGUE 785.000 785,000 729,009 

TOTAl.. JUDICIAL A..'-:DLAW ENFORCEr-lENT S 70.069. 197 70,231.484 67,056,128 

VARL"'-.lIi CE WlTH 
FINAL BUDGET 

146,067 
36,148 
49,178 

109,201 
64,704 
19,0 19 
6, 144 

)8,2 94 
32,032 

626,783 
85,265 
9,17) 

6 1,974 
3.662 

1,268.250 

148,370 
29 ,601 
51,129 
18.839 

3,985 
5,3 19 

10,286 
31,286 
26,926 
6 1,294 
22,6 16 
12 ,841 
18,051 
51,904 
14,841 
18,455 
36,446 
49,904 
11 ,534 
11 ,325 
38,867 

109,693 
63,1 18 
91,206 
3,180 

693 ,169 
97,893 

683,767 
280,964 
243,657 

47,469 
25,345 
35,042 
25,46 1 
1J ,224 
1J ,35S 
55,991 

3.176.356 

rCONT[NUED] 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET M'D ACTUAL (GAAP) 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

BUDGETED AIVIQVNTS ACTUAL 
ORJGINAL FL'iAL AMOUNT 

EDLICATION A.!\iD RfCREATJON; 

AGRICULTURAL EXTENSION SERVICE 409,074 409,074 349917 

TOTAL EDLICA nON A."(D RECREA nON 409.074 409 ,074 349.917 

HEALTH ANDWELF.J..RE: 

PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT j 1,17J ,722 1,276,922 1,187,996 
PUBLIC HEALTH UNIT 2 1,244,489 1.244A89 1,130,528 
NURSE PRACTITIONER 304,295 304,295 288,144 
CHIlD WELFARE 149,900 149,900 122,093 
DNIRONMENT At. CONTROL 385,203 385,203 333.164 
INDIGENT MEDICAL SERVICE 4,905,362 4,900,162 4,157,405 
MOSQUITO COl\'TROL 2,261,918 2,261,918 2,093,612 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMDiT 227,210 n7.1lO 220,569 
TOBACCO SElTLEMENT Flll'.'l) 100,000 100.000 100.000 

TOTAL HEALTH ",,---,,'D WELfARE 10,850,099 JO,850,099 10,233.511 

J\IA1KTEL\'.-\_;\'CE _ EQU1P~'IE]'>;T &: STRUCTURES: 

COURTHOUSE & Ai\'NEXES 2,785,083 2,785,083 2.530,751 
PORT ARTHUR BUJlDI:NGS 759,584 759,584 712,887 
MID-COUNTY BUILDINGS 219,114 219,114 191,983 
ROAD &. BRIDGE PCT. I J ,626,879 1,626,879 1,404,973 
ROAD S:. BRIDGE PCT .. 2 1,824 ,918 1,824,918 1,640,953 

ROAD S:. BRIDGE PCT. J 1,818 ,541 1,818,54) 1,624,790 
ROAD S:. BRIDGE PCT. 4 2,088 ,233 2,082,251 1,718,948 
El\GNEERlI\G J ,055,510 1,055,510 977,659 
P . .I,Rl(S S:. RECREATKlN 182,174 202,274 125,673 
SERVICE CEI\'TER 1,260,582 1,246.108 878.353 

TOTAL ~IAJ"'TE],>;A;,CE- EQUIPMENT oS: STRUCTURES 13 620,718 13.670,767 11 ,806.970 

CAPITAL OUTLAY: 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 118,514,883 1)8.369,427 111,435.184 

OTHERFIKA],>;C1}:G USES: 

TRANSfERS OUT 4,893,271 5,038,727 4,762,228 

TOTAl.OTHER fL'\'A..>.JCING USES 4,893.271 5,038,727 4,762.228 

TOTAL G£NER-'..L FUND EXPENDITURES 123,408.154 123.408,154 116,198,012 
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VARIANCE WTTH 
FINAL BUDGET 

59,157 

59.157 

88 ,926 
113,961 

16,15] 
27,807 
52,039 

142,757 
168,306 

6,641 

616.588 

254,332 
46,697 
17,131 

211,906 
183 ,965 
193 ,751 
363 ,303 

77 ,851 
76,601 

367,755 

1813292 

6,933 ,643 

276A99 

276 1499 

7)10,142 
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JUFERSO'i COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMSINIi'\G B ALAA'CE SHEET 

NON!\IlAJOR GOVERNl\ffiNTAL FU1\'DS - SUMMARY 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

TOrAl. 

l"O","LAJOR 

SPECIAL CAPrrAL DEDT COVER>"~[ENTAL 

,",noNUE PROJECTS SER\'lC£ ru,,.,,, 

ASSETS , 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S 2 I ,033,799 1,768,600 569, 137 13,37 1,536 
ACCOumS RECErV ABLE, Net 139,887 139,887 
INTEREST RECEfV ABLE 5,337 476 160 5,973 
DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS 
DUE FROM OTH ER GOVERNMENTAL ENTmES 1,270,799 69,726 1,340,525 
DELJ]\IQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 97,346 97.346 
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEJV,AJ3LE, Net 46,470 46,470 
Q\.TVENTORY, Al COSt 31,235 32,235 
PREPAID ITEM 6'3 623 

TOTAL ASSETS 5 22 ,482,680 1,838,801 713,1 13 25,034,595 

Ll AllIUTIES, DEFE.RRED INFLOWS Of 
RESOURCES. AND flJi\O BALAACE 

LIABJ LITIES, 
ACCOUNfSPAYABLE , 1,049,808 143,051 1,192 ,859 
COlvfPENSATED AB SENCES 18,104 18, 104 
DUE TO OTi-I ER FUNDS 961 ,O:W 961,020 
UNEARNED REVENUE 845,803 845,803 

TOT AL LlABJLITI [S , ',8 74
1
735 143051 3,0 17,786 

DEFERRED II\'"FLOWS OF RESOURC ES: 
UNA V AD.ABLE REVENUE· PROPERTY TAXES $ 131 ,574 13 1,574 
UNA V AlLABLE REVENUE· GRM'TS 22,867 22,867 

TOTAl DEFERRED l1\J'LOWS OF 
RESOURCES $ ' 2,867 131,574 )54,44 1 

FUND BALAACES: 
NONSPENDABLE FOR: 

INVENTORY 31,235 32,235 
PREPAID ITEMS 613 623 

RESTRICTED FOR: 
DEBT SERVICE 581,539 58 1.539 
CONSTRUCTION 30,705 30,705 
PUBLIC [NTEREST 2,927,892 2,917 ,891 
JUDICIAL & LAW E)\.TFORCEMENT 5,660,252 5,660,251 
EDUCATION & RECREATION 1,837,8 19 J,837,8J9 
HEALTH & WELFARE 8,861,906 8,861 ,906 
MAlNTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

& EQUlPMTh'T 3 15,892 315,892 
COMMIlTED FOR: 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 532,034 532,034 
ASS IGNED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,664,79 1 1,664,791 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT] (51,54 1] (53 1,779] (583,3 '0) 

TOTAL FL'1'I"D BAlAJ'iCES S 19,585,078 1,695,75 1 58 1,539 21,862,368 

TOTAL LIA.BILlTIES, DEFERRED 1l'\'TLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 22,482,680 1.838,80, 713, 113 25,034,595 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

TOTAL 

NOl'l'M.AJOR 

SPECIAL CA1'ITAL DEBT GOVER~lE"'TAL 

REVENUE PROJECTS SERVlCE FU7\'DS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 5,629,065 5,629,065 
SALES TAXES ),211,569 1,211,569 
FEES 4,575,279 4,575,279 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL )0,371,295 3,616,577 13,987,872 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 985,530 985,530 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 264,047 264,047 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 11,808 11,808 
INTEREST 69,113 8,18? 12,573 89,868 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 17,488,641 3,624,759 5,641,638 26,755,038 

EXPENDITURES: 
CURRENT 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 480,852 480,852 
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 14,815,481 )4,815,481 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 915,058 915,058 
HEALTH AND WELFARE 34,265 34,265 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

AND EQUIPMENT 43,970 43,970 
CAPIT AL OUTLAY 3,473,678 3,473,678 
DEBT SERVlCE 

PRINCIPAL 4,590,000 4,590,000 
INTEREST Ai'm COMMISSION 1,539,896 1,539,896 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 16,289,626 3,473,678 6,129,896 25,893,200 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1,199,0)5 151,081 (488,258) 861,838 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 1,183,548 46,471 1,230,019 
TRANSFERS OUT (360,648) (218) (360,866) 

TOT AL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 822,900 46,253 869,153 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 2,021,915 197,334 (488,258) 1,730,991 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING $ 17,563,949 1,498,417 1,069,797 20,)32,163 
PRJOR PERJOD ADJUSTMENT (786) (786) 

FUND BALANCE, BEGlt,{NING (Restated) $ 17,563,163 1,498,417 1,069,797 20,131,377 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 19,585,078 1,695,751 581,539 21,862,368 
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

, 

The Special Revenue Fl)nds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue . 
sources other than expendable trusts, or major capital projects that are legally restricted 
to expe~ditures for specified purposes. Included in this heading are the following 
individual funds: 

Lateral Road Fund - This fund is used.to account for expenditures of materials 
incuned in the maintenance of the lateral roads of the County. Financing is provided 
by contributions from the State. 

I . . . . . 

Breath Alcohol Testing Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
courts on D.W.I. convictions and the expenditure of those funds. 

Law Library FUlid - This fund is used to account for the maintenance ofthe County 
Law Library. Financing is provided by fees from law suits filed in the Distlict Courts 
and County Courts-at-Law. . -

Juvenile Probation and Detention Fund - This fund is used to account for-receipts 
specifidlly designated for use in juvenile programs. 

County Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to 
account for fees collected by the County Clerk for the maintenance oftheir records and 
the expenditure of those funds. 

County Clerk Records Archive Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
collected by the County Clerk for the preservation of records'prior to 1990 and the 
expenditure of those funds. 

ASAP Constable Pct 8 Program - This fund is used to account for fees collected 
from the Port Arthur Independent School for the administration of the Absent Student 
Assistance Program (ASAP) by t)J,e Constable Pct 8 and the expenditure of those funds 
for the program, 

County Records Management and Preservation Fund - This fund is used to 
account for fees collected by the County Clerk, District Clerk, and Sheliff for the 
maintenance of County records and the expenditure of those funds. 



Justice Court Building Security - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the justice courts to finance security services and equipment Jor justice courts not 
located in the County courthouse. 

Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund'- This fund is used to account for the collection.of a 2% 
HoteilMotel Occupancy tax . . Revenues collected from this tax are to be used for 
tourism projects in the County. 

County and District Court Technology Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
collected from defendants convicted in a County, Statutory County, or District court 
and the expenditures of those funds on technological enhancements !for the previously 
mentioned courts . 

, . 
Sheriff and Constable Education Fund -' This fund is used to account for the 
expenditures associated with the education of Sheriffs. deputies and Constables of the 
County. ' 

niX Offic.e Auto Dealer Fund - This fund is used to account for taxes collected from 
Local Auto Dealerships to be used by the County's Tax Office. 

Unclaimed Funds Management Fund - This fund is used to account for Unclaimed 
. Funds for all County depaliments. 

Family Protection Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
District Clerk for family violence prevention or intervention and the expenditure of this 
money, 

District Attorney Forfeiture Fund - This fund is used to account for forfeitures 
received by the District Attorney from· criminal convictions and the expenditur.e of 
those funds. 

Hot Check Fund - This fund is used to account for fees received by the District 
Attorney for the prosecution of hot check offenders and the expenditure ofthose funds. 

Justice ofthePeace Courtroom Technology Fund - This fund is used to account for. 
the fees collected by the Justices of the Peace on misdemeanor convictions and the 
expenditure of those funds on technological enhancements for the justices: courts. 

" 
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District Clerk Recor<is Management Fund - This fund is used to account for fees 
" collected by the DistJ'ict Clerk for the maintenance of their records and the expenditure 

of those funds, 

County Clerk Election Contracts - Tlus fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the County Clerk for election contracts with local governments and the expenditure of 
those funds. 

County Clerk HA V A Fund - This fund is used to account for fees collected by the 
County Cler~ for th! rental of equipment purchased by the Help AItJericans Vote Act 
(HA V A) grant. '. . 

Child Abtise Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected for certain 
child sexual assault and related convictions and the expenditure of those funds. 

, . I 

Sheriffs Special Revenue Funds- This fund is used to account for fees, forfeitures, 
and other revenue received by the .Sheriff in association with Security Fees, Law 
Officer Trailung fees, D.A.R.E. Contributions, Sheriffs Forfeitures, Sheriffs 

. Commissary, Sheriff - Spindletop Grant, and the Maline Division reimbursements, and 
the expenditure of those funds. 

Guardianship Fee Fund - Tills fund is used to account\for fees collected by the 
County Clerk to supplement the support of the judicialY in cases involving 
guardianships, 

Juvenile Delinquency Prevention - This fund is used to account for fees collected by 
the courts for certain offenses and the expenditures associated with juvelule 
delinquency prevention and graffiti eradication measures. 

, 
District Court Records Technology - Tills fund is used to account for fees collected 
by the District Clerk for the preservation and restoration of District Court records. 

Probation Department Funds - These funds are used to accouIi't for the expenditures 
of maintaining probation services as authorized by the County and District Courts. 
Financing is provided by State grant aria probationary fees. Included in this heading 
are the following indi\)dual funds: 

Juvenile Probation and Detention - State Aid 
Juvenile CommUluty Corrections Program 



IV -E Foster Care Fund 
Juvenile Grant A - State Aid 
Mentally Impaired Offenders 
Community Supervision · 
Women 's Center' 
Merital Health Services 
Community COlTections 
DWI Pretrial Diversion 
Juvenile Drug Court 
DlUg Diversion Program, 
Juvenile TJPC A 

. Grant Funds - These funds ~re u~ed to account for receipts ofFederal and State grants 
designated for special projects or services. Included in this heading are the following 
individual.funds: 

Family Group Conferencing 
Sheriff Training Grant 
JAG Grant 
Sheriff Dept Grants 
SCAAP Grant 
Crime Victims Clearing - L 
Regional Communication 
Crime Victims Cleming - 1-
EMPG Grant 

. Forensic Science Improvement Grant 
Port Security Grants 
Auto Theft Grant 
FEMA Emergency· 
Drug Intervention Grant 
Violence Against Women - I 
Violence Against Women - 2 
Family Treatment COUJi 
SHSP & LETPP Grants 
Cheek Water and Sewer Phase 4 . 
cm Sheriff Grants 

'. 

, , 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 
SEPTElI'ffiER 30,2016 

BREATH 

LATERAL ALCOHOL LAW 

ROAD TESTING LIBRARY 

FLJ\'DS FUND FUND 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 319,930 27,703 16,042 

ACCOUNTS RECErv ABLE: Net 

INTEREST RECEN ABLE 89 7 3 
DUE FROM OTJ-fER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

INVENTORY, At Cost 

PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS 320.019 27.710 16.045 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES,A~TI FU,\,D BALANCE 

LlABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 4.127 15.651 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

UNEARNED REVENUE - GRANTS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4.P7 15.651 

DEFERRED I~'FLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOllRCES 

FUND BALANCES: 

NONSPENDABLE FOR: 

INVENTORY S 
PREPt\JD ITEMS 

RESTRICTED FOR: 

PUBLIC INTEREST 

JUDICIAL& LAW 

ENFORCEMENT 27,710 

EDUCATION & RECREATION 394 
HEALTH & WELFARE 

MAfNTENAJ\CEOF 

STRUCl1JRES & EQUIPMENT 315,892 

UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BAlA.NCES 315.892 27.710 '9' 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 

Ji\'FLOWS OF RESOURCES, 

AND FUND BALANCES S ~20.0\9 27.7\0 16.045 
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JUVENILE 

PROBATION & 

DETENTION 

nJND 

525,611 

166 

5,000 

530,777 

3.798 

3.798 

526,979 

526.979 

530,777 



COVNlYCLERK 

RECORDS 

MGMT. A."iO 

PRESERVATION 

FUND 

1,056, 106 

289 

1.056.395 

36.796 

36.796 

1.019.599 

1.019.599 

1.056.395 

COl1l\'TY 

CLERK 

RECORDS 

ARCBrvt: 

FWD 

816.333 

221 

816.554 

2.909 

2.909 

813,645 

813.645 

816.554 

ASAP 

CONSTABLE 

pcr , 

PROGR-\M 

100,934 

100.934 

38.863 

62,071 

100,934 

100,934 

COL1"1'-'lY 

RECORDS 

Me"'T. AA'D 

I'RLStRV,lt,TION 

roND 

727.327 

202 

727529 

25.600 

25.600 

701 .929 

701.929 

727.52 9 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 
SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

JUSTICE 80TEL COUNTI'& 

COURT OCCLIPANCY D1STRJcr COURT 

BUILDING TAX TECBNOLOGY 

SECURITI' FUNP fUND 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 104.645 1,756J4L 2L.034 

ACCOUNTS RECEIV A.BLE. Net 109,864 

INTEREST RECEN ABLE 29 466 6 

DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTlTIES 

INVENlDRY. At Cosl 

PREPAlD ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS 104.674 1.866.671 21.040 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 29.246 218 
CO~PENSAT£D ABSENCES 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

UNEARNED RE\iENUE - GRANTS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES S 29.146 118 

DEfERRED INflOWS Of RESOURCES; 

UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRANTS 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 

OF RESOURCES 

FUl\TI BALANCES: 

NONSPENDABLE FOR-

J},'VENTORY 

PREPAlD ITEMS 

RESTRICTED FOR: 

PUBLIC INTEREST 

JUDlClAL & LAW 

ENFORCEMENT L04.674 10.812 

EDUCATION & RECREATION 1.837.425 

HEALTH & ¥/EUARE 

MAINTENANCE OF 

STRUCTURES & EQUIPMENT 

UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL fUND BALANCES S 104,674 L837,425 20.S12 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 

INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND FUND BALANCES S 104.674 1.866.671 21.040 
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SUERI FF AND TA." omCE UNCLAI/l- IED DISTRICT ,. 
CONSTABLE Aum FUNDS fAMILY ATIORNEY HOT COURTROOM 

EDUCATION DEALER ,\L.\J"AGEr.I£lI.'T PROTECTION VORFEITURE C I:I ECK TECBNOLOGY 

""''0 FUND FUND ""''0 """ ""'" FUND 

29,638 166,382 2:.5~8 16541 345.8:!4 67.978 557.301 

47 156 

29.646 166.429 2.538 16.$45 345 .824 67.978 557.457 

254 2.500 317 1.182 332 

254 2.500 327 l.18? 332 

166,429 38 

29.392 16.545 345,497 66.796 557,125 

29.392 166.429 38 16.545 345.497 66.796 55 7.125 

29.646 166.429 2.538 16.545 345.824 67,978 557.457 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

DISTRICT COVNTI' COUN1Y 

CLERK CLERK CLERK CHILD 

RECOIUlS ELECTION HAVA ABUSE 

~IANAGEM.ENT CONTRACTS FUND PREVE!'iTION 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUrv ALENTS 4,950 9,195 9.lD7 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Nel 

INTEREST RECBVABLE 

DUE FROM OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

INVENTORY, At Cost 

PREPAID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS 4.951 9.198 9.110 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, A!\'1) FUND BALAl'.'CE 

LIABILITIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 690 
CQMPENSATEDABSENCES 

DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 

UNEARNED REVINl.iE - GRANTS 

TOTAL LIABILITIES , 690 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GR.uITS 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLO\V5 

OF RESOURCES 

FUND BALA:~CES: 

NONSPENDABlE FOR: 

INVENTORY $ 

PREPAID ITEMS 

RESTRICTED FOR: 

PUBLIC ThrrEREST 9,198 

JUDIClAL& LAW 

ENFORCEM ENT 4,261 9.110 

EDUCATION & RECREATION 

HEALTH & WELFARE 

MAINTENANCE OF 

STRUCTURES & EQUiPMENT 

UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 4,261 9,198 9,110 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 

INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 

AND FUND BALANCES $ 4,951 9,198 9.110 
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SHERIFF'S 

SPECIAL 

REVF.!"!UE 

ruNDS 

1.833,606 

24J92 
148 

713.969 
32,2)5 

2.604.350 

200.573 

619,358 

819.931 

32,235 

1.752,184 

1.784.4:9 

2.604,350 



GUAJU)I.AJ';SD IP 

FEE 

FlJND 

216,993 

61 

217.054 

217,054 

1 17.054 

217.054 

JUVENILE 

DELINQUL'ICY 

PREvENTION 

82.983 

23 

83.006 

83,006 

83.006 

83.006 

DISTRICT 

counT 

RECORDS 

TECHNOLOGY 

<lU96 

11 

41,207 

4,660 

4.660 

36,547 

36.547 

41.207 

PROll. ... n OI"" 

DEPARTM.[NT 

FUNDS 

3,310,812 

5,631 

871 

78.213 

623 

3,396.150 

54 1.615 

18. 104 

48,364 

845.803 

1.453.886 

623 

1,955.850 

(1 4 )09) 

1.942.264 

3.396.150 
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GRAN T 

F1,i,,'DS 

8,96 7,683 

2,523 

372.683 

9,342.889 

140,457 

2] I ,127 

371.684 

22.867 

22.867 

123,764 

8,861,906 

(37.J12) 

8.948.318 

9342.889 

TOTAL 

21.033 ,799 

139.887 

5.337 

1.270,799 

32,235 
623 

22,482.680 

1,049.808 

18.104 

961.020 

845.803 

2.87035 

22.867 

22.867 

32,235 

623 

2,927,892 

5.6602 52 

1,837,8 19 

8.861,906 

315.892 

(51.541) 

19.5&5.078 

22.482.680 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EX1'ENDlTVRES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

[OR THE FI?~ALY.E~ ENDE:DSEPTE!I1l3ER 30,2016 

BREATH .rUVEl\'ILE 

L4.TERAL ALCOl:lOL LAW PROBATION & 

RO . .!J) TESTIl"'G LffiMRY DETENTION 

FlJl\'O FlTI\'D FlrJ','D FlTl'o'D 

REVENUES: 
TAXES S 
FEES 8,047 55,363 28,304 

FINES AND FORFEITURES 
SALES, RENTAL & SERVICES 

INTERGOVE~lAL 29,244 37,495 
INTEREST 1,194 91 3 1,896 

CONTRIBUnONS AND DONA nONS 

TOTAL REVENUES , 30,438 8,138 55,366 67,695 

EXPEI\DITURES: 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 

JUDICIA.L Al\TD LAW ENFORCEMENT 4,570 97,054 
EDueA nON AND RECREATION 53,833 
HEALTJ-I AND WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

AND EQUfPMENT 43,970 

CAP IT Ai aUILA Y 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 43,970 4,570 53,833 97,054 

EXCESS (DEFlCrENG,OFREYENu"ES 
OVER EXPEI\'DJTURES S (I3,532) 3,568 1,533 (29,359) 

OTHER Fl!\TANCL\'G SOURCES (USES): 
TRft.NSFER S IN S 53,505 

TRANSFERS OUT (63,864) 

TOTAL OTHER FlNANCL'lG 
SOURCES (USES) $ (10,359) 

i'\ET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (13,531 ) 3,568 1,533 (39,7IS) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNTh'G $ 319,<124 24,1<12 (1,139) 566,697 

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

FU1'\D BAL<\NCES, BEGL"\NING (Restated) $ 329
2
-424 24,142 (1, (39) 566,697 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 315,892 27,7\0 394 526,979 
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COU"'-\" CLERK CQUl\TY COUI\"TY 

RECORDS CLERK ASAl' RECORDS 

fl IGMT. A.1"1'D JUCORD S CONSTABLE MGMT. AA'D 

PRESERVATION ARCBJ\' E PCT 8 PRESERVATION 

FU>m "i'''' PROGRAM ftl1\'D 

398, 186 413.520 127,557 

763, 194 
3,200 1 ,253 2,384 

40 1,386 4 \ 5,773 763,194 129 ,9:1 1 

230,567 112,009 93,460 
763 ,194 

230,567 11 2,009 763,194 93,460 

1i0,S 19 303,764 36,48 1 

170, 819 303 ,764 36,481 

848,780 509,88 1 665 ,448 

8.:18,7 80 509,88 \ 665,448 

1,0 19,599 813,645 701,929 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEffERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN fUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR TaE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

JUSTICE BOTEL COUJ\TY &; 

COURT OCCUPANCY DISTIUCT COtfRT 

BI.Jl.LOrNG TA.,'\: T.ECWOLOGY 

SECURITY FUND '""ll 
R£VENUES~ 

T.ft....'(ES S J,2II,569 
FEES 9,44 9 6,832 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 
SALES, RENTAL & SERV1CES lJ,428 
rNTERGOVER.NMENT AL 
lNTEREST 342 4.659 6. 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS " 

TOTAL REV[!'\UES $ 9.19 1 1.229.667 6,896 

EXPEI\'1HTliRES: 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ 

JUDICLA..L AND U. W ENTQRCEMENT 2,735 
EDUCATION AND R£CREATlO~ 861,1 25 
HEALT H AND WELFARE 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 

AND EQUlP MENT 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL [XPEi'DITURES S 86 1,225 2,735 

EX CESS (DEfICOCNCy) Of REVENUES 
OVER EX.PENDITURES $ 9 ,791 368,442 4,16 1 

OTHER fINA ... ,,"CLNG SO URCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 
TRANSFERS OUT 

TOTAL QTHIn fL ..... ANCI:'lG 
SOURCES (USESI $ 

NET CHk."GE iN FUND BALANCES $ 9,791 368,442 4,16\ 

FI.fi';D BA1..AI\CES. BEGINNL"'{G $ 94,883 1,468,983 16,651 
PRJOR PERIOD ADJ USTMENT 

FVi'\D BALANCES. BEGIl\XLNG (Restated) $ 9 <1 .883 1.' 68.983 16,65 1 

FUND nALA NCES. ENDING $ 104,674 1.837,425 ~O.8 1 2 

86 



SIJIRlFF M'D T A.,,{Off ICE UNCLAThI:rD D1STRJCT JP 
CONSTABLE AlJTO FUNDS FA/l.m..y ATTORNEY ROT COURTROO!' l 

EDUCATION DEAJ.IR f\L\...!I;AGEf\ ([I\"'T PROnCfION FORFEITURE CliECK TECHNOLOGY 

f UND f\Jl\'D Fl.i" 1) fUl\'D F1JN1) FUND fill"" 

4,0 15 14, 175 13,843 38,13 7 
! 63 ,500 

500 
30.088 

124 3.100 3 1 48 1 1,85 I 

30.112 7,71 5 14,206 163,98 1 13,843 39,988 

21.064 15,000 62,58 1 6.061 4,137 

27,()6.:I 15,000 62,58 1 6,067 4,137 

3,648 7,715 (194) 10 1.400 7,776 35,85 I 

(139.49 1) 

(139
1
491) 

3,648 7,715 ( 139
1
491 ) (194) 101,400 7,776 35.85 1 

25,744 158,7 14 139,529 17,339 244,097 59,020 52 1,274 

25,744 158 714 139,529 17 ,339 244,097 59,020 52 1,2 74 

29,392 166,429 38 16,54 5 345,497 66.196 557,1 25 

[CONTlNlJED] 

81 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVEN UES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNM ENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE 

FOR TH.E FISCAL, YEA!l-ENPEE..s_F!!EMB_ER~O,2016 

DJSl'RlCT cou",,.y COLTi\jY Sl:l:tRlFF'S 

CLERK CLERK CLERK emLD SPECIAL 
RECORDS ELECTION HAYA ABUS'E REVEJ\'UE 

MANAGEJH:E~'T CO,\"TR.,\CTS J'lT1'.'D PREYEl'iTION Fl)ND5 

R£VEN liES: 
TAXES S 
FEES 16.340 17,309 1.964 344,035 
FINES AND FORFEITURES 100,547 
SAlES, RBH AL & SERVICES 97 1,602 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 2,299,754 
INTEREST 5 56 9 28 4,242 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONA n ONS 10,137 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 16.345 17,365 9 1.992 3.730.317 

EXPENDITURES: 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT S 30,255 J 1,66 1 

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT 13,631 -1,25 1,946 
EDUCATION AND RECREATION 
HEALT H AND \-VEU ARE 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUC1l../RES 

AND EQUIPMENT 
eAPIT AL OUTLAY 

TOTA L EXPENDITURES S 13,631 30,255 11,661 4.25 1,946 

EXCESS (DEflCfE NCY) Of REVENUES 
OVIR£XPENDIT UR£S $ 2,7 14 ( 12.890) ( 11,652) 1,992 (52 1,629) 

OTHER F fNANC ING SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSFERS IN $ 575,000 
TRANSFERS OUT (23,695) (106,159) 

TOTAL OTHERFINA.NCL>.o:G 
SOURCES (USES) , (2),695) 468,84 1 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES , 2,7 14 (12890) (35,347) 1,992 (5217881 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINI\'ING $ 1,54 7 22.088 35,)47 7,118 1,837,207 
PRIOR PERIOD AD,JUST MENT 

FU1\D BALANCES, BEG INN ING (Re stated) S 1,547 22,088 35.3.47 7,1 J 8 11837 1207 

FUND BALAl\'CES, ENDING $ 4,26 1 9.198 9, 11 0 1,78 4,419 
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DISTRICT 

G UARn lANSIilP JUVENILE COURT PROBATlON 

FEE DELTh'QUENCY RECORDS DEPARTrlIEl\'T GRAl,"" 

FUND PREVEl\'TION TECHNOLOGY FLl\'OS HINDS TOTAL 

1,211,569 
28,820 103 31,915 3,017,365 4,575,279 

264,047 
985,530 

5,694,842 1,516,678 10,371 ,295 
695 285 252 10,780 30,488 69,113 

1,660 11 ,808 

29,515 388 31,167 8,722,987 1,548,826 17,488,641 

1,900 480,852 
120,796 7,966,434 1,480,272 14,815,4 8 1 

915,058 
34,265 34,165 

43,970 

2,900 110,796 7,966,434 1,5 14,537 16,289,626 

26,6 15 388 (88,629) 756 1553 34,289 1,199,Ol5 

90,694 464,3 49 1,183,548 
(26,830) (609) 060,648) 

63,864 463,740 821,900 

26,6 15 3SS {88,629) 820.41 7 498,029 2.021,9 15 

190,439 82,6 18 125,176 1. 122,633 8,450,309 17,563 ,949 
(786) (786) 

190,439 82.6 18 125, 176 1, 121.847 8,450,309 17,563 ,163 

217,054 83,006 36,547 \ ,942.264 8.948,338 19.585,078 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBATION DEPARTMENT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

JUVENILE 

PROBATION JUVENILE 

AND COiVIMU";JTY IV_E FOSTER JUVENILE 

DETENTlON- CORRECTIONS CARE CRAi'iTA -

STATE AID PROGRAM FUI\'D STATE AID 

ASSETS, 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 38, 197 3, 185 512,015 328,757 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVAB LE, Nel 
INTEREST RECEIVABL E 145 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTJTIES 
PREP AID ITEMS 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 38,197 3,186 5P,160 328.757 

lIAB1L1TIES AND FUND BALANCES 

liABILITIES, 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 2,737 ISO all 175,434 
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
UNEARNED REVENUE 48.854 I j 7.391 

TOTAL liABILITIES 51,5 91 180 8 11 29'),8')5 

FUND BALANCES, 
NONSPENDABLE FOR: 

PREPAID ITEMS $ 

RESTRlCTED FOR: JUDIClAL & 
LAW ENFORCEMENT 3,006 5lJ ,349 35,932 

UNASS IGNED ( DEFICIT) ([3,394) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES ([3,394) 3.006 51 1,349 35,932 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
FUND BALANCES $ 38,197 3,186 512.160 328,757 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS­

SPECIAL REVENUE - PROBA nON DEPARTMENT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

rvlEl\'TALL Y 

IMPAIRED 1\.1El\'TAL 

OFFEl\1)ERS CO MIVIlJj\ lIT WOiIIEN'S HEALTH 

PROGRAiV! SUPERVISION CEI\'TER SERVICES 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUN ALENTS $ 60,644 1,255,043 544,485 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 3,248 1,994 

INTEREST RECEfY ABLE 620 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 1,100 
PREP AID ITEMS 476 90 

TOTAL ASSETS S 60,644 1,260,487 546,569 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S 6,470 206,808 69,231 
COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 
UNEARNED REVENUE 23,344 '49,471 ?41,1 03 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 29,814 456,279 310,334 

FUND BALAJ'<CES: 
NONSPENDABLEFOR 

PREPAID ITEMS $ 476 90 
RESTRlCTED FOR: JUDICIAL & 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 30,830 803,732 236,145 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES S 30,830 804,208 '36,235 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AJND 
FUND BALANCES S 60,644 1,260,487 546,569 
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CO;\fMUN rTY 

CORRECTIONS 

295,024 
389 

51 

295,410 

17,564 
18,104 

91,264 

126,932 

51 

168,48 1 

168,538 

295,410 

OWl 

PRETRJ .-U 

DI VERSI O I~ 

i69, 564 

169,564 

3,294 

3,?94 

166,210 

166.270 

169,564 

JUVE!\' ILE 

DRUG 

COURT 

11..11 3 

11.113 

28,149 

48,364 

11, 11 3 

11,1 13 

DRUG 

OIVtRS [ON 

PROGRAM 

103 ,898 

103,898 

30,337 

14.316 

104,7 13 

(815) 

(8 15) 

103 ,898 

93 

JUVEf>,lLE 

T JPC 

A 

105 

105 

105 

105 

105 

2016 

TOTAL 

3,3 10,812 
5,63 1 

811 

18,213 
623 

3.396,150 

541 ,615 
18, 104 
48 ,364 

845,803 

1,453.886 

623 

1,955,850 
( 14;!09) 

J ,942,264 

3.396. 150 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECL;\L REVENUE - PROBA nON DEPARTMENT FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

JUVENILE 

PROBATION JUVENILE 

'-'" CO!'I'IMUNlTY 1V_£ fOSTER JUVENILE 

DUEi''TION_ CORRECTIONS CARE CR--\NT A-

STATEAlD PROGRAAI FUND STATEAJD 

REVENUES, 
FEES $ 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 54,703 4,840 1,391,94 7 
INTEREST 1 1,774 

T OTAL REVENUES 54,703 4,841 1,774 1,391,947 

EXPENDITURES, 
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT $ 53,022 1,835 14 ,288 1,423,37 1 
CAFIT AL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 53,022 1,835 14,188 1,413,371 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,681 3,006 (12 ,5 14) (31,424) 

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES), 
TRANSFERS IN $ 

TRANSFERS OUT 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 1,681 3,006 ( 12,5 14) (3 1,4 24) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING ( 15,075) 523,863 67,356 
PRIOR PERlOD ADJUSTMENT 

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER J (Restated) $ (15 ,075) 523,863 67.356 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ (13,394) 3,006 511 ,349 35,932 

[CONTINUED] 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVEJ\'UE - PROBA nON DEPARTMENT FUNDS 

FOR I~¥.IS<::AI" TIAB~_NQ.E!> SEP1:EMBER30, 2016 

MEI\'TAlLY 

IMPAlRED 

OFFENDERS (Oi\11\JUNITY WQl'I'lEN'S 

PROCRAl\tl SUPERVlSION enTER 

REVENUES, 
FEES $ 2,53 1, 199 2 15,907 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 140,064 1,538,904 1,446,62 1 
INTEREST 7,274 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 140,064 4,077,377 1.662,528 

EXPENDITURES, 
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT $ 110,739 3,780,829 1,448,829 
CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 110,739 3,780.829 1,448,829 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 29.325 296548 213,699 

OTHER FINANCIAL SOURCES (USES) , 
TRANSFERS IN 786 
TRANSFERS OUT (26,830) 

TOTAL OTHER FI NANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (26,044) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 29,325 270,504 213 ,699 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,505 534,490 22 ,5 36 
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUST MENT (786) 

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER I (Restaled) S 1,505 533,704 22 ,536 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING S 30,830 804,208 236.135 
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i\{[NTAL 

HEALTH 

SER\1CES 

8,289 

8,289 

8,289 

(8,289) 

(8,789) 



OWl JUVENILE DRUG JUVENILE 

eO Mi\1UN1TY PRETRlq,L DRUG OTVERSION TIPe 2016 

CORRECTIONS DIVERSION COL'ItT PROGRA ... M A TOTAL 

183,620 86,639 3,017,365 
543,608 127,90 1 446,254 5,694,842 

1,731 10,780 

543,608 183,620 127 ,90 1 53',893 1,73 1 8,722,987 

390,468 64,5 16 122,988 555,549 7,966,434 

390,468 64,5 16 122,988 555,549 7,966,434 

153, 140 119,104 4,9 13 (22,656) 1,731 756,553 

26,044 55,575 90,694 
(16,830) 

261044 55.575 63 ,864 

153, 140 119,104 4,9 13 3,388 57,306 820,4 17 

15,398 47,166 (4,913) (4,203) (57,20 1 ) 1,122,633 
(786) 

15,398 47,166 (4,913) (4,203) (5 7,20 1 ) 1,1 2 1,847 

168,538 166.070 (8J 5) 105 1,942,264 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUl\'J)S 
SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

f AI\,fILY 

GROUP SHERlFF SH£RlFF 

CONFERENCJNG TRAINING J.4.G DEPT 

PROJECT GRANT GRAr>;T GRANTS 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQ\.,lVALENTS $ 32,465 II 
INTEREST RECEJV ABLE 9 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITlES 12.395 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 32 ,474 II 12,395 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, A1\'D FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 2,359 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 9,137 10,036 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 9,137 12,395 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE-GRMTS $ 6,602 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESO URCES S 6,602 

FUND BALANCES: 
RESTRICTED FOR: 

JUDICIAL & LAW 
ENFORCEMENT 32,474 II 

HEALTH & WELFARE 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (9, 13 7) (6,602) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 32,474 II (9, J3 7) (6,602) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND FlJl\'D BALANCES $ 32,474 JI 12,395 
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SCAAP 

GRANT 

17,242 
5 

17,247 

17,247 

17 ,24 7 

]7,247 

CRL~I [ 

VI CTlMS 

CLEARlNG -I 

19,639 

19,639 

18,730 

18,730 

909 

909 

19,639 

REGIONAL 

COi\'IMLJNICATION 

55,449 
15 

55,464 

3,244 

3,244 

52,220 

52,220 

55,464 

99 

CRllvIE 

VICTI.!\'IS 

CL EARING· 2 

8,404 
1 

8,405 

13,783 

13,783 

(5,378) 

(5,3 78) 

8,405 

El\'IPG 

GRAj'lT 

98,86 1 
28 

32,622 

131,511 

197 

197 

13 1,314 

131 ,3 14 

13 1,51 1 

FORENSIC 

SCIENC E 

IMPROVEC\"IENT 

GRANT 

44,504 

44,504 

25,985 
18,282 

44 ,267 

237 

237 

44,504 

[CO NTINUED] 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NOl\'MAJOR GOVERNMEl\'TAL FUl\'DS· 

SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

PORT AlITO DRUG 

SECURITY THEFT FEI\1 . .o\ IJ\TERVEJ\TION 

GRANTS GRAJ\T EMERGENCY GRA."",T 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUN ALENTS $ 13,8 14 8,728, 127 
INTEREST RECEIVABLE 2,465 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 41,442 39,301 19,290 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 55,256 39,301 8,730,592 19,290 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 55,256 5,366 118 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 33,935 19,172 

TOTAL LIABILITIES S 55)56 39,301 19,290 

DEfERRED INfLOWS OF RESOURCES: 
UNAVAILABLE REVENUE·GRANTS $ 6,317 9,898 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES $ 6,317 9,898 

FUND BALANCES: 
RESTRICTED FOR: 

ruDlCIAL & LAW 
ENFORCEMENT 

HEALTH & WELFARE 8,730,592 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) (6,3 17) (9,898) 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (6,317) 8,730,592 (9,898) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED 
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, 
AND FUND BALANCES $ 55,256 39,301 8,730,590 19,290 
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VIOLENCE VIOL ENCE FAJvJILY SHS P & 

AGAINST AGATNST TRE:\TM Ei\T LETPP 

WOMEN -I WOMEN - 2 counT GRA:''ITS 

1,577 

7.1 04 11 ,978 9,711 

8,681 11.978 9,7 11 

8.422 1,871 
11,978 6)55 

8,422 11,978 8.126 

50 

50 

259 1,53 5 

259 1,535 

8.68 1 11 ,978 9,711 
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CHEEK 

WATER A."'iD CJD 

SEWER SHEruFF 

PHAS[4 GR.A]...'TS 

11 ,733 

11 0,841 23.856 

122,574 23.856 

23,856 
103,702 

103,702 23,856 

18,871 

18,872 

122,574 23,85 6 

2016 

GR.~'H 

TOTALS 

8,967,683 
2,523 

372 .683 

9,342,889 

140.4 57 
231,227 

37 1,684 

00,867 

22 ,867 

113,764 
8,86 1,906 

(37,332) 

8,948,338 

9,342,889 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 

FOR THJ£FISCM~YEAR ENDE;!?, SEPTE~1BEg 30, ~ 0l6 

FA1>ULY 

GROUP SHERlFF SHERlFF 

CONFEREJ\'CING TRAINING JAG DEPT 

PROJECT GRANT GRAi\l GR.v;'TS 

REVENUES, 

INTER GOVERNMENT A..L S 1,949 18,465 28.S88 

INTEREST 113 

CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 

TOTAL REVENUES S Il3 1,949 18,465 28,8SS 

EXPENDITURES, 
JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCEMENT S 1,152 19,508 40,906 

HEALTH & WELFARE 
C APIT AL OUTLAY 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES S 1.152 19,508 40.906 

EXCESS (DEFICIENcy) OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES S (1,039) 1,949 (1,D43) (J?,018) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES), 

TRANSFERS IN S 5,511 

TRANSFERS OUT 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) S 5.511 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALA1\'CES S (1,039) 1,949 (1,043) (6,507) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGIN~'INC 33,513 (1,938) (8,094) (95) 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING 32,474 11 (9,137) (6,602) 
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FORENSIC 

CRliliE CRlil'fE SCIENCE 

SCAAP VICTIMS REG IONAL VICTTh'(S B1PG Thll'ROVEII'IE1\'T 

GRAl',T CLEARING -I COMM UN ICATI ON CLEARJNG - 2 GRA;\"T GR.v-.'T 

10,21 4 75 ,985 69,495 244)68 
158 200 297 

20,372 75,985 200 69,792 244,768 

33 _7 15 169 ,574 9, 11 1 20,483 144,768 
3 1,265 

33,715 269,574 9,l ll 20,483 31.265 244,768 

(13,343) (193,589) (8,911 ) (20,482 ) 38,527 

193,759 1} .830 
(609) 

193,759 13,830 (609) 

(13,343) 170 (8 ,9 11 ) (6 ,652) 37,918 

30,590 739 6 1,131 1,274 93,396 237 

17,247 909 52,220 (5,378) 13 1,31 4 23 7 

(CO NTINUED) 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS­
SPECIAL REVENUE - GRANT FUNDS 

FOR THE.F1SCALYEAR ENDED SEPIEMBER 30, ~Q16 

PORT AUTO DRUG 

SECURITY T HEFT FE!\V. I l\'TERVE~TION 

GR.!\ I\'TS GRAi\, EMERGENCY GRA~T 

REVENUES, 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 3 18,4 79 75,304 366,692 50,986 
INTEREST 29,7 19 
CONTR IBUTIONS AND DONATIONS 

TOTAL REVENUES 318,479 75,304 396,41 1 50,986 

EXPENDITU RES, 
JUDICLAL AND LA W E~FORC'EM ENT S 424 ,638 115 ,465 60,862 
HEALTH & WELFARE 
C APlT AL OUTLAY 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES S 424 ,638 115,465 60,862 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITU RES S (106, 159) (40,161) 396,411 (9,Z76) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES), 

TRANSFERS IN 5 106,159 40,598 118 
TRA NS FERS OUT 

TOTAL OTHER FJNANONG 
SOURCES (USES) S 106,1 59 40,598 11 8 

NET CllANGE IN FUI' D BALANCES S 437 396,411 (9,758) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGIKNING (6,754) 8,334, 18 1 ( 140) 

FUN D BALANCES, ENDING S (6,3 17) 81730,597 (9,898) 
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CHEEK 

VlOLE;\"CE \ '10LEi'\CE fAM1LY SHSP & WATER AND ero 2016 

AGAL'\'ST AGAINST TREA TiYIEi\'T LETPP SE \\'E R SHERJfF GRANT 

WOMEN · J WOt'l'LEN -2 COURT GR.,\NTS PHASE .. GRA"TS TOTALS 

7, 104 65 ,879 37,212 55 J 110,841 23,856 1,5 16,678 
30,488 

1,660 1,660 

7,104 65,879 38,882 55 1 11 0 ,841 23,856 1.548,826 

13,000 163,489 38,585 1,160 23 ,856 1,480,272 
3,000 34,265 

)3,000 163,489 38,585 1,160 3,000 23,856 1.514,537 

(5,896) (97 ,610) 297 (609) 107,841 34,289 

6, 155 97,610 609 464 ,349 
(609) 

6, 155 97 ,6 10 609 463.740 

259 297 107,841 498 ,019 

1,238 (88,969) 8,450,309 

'59 1,535 18,872 8,948.338 
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for all resources used for the 
acquisition or construction of capital facilities except those financed by Enterprise 
Funds or Internal Service Funds. Included in this heading are the following individ~al 
funds: 

BP Setdement Shoreline - This fund is used to account for the proceeds received 
related to the BP Deepwater Horizon lawsuit settlement. Plamled expenditures for . 

· these proceeds will be for the County shoreline and dune restoration project staring in 
Sabine Pass to High Island. 

1957 Road Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for the purchase of right-of-way 
for highway and utility adjustments in conjunction with the Texas State .Highway 
Dep31iinent. 

GLO Ike Round 2 - This fu·nd is used to account for the grants from the General Land 
Office for the McFaddin National Wildlife Re~ge Dune Restoration project. 

> 

· TCEQ - First Time Sewer - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the 
installation of a low pressure sewer system to approximately 81 low income residential 
customers in the Candlelight and Martel subdivisions. Funds for this project are from 
penalties assessed by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

· CETRZ Grant - This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures 
related to the County Energy Transportation Reinvestment Zone (CETRZ) Grant froin 
theState of Texas. This grant will be used to rehabilitate County roads within all the 
Road & Bridge precincts. 

Keith Lake Fish Pass - This fund is used to account for the expenditures to construct 
erosion'control devices in the Keith Lake Fish Pass. 

ORA Capital Grants - This fund is used to account for the grants from the Office of 
Rural Affairs (ORA) and Community Development Block Grants for Disaster 
Recovery Programs. 



Ford Park Kayak Launch - This fund is used to account for the expenditures for the 
. construction of the Katherine Huey Phelan Kayak Launch from funding received from 
a private donation. Kayak launch will be located adjacent to the Ben J Rogers 
Regional Visitors Center. ~ 

\ 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING BALA. "ICE SHEET 

NONMAJORGOVERNMENTA.L FUmS - CAPITAL PROJECTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

"' SETfLEf\(£I\T 19S7 ROAD 

SHORELINE 80"''0 FlJi\.'O 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVA.LENTS $ 1,50 1,559 65,326 
INTEREST RECEIVAELE 424 18 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 

TOT A.L ASSETS S 1,501 ,983 65,344 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES, AND FUND BA.LANCE 

LIABILITIES: 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 23,325 

TOT A.L LlAEILITlES $ 23,325 

FUND BA.LANCES: 
RESTRlCTED FOR CONS TRUCTION $ 

COMMITTED FOR CONS TRUCTION CONTRACTS 
ASSIGNED FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,501,983 42,019 
UNASSIGNED (DEFICIT) 

TOTA.LFUNDBA.LA~C~ $ 1,501,983 42,019 

TOT A.L LlABlLIT1~, DEFERRED rNfLOwS 
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BA.LANCES $ 1,501,983 65,344 
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GLO IKE 

ROUI\" 2 

255 

69,726 

69,981 

69,726 

69,726 

532,034 

(531,779) 

255 

69,981 



TCEQ· FIRST 

TIME SEWER 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

CETRZ. 

GRAA'-

KEITH LAKE 

Fl SB I'ASS 

120,755 
34 

120,789 

120,789 

120,789 

120,789 

ORA FORD PARK 

CAPITAL 

CRANTS 

30,691 

30,69 1 

30,691 

30,691 

30,691 

109 

KAYAK 

UUNCJ:I 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

TOTAL 

1,768,600 
476 

69,726 

1,838,802 

143,05 1 

143,05 1 

30,705 
532,034 

1,664,791 
(53 1,779) 

1,695,751 

1,838,802 



JEFFERSON COU:-.ITY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - CAPIT AL PROJECTS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

BP 

S ETTLEMENT J957 ROAD 

SEORELINE Bor',n FUl\1) 

REVENUES: 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL $ 

[/\'TEREST 5 .158 446 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 5, 158 446 

EXPENDITURES: 
CAPITAL OUTLAY $ 140,767 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 140,767 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPEI\llITURES $ 5,158 (140,32 1) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
TRANSfERS IN $ 
TRANSfERS OUT 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ 5,1 58 ( 140,321 ) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,496,825 182,340 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 1,501,983 42,0 19 
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GLO IKE 

ROUND Z 

2,636,341 
255 

2,636,596 

2,636,341 

2,636,341 

255 

255 

255 



OR' FORD PARK 

TCEQ· FmsT CETRZ. KEITH LAKE CAPlTAL KAYAK 

TIlI'Il: SEWER GRANT FISH YASS GRANTS LAUNCH TOTAL 

581 ,to8 399,1 28 3,6 16,577 
415 1.753 155 8,182 

581, 108 41 5 400,881 155 3,624,759 

232,353 414,2 17 50,000 3,473,678 

232,353 414,217 50,000 3,473,678 

348,755 415 (13 ,336) (49,845) 151 ,08 1 

46,47 1 46,471 
(2 18) (21 8) 

46,4 71 (218) 46,253 

395,226 415 (13 ,336) (50,063) 197,334 

14 (395,226) 120,374 44,027 50,063 1,498,417 

14 120,789 30,691 1,695,751 
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for each specific long -term debt. 
These funds account for ·the accumulation of resourCes and subsequent 
disbursement of such resources to pay, plincipal, interest; and commissions. 
Included in this heading are the following individual funds: 

2012 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the·l:evenues·and 
~penditures associated with the $47,305,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds , 
issued in May 2012. 

2013 Refunding Bond - This fund is used to account for the revenues and 
expenditures associated with the $1,340,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
issued in October 2013. 

20'11 Refunding Bond - This fund is usedto account for the revenues and' 
expenditures associated with the $5,550,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
issued in March 2011, 

\ 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUl\'DS - DEBT SERVICE 

SEPTEMBER3.o,_2016 

2012 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

ASSETS: 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 392,981 

INTEREST RECEIVABLE 11 0 
DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE, Net 73,643 
PENALTY AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE, Net 35, 155 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 501,889 

LlABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 

RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
UNA V AlLABLE REVENUE-PROPERTY TAXES $ 99,537 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOt:RCES $ 99,537 

FUl\'D BALANCES: 
RESTRICTED FOR DEBT SERVICE $ 402 ,352 

TOT AL FUl\'D BALANCES $ 402,352 

TOTAL LlABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS 
OF RESOURCES, Al\'D FUND BALANCES $ 501 ,889 

Jl4 

2013 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

41 ,459 

12 
4,624 

2,207 

48,302 

6,249 

6,249 

42,053 

42,053 

48,302 



2011 
REFill'HHNG 

BOND 

134,697 
38 

19,079 
9,108 

162,922 

25,788 

25,788 

137,134 

137,134 

162,922 

TOTAL 

569, 137 
160 

97,346 
46,470 

713 ,113 

131,574 

131,5 74 

58 1,539 

58 1,539 

713,113 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

M"D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR'ENDED SEPTEMBER30, 2016 

2012 2013 
REFUNDING REFUNDING 

BOND BOND 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 4,257,374 267,267 
INTEREST 9,178 670 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,266,552 267,937 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 3,210,000 265,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,455,700 13,871 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 4,665,700 278,871 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (399,148) (10,934) 

NET CHAL"GE IN FUND BALANCES $ (399,148) (10,934) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 801,500 52,987 

FUl'm BALANCES, ENDING $ 402,352 42,053 
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2011 
REFUNDING 

BOND 

1,104,424 
2,725 

1,107,149 

1,115,000 
70,325 

1,185,325 

(78,176) 

(78, 176) 

215 ,310 

137,134 

TOTAL 

5,629,065 
12,573 

5,641,638 

4,590,000 
1,539,896 

6, 129,896 

( 488,258) 

(488,258) 

1,069,797 

58 1,539 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVEI\'UES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND C HANGES IN F UND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVIC E FUNDS 

FO R THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3D, 2016 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOU NTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 5,490,6 16 5,490,6 16 5,629,065 
INTEREST 8,850 8,850 12,573 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 5,499,466 5,499,466 5,641,638 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRJNCIPAL $ 4,590,000 4,590,000 4,590,000 
rNTEREST AND COM MISSION 1,546, 121 1,546, 121 1,539,896 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES $ 6,136,121 6,136,1 21 6,129,896 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCy) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (636,655) (636,655) (488,258) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES $ (636,655) (636,655) (488,258) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 1,069,797 1,069,797 1,069,797 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 433,142 433,142 58 1,539 
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VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

138,449 
3,723 

142,172 

6,225 

6,225 

148,397 

148,397 

148,397 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE - 2012 REFUNDING BONDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TA-'CES $ 4,152,801 4,152,801 4,257,374 
INTEREST 6,500 6,500 9,178 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 4,159,301 4.159,301 4.266,552 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 3,2 10,000 3,21 0,000 3,210,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 1,45S,000 1,458,000 1,455,700 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 4,668,000 4,668,000 4,665,700 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (50S,699) (508,699) (399, 14S) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (508,699) (508,699) (399, 148) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 801,500 801,500 801,500 

FUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 292,801 29' ,801 402,352 

II9 

VARJANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

104,573 
2,678 

107,25 1 

2,300 

2,300 

109,55 1 

109,5 51 

109,551 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVEI'ruES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE - 2013 REFUNDING BOND 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMB ER 30, 2016 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORlGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 260,706 260,706 267,267 
INTEREST 450 450 670 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 261 ,156 26 1,156 267,937 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 265,000 265,000 265,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSJON 16,171 16,171 13,871 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 281,171 281,171 278,871 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (20,015) (20,015) (10,934) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALAN CE $ (20,0 15) (20,015) (10,934) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 52,987 52,987 52 ,987 

fUND BALANCES, ENDING $ 32,972 32 .972 42,053 
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VARJANCE 
\VITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

6,561 
220 

6,781 

2,300 

2,300 

9,08 1 

9,081 

9,081 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (GAAP) 
DEBT SERVICE - 2011 REFUNDING BONDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

BUDGETED AMOUNTS ACTUAL 
ORIGINAL FINAL AMOUNTS 

REVENUES: 
PROPERTY TAXES $ 1,077,109 1,077, 109 1,104,424 
INTEREST 1,900 1,900 2,725 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 1,079,009 1,079,009 1,107,149 

EXPENDITURES: 
DEBT SERVICE: 

PRINCIPAL $ 1,115,000 1,115,000 1,115,000 
INTEREST AND COMMISSION 71,950 71,950 70,325 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,186,950 1,186,950 1,185,325 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (107,941) (107,941) (78,176) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ (107,941) (107,941) (78,176) 

FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING 215,310 ? 15,310 215 ,310 

FUND BALAN CES, ENDING $ 107,369 107,369 137, 134 
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VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 

27,315 
825 

28,140 

1,625 

1,625 

29,765 

29,765 

29,765 
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services 
. provided by one department or agency to other agencies of the government and to other 

government units, on a cost reimbursement basis. Included in this heading are the 
following individual funds: 

i 

Liability Insurance Fund - This fund is used to account for the County's conttibution 
and payment for liability claims. . ' , 

.. . ', " 
Workers' Compensation Fund· This fu'nd 'is used .to accOunt for the County's 
contribution and payment for workers' compensation claims. 

Southeast Texas Government Employee Benefits Pool - This fund is used to ) 
account for the County's group health insurance program, which includes 
comprehensive major medical and dental care. 

I 



ASSETS: 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION­

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

SOCTHEAST 

LlABnJTI' WORKERS' T[XAS GO"ElU\~I'ENT 

INSURANCE COl\iPE!'\SATlm' EMPLOY£[ B[I'EFITS 

FU!"D f'Urm PO OL FUf\"'O 

CASH AND CASH EQUJV ALENTS $ 519,560 682,753 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 31,939 
INTERESTRECElV ABLE 147 193 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT Ai ENTITIES 275,757 
INSURANCE DEPOSIT 75,500 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 519,707 758,446 307,696 

LlA.BlLlTIES: 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 19,765 
CLAIMS UABlLlTY 365 ,586 244,893 1,271,822 
DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 3,813,276 

TOTAL LlAB1LIT1ES $ 365 ,586 244,893 5, 104,863 

NET POSIT ION: 

UNRESTRICTED $ 154,121 513,553 (4,797,167) 

TOTAL KET POSITION $ 154 ,121 513, 553 (4,797,167) 
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TOTAL 

1,202 ,313 
31,939 

340 
275,757 

75,500 

1,585,849 

19,765 
1,882,301 
3,813.276 

5,71 5,342 

(4,129,493) 

(4,129,493) 



JEFFERSO N COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBlI\'1NG STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, 

AN]) ClL4NGES Ii" NET POSITION -
Il\'TERNAL SERVJCE FUN])S 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR E)\llED SEPTEMllER 30,2016 

LIAB1Ltn' 

IJ"iSJ.:RA1'o'CE 

n INo 

WORKERS' 

COMPENSAnOK 

F1.1!"'O 

SOVTHEAST 

TEXAS GOVEM'MENT 

£MPLOyr:r: llE""'[.}'JTS 

PDOL}'UND 

OPERA.TTh'G REVEi';'UES: 

EMPLOYEE CONIRIBUT1ONS $ 2.210.088 
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 37 5,000 500,000 15.787,660 

TOTAL OPERATING REVL\'ULS $ 375,000 500,000 17,997,748 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 

ADM1NISTRATlVE $ L666,4 74 
rNCURRED &ESTIMATED CLAIMS 554.355 404,399 19,00>, 129 

TOT AL OPERAT~G EXPENSES $ 554 .3 55 404,399 20,668,603 

OPER-\ TUIo/G L"COro.t[ (LOSS) $ (179,355) (2 .670,855) 

1\Or\OPERA liNG REVENLcS: 

INTEREST > 2, 15] 1,6 80 
REfUNDS AND RECOVERlES 17,794 683.573 

TO TAL ]'\O!\'OPER<\TING REYEKUES $ 19.945 1, 680 683.573 

CEA"'GE IN NET POS ITION $ (1 59,4 10) 97,281 (1 ,987,282) 

i\"'[T POSITlO.~, BEGE\,!\ING 313,53 1 416,2 72 (2 ,809,885) 

nT POSITION, E~lJlNG $ 154, 121 513.553 (4 ,797,167) 
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T OTAL 

2,210,088 
16. 662,660 

18.812.748 

1,666,474 
19,960,883 

21,627.357 

(2,754.609) 

3.831 
701.367 

705.198 

(2 ,049.411) 

(, ,080,082) 

(4, 129.493) 



JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS· 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL ''EAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 201 6 

SOUTHEAST 

LlABl l.lTV WOru.:I:RS ' TEAA'; GQvtPJ..'MEJ\T 

IN5URA!'KE COMPENs .... nON EMPLOYEE BEI\TflTS 

' UND F'U;',l) POOL Flrtll) TOTAL 

CA SH FLOWS FROM OP ERATING ,.1,CTI\'lTIES: 

RECELPTS FROM CUSTOMERS At-.'D USERS S 1,94 l,l47 1.943,247 
RECEIPTS FROM EMPLOHES 2.205 ,547 2,205.547 
PAYM8'-'TS TO SUPPLIERS (1,665,4 13) (1,665.413) 
)}..'TERNAL ACT! VITY ·RECElPTS(P A YMENTS) FROM 

(TO) OTHER FUNDS 375,000 500,000 15,401 .787 16.276,787 
CLAIMS PAID (1, 497,7 44 ) (695,729) (1 8,570,732) (2 0.764,205) 
OTHER RECEIPTS 17,794 685.564 703.358 

l'\TET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (1,104,950) (1 95,729) (1,300.679) 

CASH FLOWS FRO M lI\'VtSTMENT ACTIVITIES: 

!NTEREST $ 2, '5 7 1,818 4.07 5 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY J"TVESTME\·r ACTIVITIES 5 2.257 1 ,81 8 4.075 

r" ET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH $ (1,102,693) (193.9 11 ) ( L296.604) 
CA SH Aj'\D CASH EQUlVALENTS - OEGINNLi\'G 1,622,253 876,664 2,498.9 17 

CASH AI\'D CASH EQUtVALENTS . ENDING $ 519,560 682,753 1,2023 13 

RECONCI LlATJO~ OF OPERATING TNCO ME(lOSS) TO NET 

CA SH PROVLDED(USED) BY OPERA TlNG ACTIYIT IES: 

OPERAHNG INCOM.E( LOSS) $ (179,355) 95,601 (2.670 .855) (2.754,609) 
ADJUSTMEhTTS TO RECONC1U OPER.A.TTNG rNC01\{£ 

(LOSS) TO l'-l£T CA SH 

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

OTHER NON-OPER..;,\ TING REVEl\'UES 17,794 683,573 70 1,367 
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: 

ACCOlJNTS RECEI VABLE (2,550) (2,55 0) 
DUE FROM OTHER GOVEM'JYIENT AL ENTITIES (105,387) (105,38 7) 
AccOUNTS PAYAB LE 1,06 1 1.061 
DUE TO OTHER FUl\IDS 1.662,76 1 1.662, 761 
CLA IMS LI . .o\B1LJTY (943,389) (29L330} 431,397 (803,322) 

NE T CA SH PROVID ED BY OPERATING ACTIVIT IES $ ( 1,104,950) (195 .729) (1,300,679) 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for :issets held by the County as a trustee or 
agent for individuals, private otganizations, and other units of government. Such 

, funds are operated by can-ying out specific terms of trust indentures, ordinances, grant 
. ' \ ~ 

requirements, or other governing regulations. Included in this heading are the 
following individual fund s: 

Treasurer Maintained Fund - ,This fund is used to account for various monies 
deposited with the County Treasur~r for distribution to other individuals and/or 
government entities. 

County Clerk Fund - This fund is used td account for the collection anddistributi~n ­
of money held in trust by the Clerk of the County COUlis. ' 

'. 
District Clerk Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution 
of the money held in trust by the Clerk of the District COUlis. 

Sheriff's Fund - This fund is used to, account for the collection and distribution of 
money held in trust by the Sheriff. 

, Justice of the Peace Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and , 
distribution of money held in trust by the Justices of the Peace. 

Tax Assessor/Collector Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection and 
distribution of money held in trust by the Tax Assessor/Collector. 

District Attorney's Seizure Fund - This fund is used to account for the seizure and 
sub.sequent distribution of seized personal property. 

Community Supervision Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection 
and distlibu tion of money, held in trust by the Community Supervision Department. 

Juvenile Probation Trust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection arid 
distribution of money held in trust by the Juvenile Probation Department. 

I . 

Flexible Spending - This fund is used to account for the collection and distribution of 
money collecteQ under the Internal Revenue Code Section 125 benefit plan. 



Women's Center Ti'ust Fund - This fund is used to account for the collectionand . 
distribution of money held in tlUst by the Women's Center. 

. . . 

. . 

i 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
COMBJ:'I ING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LL"BILITIES 

AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

iREASURER COUNT'<' OISTRICT- JUSTle r 'Of 

MAIl\'T .... INED CLERK CLERK SHERIFF'S THE PEACE 

FUND ru~o n"'''D FUND FUND 

TQTAL AGENCY FUNDS 
ASSETS - OQOBER 1 2015 

CASH AND CASH EQUl VAlENTS S 401,970 .\ ;1 1.1 9~ ;A:,'j,:t14 :?:{.2.('~4 159 . .1::" 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. Net 0,01>0 

DUE FROM OTHER 
GOVERN1'>{fJ.rr Ai ENTITIES 342,127 47,508 

TOTAL S 751,757 ],7JI,l98 5,504,832 262,624 159,434 

ADDITIONS 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S 1.945,021 3,%U 57 5.7S6.::00] 4,9 13, 760 :' .(lS6.30J 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 5.790 

DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 331,128 76,712 
TOTAL S 2,282,5]9 3,964,857 5,862,914 4.9 13,760 3,086.301 

DELETIONS 
CASH AND C.ASH EQUl VAl rufS S 1,930,34<1 5,116·1,826 .5,7&45(1 1 S.OOl ,91·t 3,(l~\),:!66 

ACCOUNTS RECEI VABLE, Net 6.060 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 342,725 47,508 
TOTAL , 2,279.129 5,86 4,826 5,832,009 5,001 .924 3,083,266 

ASSETS - SEPTEMB ER 30 2016 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 418,247 1,8 11 ,229 5,459,025 J 74 ,460 162,469 
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, Net 5,790 
DUE FROM OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES 331 ,130 76,7 12 

TO TAL ASSETS S 755 ,167 1,8 11 ,229 5,535,737 174 ,460 162,469 

IIA BI~,ITIES - O~TOBER I 1015 
ACCOUNTS PA YABLE 256.387 622,318 5,42~,551 20fl. lfi2 15,040 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNlvfENTAL EmlTrES 4(5)iO 63.5"JO 82,2tll 62.462 13-1 .394 
OTHERPAYABLES 3,025,290 

TOTAL 751,757 3 711,198 5,504,832 262,624 159,434 

ADDITIONS 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1 2\ 1 ~-I 71 ,-193 4,081 ,2S-4 1 ,6~5.90 2 :;>64,5 35 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES LS2~,6<l-l 7U:-6 92, -1 53 ~2, 03(j 1]9.326 
OTHER PAY ABLES 591z235 

TOTAL , 1,951t828 736,564 4,17],737 1,687,938 403 ,861 

DELETIONS 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE S ~1),69( 1 29 1,003 4,0>15,801 1,71.' ,(,,10 26>'-61);] 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVERNMENTAL ENTlTrES I. S5~.72S 6),590 97.0,; 1 (;2,4b2 136. 16..'> 
OTHER PAY ABLES 2,28 1,940 

TOTAL , 1,948,418 2
1
636,533 4,\4 2.832 1,176,1 02 400,S26 

LIABILITI ES - S~PT£MBE!130, 2016 
ACCOUNTS PA Y ABLE 289,83 1 402,808 5,458,034 132,424 24,91 2 
DUE TO OTHER 

GOVER.NJI..fENTAL ENTITIES 465,336 73,836 77,703 42,036 137 ,557 
OTHER PAY ABLES 1.334,58 5 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 755, 167 1,8 11 ,229 5,535,737 J 74.460 162,469 
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TA ... X ASSESSOR DISTRlCf COMMUNITY JUVEKILE FLEXIBLE w OMEN'S TOTAL 

COL.t.ECfOR ATTORNEY'S su rERV1SI ON PROBATION SPENDI NG CENTER ACENCY 

FUND SEIZ.URE FUND TRUST fUND TRUST f UND FUND TRUST f UND FUNDS 

5,02..1 A45 ]99.·m; ~ .35 .(\Y2 ~)I'] 2n . SI~ 6 14.-112 15.89 1,776 
6 ,060 

2,6 16 392 ,85 1 

5,0:!:3,445 ]99,4/8 435 ,652 4,23] 23,562 14,422 16 290,687 

595,59,11,964 6S" , ~ 59 4.149,08 -4 23,54 1 361,4:t9 .:19: .00 1 62 1,611 ,229 
5,790 

2,262 410
1
102 

595.598,%4 683,459 4,i49,084 23, 54 1 364 ,701 497,001 622,027 , 121 

.'.95, : S8,01){1 -126.75(; .:I ,752,8(\"1 :2 1.805 36(l . ~51 50~ ," 22 623,5 19,649 

6,060 

2,616 392,849 

595,788.090 426,756 4,752,864 21 ,805 363,467 504 ,422 623,918 ,558 

4,834,3 19 656, 18 1 4] 1,8 72 6.019 22,534 7,001 1) ,983,356 

5,790 

2,262 410
1
104 

4 ,834,3 19 656, 18 1 4] I ,8'12 6,019 14,796 7,001 14 ,399,2 50 

5,On,.:I ~ ~ .W9~478 HH5:;:> ~ .1S} D,5 6:! I·u n 12,42 7.300 

838,097 
3,025

1
290 

5,023445 399,4 78 4]),652 4.28] 23 ,562 14,422 16,290,687 

591;,3-4 9 ;:N-=I 61.<3,459 -I ,74 9 ,08~ 24,797 ~80,)70 .:1 97,001 608,8 70,15] 

2, 176 ,] 45 
59 1

1
235 

.:1 96,349,294 683,459 4,149 084 24 ,797 ]80, 170 497 ,001 61 1,63 7,733 

j 96 5::,f:..'120 ,126,756 :1,75:!.86-.:1 23,06 1 378, c)36 5(14,·"1 22 609 ,029,256 

2,2 17 ,97 4 
2,281,94 0 

596.538.420 426,756 4,752,864 23,06 1 378,9]6 504,422 613 529 ,17 0 

4 ,834 ,] 19 656, 18 1 4] I ,872 6 ,0 19 24,796 7,001 12,268,19 7 

796 ,468 
1

1
334,585 

4,834 ,3 19 656, 181 431.8 72 6,019 24. 796 7,001 14.399,250 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCID:DULE BY SOURCE 
SEPTEMBER 30,2016 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS: 

LAl\TD 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
BUILDINGS AND IMPROVEMENTS 
EQUIPMENT 
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 

TOTAL 

3,840,787 
59,114,166 

105,090,205 
42,601,445 
24,962,508 

$ =~2;;,3 5~,~60;;,9,.;' 1,;,1l~· 

INVESTMENTS IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS BY SOURCE: 

GENERAL FUND $ 88,653,236 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 37,038,754 
CAPIT AL PROJECTS FUND 106,462,748 
GIFTS 3,454,373 

$ 235,609,111 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPJT AL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERA TJON OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION 
FOR THE-YEAR-ENDEDSEP-TEMBER 30, 2016 

FUNCTION LAND INFRASTRUCTURE 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $ $ 
JUDICIAL AND LA W ENFORCEMENT 45,446 
HEALTH & WELFARE 14,000 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES AND 

EQUIPMENT 3,781,341 59,114,166 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 3,840,787 $ 59,114,166 
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BUILDINGS & CONSTRUCTION 
IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT IN PROGRESS TOTAL 

$ 569,594 $ 6,490,573 $ 290,873 $ 7,351,040 
3 I ,51 I ,987 20,684,290 174,329 52,416,052 

3,689,182 1,057,246 4,760,428 

69,319,442 14,369,336 24,497,306 171,081 ,591 

$ 105,090,205 $ 42,601,445 $ 24,962 ,508 $ 235,609,111 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CAPITAL ASSETS USED l1'I THE OPERA TION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCnON 
FOR TIlE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

BALANCE' 
10/112015 -

FUNCTION RESTATED ADDITIONS DEOUCTIONS TRANSFERS 

GENERAL GOVERNMTh'T $ 6,790,435 653,7\5 $ (93, 110) $ 

JUDICIAL AND LAW ENFORCElv1ENT 51,695,693 1,500,669 (780,3 10) 

HEALTH AND \VELF ARE 4,480,285 280.143 
MAINTENANCE OF STRUCllJRES AND 

EQUlPMENT 164,630,869 6,908.586 (457
1
864) 

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FU;\'DS CAPI TAL ASSETS S 227,597,282 $ 9.343, 113 $ (I.331,284) $ 

134 

BALANCE 
9/3012016 

$ 7,351,040 

52,416,052 
4,760,428 

171 ,08) ,591 

S 235,609,111 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Jefferson County, Texas comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed infonnation as a context for understanding what the information in the financial 
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary infonnation says about the 
County's overall fmancial health. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader 
understand how the County's financial peljormance and well-being 
have changed over time. 

Revenue Trends 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess 
the County's most significant local revenue source, the property 
tax. 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information to belp the reader access 
the affordability of the County's current levels of outstanding 
debt and the County 's ability to issue additional debt in the 
fiaure. 

Demographic and Economic Info=ation 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to 
help the reader understand the environment within which the 
County'sfinancial activities lake place. 

Operating Info=ation 
These schedules contain service and ir"Fastructure data to help 
the reader understand how the information in the County's 
finan cial report relates to the services the County provides and 
the activities it peljorms. 

Sources: Unless othef'\.Vise noted, the infonnation in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
aruma! financial reports for the relevant year. 
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,JEI'FI':USON COUNTY, Tfo:XAS 
NET POSITION HY COMPONENT 

LAS,' , 'EN ,"' ISCALYEA RS 
(RCCrl.! nl bll~is (I f flceo u IItillg) 

Fiscnl Yellr 

Governmcnt;! 1 activitics: 

Net hlVcsllllcnt in capital Jssets 
Res(rielL"tI 
Unrestricted 

Tota l govemlllenlni 3etiv itie~ Ilet position 

L3usincss. type ;!c tivi(ics: 
Net I nveslm~nt in c3pitnl ~sscts 

Unre5It'ic.too 

TOla l b ll ~ illes s-Iype ac tivit ies net position 

Redass ilieatklllS: 

NctlnvCSUnclll in capitnl nssets 
Unres trit ted 

Total reclnssifications 

Primary govemlllc!ll: 
Net Invcstment in c,~p ilalllSscts 

Rcstricted 
LJllrelil rieted 

To t.:!! prilTIilry govcnuneillne( position 

lJ![l 

S 56,750,08 1 
:l,1)9],89S 

(16,1129.422) 

S <13.91 4,551 

oS 89,080,109 
(760.424) 

So 88,3 19,685 

$ (64,0%,344) 
64,096,344 

S 

81,733,846 

3,99J.89R 

46,506,498 
$ 1J2,2J4,242 

l..!llift 1009 llli! 

$ 62,450.468 $ 68,2<12,040 7 1,3J6,<l66 
7,893,5]6 10,6 15.473 13,851,538 

( 17,964,265) 12 I ,S90,574} (35,2~6,048 ) 

S 52..'79,739 .$ 56,966.944 S 49,90 1.956 

So 88,482,2 17 93,237.299 91,674,403 
1)3,397 1,425,854 2, 114 ,066 

$ 88,6 15,6 14 S 94,663,15.1 J 93 ,788,469 

S (63 ,016,1]2) S (6UI55.720) .$ (60,66].707) 
6.1,016,1]2 6 1,855,720 60,663,707 

S $ $ 

87,916,55.1 J 99.623,6 19 $: 102,347, 162 
7,893,536 10,6 1 5,'17!l 13,85 1,538 

45, 18S,264 41,391 1°00 27,491,725 
$ 140,1)1)5,353 S IS 1,630,097 S 14.1,690,425 

Note: n le recinssi lic3tion is lo r Ihe I.l<:bt nssociated wilh the con~ l ruc ti o n or rom J'OI rk. "Ie :lsset, nrc llCCCll.!nled 
ror in the l3 usine~s.!ype ;,c]ivit ie;s column anu the debt is nccoulltcu ror ill the Govemmental ~c(i vi ties column, 

"GASI3 54 was illlplenl<:n led. 

~ llll 

S 8 1,583,824 .$ R2 ,640.727 
18,9 10,796 18,01 7.9 19 

(48,9 31.222) (43,402,923} 
$ 51,56.l.3t)ll $ 57,2 55,7,U 

S 90,465,,~68 S 90,441,044 

317,046 620,635 
$ 90,842,414 9 1,0(d ,679 

S (57,6.17,4 97) S (50,438,182) 
57,637,4')7 5°14 33,282 

S $ 

$ 114 ,411,695 S 122,643,4 89 

15,9 10,796 18,0 17,919 
9,083,3 21 7,655,994 

S 1 42.<105,8 IL $: 148,31 7,401 

TA f)LE I 

!!!!.J lQ.J.1 ~ l!!..!& 

.$ 84,12],857 S 85,095,478 S 93,8 14.(0) .'!; 96,t 37,672 
25,433,1 98 28,9 19.622 24,695,(01) 25,282,7 12 

P3,259,(15) {64.427,S76) (1 06,962,928) { 122,326,4~7) 

$ 56,297,440 $ 49,587.224 , 11.547,584 $ (906,10]) 

87,043,444 S 84,297,573 S R3 ,I 07,097 .$ 82,294,521 

592,300 479,535 (634 ,858) 55 ,359 
S 87,6.15,7.«4 ft 4,777. 108 $ 82,4 72,239 $ 8 J J49, 882 

$ (46,786,666) S (43,072,050) S (,l9,220,8.14) $ (37,6 14 ,654) 

46 7S6,666 43072 ,050 )9,220,834 .17,614,654 , , .J. 

S 124,380,6)5 S 126,321.00 1 S ])7,700,866 $ 140,8 17,541 

25,433,198 28,919,622 24.695,909 25,282, 712 

(5,880,64 9) (20,876291} (68,376,952) (84 656,474) 
$ 143,9,B, 1 B4 $ U 4,.164)J2 $: <)4,019,823 $ 8 1.44J,779 



TABU, 2 

JEI"PlcllSQN COUNTY, TEXAS 
CIIAI\'Gl!:S IN Nl!:T POSI nON 

LAST TI!:N FISCAL YEARS 
(~(crllnllJ~~l5 or \\ccoUlllinc) 

Fi~l'nl YCH 

2007 ,.., 1lliJ.2 lliI! N!..! :ll!.!l IOU 1!lli !ol~ .lli!.!i. 

gxpcliscs 
Govel11mcnl~1 a<:tiviti~' 

Gener:11 Govenllnenl 20,OOIU~9 20,369,690 ,"~.9~0 .. l66 3.'\,."~4,~') I .,'1,710,153 32,862,570 37,253,918 '12,9.1.1,889 ~0.203,444 , 40,58",261 
Jlldici~I;lOO L~w EnrorCClllcnl 59,282, I 86 69,170,421 74,059,745 7~,939,112 76,319,206 81.522,130 85,99$,590 82,058,360 80.01 S,632 84,656.946 

Edllcation Md ltecrcalion 1.7D.I)~2 1.931.08~ 1.611A35 1,637.026 IJD,440 iJI5,Sl9 1,361),159 1,416,537 1,425,5.i9 1,214,705 
Hcalth :md Wclrarc 8,784,2% 10,104,601 t 1.205,583 10,82<1.644 9J04JD 17.758,075 10.1)17.065 10,570,568 I O,~62,46 I 10,4<)0,353 
Mainlenance - Equipment and Siructures 18,185,968 21.118,467 35.oo0j80 18,724,9J8 13.365.410 15.552,976 17,IG2,37) 14,859,637 14,076.436 )~,693,137 

lutercst ~nd Clml"!;es 011 LOII);,lelm Dcbl 3,985,181 3,804,914 ."\.715,282 .U87,860 :U83JS~ 1,9.16.J02 1.762,423 1.611.661 1,42\776 1,.nO,790 
Tol~1 )!ovemmcnlnl nelivilics expenses 111.960.112 126.499.177 160.532.9'>1 1,14JJ57.'171 1.19.300.886 150,947,872 154.~6I,O:U 15M50,702 1~7,510.288 152.95,>,191 
llll~inl'ss-lype aClivilies: 

Airport 4,219,~27 ~,'}(l2.822 ~,710,467 , 5.095,9~ 1 5,506,746 6,618,247 7 ,386,2.~8 6,943.749 , 5,394,518 5.~78,254 

EnlCrl~inmCnl Complex 8.685J'I.~ 7,(,·'13.~61 7,977,002 7,889,391 6.866,792 IO,2'18.'IS7 9.771,707 9.760.675 7,751.5~5 7.5 10,076 
Totaillusines~-Iypc e.lpeMes 12.')04,970 12,551.284 12,687,469 12,985,832 1~,373.s38 16,866,70'1 17,157,9~.'i 16,70~A24 , U,M7,063 12.')88.330 
Tot~1 primary !;ovcmmenl exp<::nscs 124,865,092 139,050,~61 , 173,220,460 157.04~,~03 151.67'1.41~ 167,814.576 171,618.978 170,155.126 161.157,351 165,9'17.522 

Prollr~m R('venllt'S 
GovemnlO:nlal activities 

rtmr~cs for servic~s' 
General Govemmenl 6,g13,696 6.6-'7,669 8,741,9<14 7,612.696 8,218,241 9,076,015 7,279,67~ 6,2-'4,887 , ~,697,503 5,219,RT2 

~ 
Judicial ~nd Law EnrClICemcnl 11,4J4,794 10,700,195 IO,QJQ,533 9.376,938 9,679.128 9.859.550 9.234538 10.067,596 10.602,406 10.."\07,890 

W EdlJ<:ntion ~n() R~crcalion 191.921 88,452 208,036 101.907 86.010 74,005 84,613 66,517 73,649 I3A28 
00 Henlth ~nd Welrare 86,231 92.009 370,557 575 .. HJ 4Ul.929 369,503 392,612 430,0.12 ~ 11,000 401.)111 

Mainl~n,'\nc~, EqlliplncllI and Slnll'IUrCS 8,232,587 5,768,735 8.~~7,195 6,328,6'11 4,047.555 5,362,121 5,837,681 5.535,713 5.482,157 5,612,682 
Opcmlinl; !;nUlls ~nd col1lrihlllion~ 11.713,~20 1~,050,116 30.927,086 15.607,90-1 16,'19~ ,833 13,243,076 19,150,824 lJ.417,014 10,935.535 11.359,~82 

Capital gr~nts >lIld conlribulions 1,290.13J 269J~7 937..'190 LH6,~SO 3,991.137 11.938,5.n 5,222,624 4,287,420 8,711.241 ~,2~6,9'15 

Total go"cmm~ntnl aClivilics progrrun revenucs 39.867,182 37,6%.523 60,066,7~ I ~ 1.940,~0'l '17,9IS,S~3 ~4,922.SU2 ~202,566 ~0.039, \79 40,9B.497 37,161.590 

llu~i~s_lypc aclivilies: 
Clmrgc:o; ror services: 

Airp(111 2.~07,Q"9 3,269.502 2,999,S57 2,897,~ I 1 .'.038,666 3.112.848 3,978.320 4,516,324 , 3.49."\.616 2,730,01)4 
Entertainmenl Comp\c~ ."\.924,467 3,064,942 3.116.433 3,6~4.655 2,943.861 6,274.380 5,536308 5,564,686 3,4~S,03S 3,288,418 

Operating gmnts and cOIHriiJIltions 43,397 50,000 
Capil~1 grallls aud eontribulions 3,725,475 2.741,002 8,278,928 2,145.711 1,1000366 1.960,830 943.357 231.418 2.442,839 3.012,750 

Total busiocss'lype aClivilics progrwn revcnues IO,OS7,~91 9.075.446 15,038,615 8,727,777 7,132,893 11.948,108 10,453,~~5 IOJ22.42~ '>,382,090 9.IJI,262 
Tolnl primary l;0vemmCIlI pr("l\!,'aln rC,'clIlI"" 4'1,925,673 46.681.969 , 75,105,J% , 50.6(, ~ .O~6 55,051,776 66,870,91U 57,661,051 50,361,607 50.295,587 <16,2'.l2.8~2 

Nel (expcnsc)lrevcnlle 
Guvl'TTlIncl1lal activilies (72,0920340) (83,892,654) (100,466,250) (\02,117,662) (91.3\\2,003) (96.02S,070j (107.258,467) (I t],41 1,523) (106.596,791) (1IS.197,602) 
[311~in=-lype aclivitics (2,817,079) p,475,838j 2,351.146 (4,258,055) (5,2'10.645) (4.9IS,596) (6,6990460) (6.381.996) (064,973) p,857.068) 
Total prim;uy government nel expc"s~ (74,9.'19.419) -'- (9~,368,'192) (9S.115,IO~) (l06J75,717) ('JI'),612.6,18) (100,94J,666) ( 11.'\,9S7,(27) (119.79.1,S 19) (110,861,764) ( 119,654,670) 
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Gencrnl Rl'Vcnu C3: a mJ Other Chllnges III Net r osilioll 

Government;!1 fICli vil ics; 
T~,cs: 

Propcny UI,ICS 

S31a ' a .... es 
Akoholic" Ikveragc Ta~ 

HOlel QcCUI'l3.\Cy T ;u 

In ves lmcnl caminw; 
Mi:scell~n eolll 

TrM,rers 

Total goycrnnlenlnl nc l i~ jt i~ , 
OU5i!lC3S-IYlIC at t ivltles: 

Investment t:1I1linllS , 
Miscellaneous 

Tr~nsrcrs 

T(lt~ 1 husiuess·type oc.ivuie! 
TOI~ I prim.' ,), I:DvcrnlHe(l1 

Chpu:.c:s II< Net PO.li!loll 
Grwernmcrll(ll oc tivilies 

U 'ls ir'lC9~·. we ;tet ivities 
lolnl primnI)' I>0v ..... 'muctlt J 

1flQ1 

6S.7J9.lN 
21.65~.606 

503,134 
973.569 

3.3D,31~ 

2 14.07S 
(WIl6. 11 0) 

90.352 l iS 

18,91 5 , 
2.08(,.110 
2.105,025 , 

92.457. 140 ., 

18.259.715 , 
(7420511) 

1 ?~17.72 1 

l!ll!I - ZJl.lJl 

72.6 I.S.S06 , 7S.616.0';n 7M01.5 11 
23.906,777 )(JAW.63) :;!1.J6 15% 

506,047 6 14.474 575,9 ~& 

1.0 11 571 1,194.1163 893.~34 

2.87 1.'285 84 2.485 402,7.'.'i 
20S ,4<)O) 29.27.'i 26.()<)S 

p,762 .1 5S) (.'.687.8-'2) p .:'.lO.I'>91 
<)7 ,)57 .S~6 10:'>.1 19.1 95 'IS . .t.\6.900 

9,467 2.369 .U~j; , 
J~5 6. 192 '1'1,834 

3,762. 155 3.6S7.8~2 3.330.1')9 
.1.771.767 , 3.696 .. >93 , 3)83,371 

101 .1 29,60.\ , 1Ol!. 815.5~~ S 98.710.27 1 

8.465 .182 4M2.?'" (6,730.762) 
29~ .9 2 9 6 ()'17.S39 (874.684) 

8)1·1.11) 10,700.484 , n.655.446) 

lli.l ill1 1.U.Ll lli4 lID lJlli 

D.15S.i)6 , 79.4 16.0 13 S 8.\.036.649 84.6 16.538 , 83.122.85.1 , 80.099. 108 
20.%1.<153 23,864,675 24,695.) 04 2~.()64.SS7 :>3.047.286 l'U95.0'IS 

547 ,605 484.988 475. 162 61~ )S4 656.678 61.\. 1.\5 
'lS 1.6 19 1,064,165 1,0 15.65 1 1. 150.383 1.21)1.7 16 1.21 1.569 
166.118 54 1.70.\ 2SI .6n JI I.546 46ft .56 t JB.495 

24. 16'1 2~.206 )5.9 18 .\0 . .\.15 29,686 27.589 

p.27t .146} (4 . 183.564) (J.223,(>2S) ( .\.'170.353) (2.594 ,492 ) !,U B.(00) 
').1 6(>7.'~69 , 10 1.2 13.186 106.,\16.6 18 107 .. 117.710 , \06 .022.288 10),226 '4~ 

2,979 935 269 , llO 788 1.11 J 
20;165 7 1.950 ~9.(jn 52,457 51.260 

2 ")71.146 4 .llI3.564 .,.22.'-628 }.~70 )$3 2594,492 3.73HOO 
2.!945'JO ~.2S6 4 ~9 , 3.273.525 3.51.').60 2.6 ~ 7.540 , 1.7,111.71 1 

<J 5.%2H9 lm,469M3 , 1 09.590. 1 ~~ l lO,8~ 1.070 108.6()9.S28 , 10<;.96 1.055 

2.285.966 5.I SS. 116 (941 .S49) (6.093,S 1.1) , (574,50.\) (l2571.25a) 

p .~'1 6.05 5) !6(.2. 1 ~7) , .H 25.9151 P 858.6.\6) fI.617.4 .\Jj ! I 22.35 7} 
(660.089) 4 .52.'1,%? (4 ..\67.784) , (8.952.449) f2.1 91 .936) , ( 12 .69.1.( 15) 



Fiscal 
Year 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Alcoholic Hotel 
Beverage Occupancy 

Property Tax Sales Tax Tax Tax 

$ 65,719,324 $ 21,654,606 $ 503,134 $ 973,569 
72,615,806 23,906,777 506,047 1,011,577 
75,616,097 30,410,633 614,474 1,294,063 
75,407,511 21,361,596 575,928 893,234 
73,158,156 20,961,453 547,605 981,619 
79,416,013 23,864,675 484,988 1,064,165 
83,036,649 24,695,194 475,162 1,015,651 
84,616,538 24,064,857 614,384 1,150,383 
83,122,853 23,047,286 656,678 1,291,716 
80,099,108 24,595,048 673,135 1,211,569 
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TABLE 3 

Total 

$ 82,785,957 
88,850,633 
98,040,207 

107,935,267 
98,238,269 
95,648,833 

104,829,841 
110,446,162 
108,118,533 
106,578,860 



~ 
~ 

Genera l r und: 
Reserved 
Unreserved 
NOllspcnd;}blc 
Ass ig l1cd 

Unassigned 
T01['11 general time! 

All o lhe r go .... em menta ] runds: 

Reserved 
Unrese rved. repOl1ed in: 

Speci<1! re .... cnue funds 

Cap ita] projecL FtJllds 
Debt ser .... iec fllnds 

Nonsrcndable 
] ~ cstriclc(1 

COllllll iUcd 
Assigncd 
Unassigned (Delieil) 

Tolal nil olhcr govenllllcll[(I] run us 

= f.Ill!!! 

I 1, 196,058 S 1, 124,272 
28,724,474 31 ,3 24.562 

I 29,920,5 .12 I .12.448,834 

$ 3.9%,)77 $ 7,R95.953 

17.623 ,438 12,483,025 
( 1,6 18) ( 1,6 18) 

482,9 12 2R7,948 

S 22, 101,109 l 20,665.308 

JE"FERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
" UNI) BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FU NDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAJtS 
(mouified :lC{' rll :\[ basis of accoun ting) 

Fi!'lcfli Y C:\I' 
2( 01) 20 10 20 11 " 2012 

l 1,247,682 S 1,107,057 
37,63 9,200 34,899,5 38 

1,023.855 898,536 
.1,482,075 2,295,347 

3 1,886,947 39,034.450 
$ 38,886,8R2 .'f; 36.006,595 :s 36.392.877 $ 42,228,.1.1,1 

S 10,617.54 1 $ 1).853,088 

14,975,902 15,625,403 

376,688 186,623 
9, 1.10 58,197 

17,397,567 18,11 6,476 
5, 150,723 3,047,323 

4,867,061 8,499,277 
(4,832,6 14) (2,670,874) 

$ 25,970, 131 S 29,665, 114 $ 22,59 1,R67 :s 27 .050,31)9 

"GASO Statement 54 W;}S imptcmcntatcu fill' fisc;}] year 20 11 which chnnged (he clm.;sif'ic:ltion o r ['lind bal <1 ncc amounts. 
Prior ye<lr '1100Ul1ts have not bc~n resl:\ tc(1 rOf the imp lementation o[' S t<llemenl 54. 

TA OLE 4 

2013 20 14 201 5 20 16 

1.043.407 897. 102 873.260 889,865 
4,.1 12,676 10,082,383 9,952 ,977 12,478,022 

41 ,269,536 36.284,9 15 37,054,620 34,142,140 
$ 46,625 ,6 1l) l 47,264,400 S 47,880 .857 .';; 47 ,5 10,027 

4 1,047 49,7R I 56,535 32.858 

25 ,56 1,948 28,846,726 24,61.1 ,120 25,229,.122 
1,902,675 2,919,885 6,649,085 5.12,034 
2,064,2 17 1.697.3 19 1,799,539 1,664.79 1 
(787,11 8) (2 ,925,83 1) 14,489,8 15) 158.1,.120) 

S 28,782,769 $ .10,587,880 5 28,628,464 $ 26,875 .685 



TAGLE 5 

.lKfiFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVEltNMIi,NTAL fiUNDS 

LAST TRN filSCAL YEARS 
(modificti ~ccnll1ll)l\sis oraccounlingl 

fiiscnl YCHr 

"'" - lJlJ!2 l!!.!Q ill! 2012 20D l2.!.:!. ~ 2016 

lUCVENlJE:S: 
I'ropcrlyTM~ 65.071,514 71,~16.193 75.912,69~ 75,995,020 72,~59 •. ~G4 79,446,:116 , B2,59-,,407 84,262,72~ 82.850,753 30AOO.650 

S~les Ta.~e~ 23,131,309 25,424.401 32,319,170 22,830,758 22,490.677 25,~ 13.828 26,186,007 25,829,624 24,995,680 26.479.152 
Fecs 13,232,594 1-,,8~,j,3,,4 13,372,000 13,2'17.758 U, 176,3~ I 13,056,182 13,101,871 13.811,818 1~.J,\7,616 14,111.5.'19 
Licenses ~23,313 409,3R6 4S7,R56 Q5l002 407,512 465,720 ~')(J,148 480,386 459,198 502,532 

Iniergovcmmcillal 12,%2,160 14,315,347 30,549,286 17,890,178 2.\206,710 30,138,180 2.,,807,603 18,488,048 16,668,364 16,558.057 
Snk::5, Renwl & Services 5,486,288 4.173.703 5585,920 ~,07 3,20 I 2.8.'7,4SJ 3,BI'I,6JO :1,369.016 .1,053,808 4.754.414 ~,OSS,358 

fines and I'orrcilurcs 3.008,196 2,ISIA78 2,076,417 2,199,528 2.072,725 2,1)0,80 I 2,074,656 1,900,630 2,120,860 2,081,06,\ 

11IIcrcsl 3,083,938 2.236,357 1.250,787 692,129 273,177 536,993 254,207 307.~34 ~7S.763 3n.23S 
Miscellancous 17.539 17,936 29.275 26,095 24,164 25,206 35,918 30)55 29,495 27,589 

ConlriGlilions ~rJd Don~tkll1s 18,968 ~, 116 1.315,190 31,727 4,041 \ ,412.093 4,700 184,819 5n42 12,12,1, 
Total Revenues 126,4,~5.S19 134,123,251 162,898.594 , 1}6,4J9J96 1,'7,452,184 156,444,954 152.017,.~3-' 14834'1,644 146,752.990 143,591.398 

EXPENDlTURES: 
(lcner~1 Govcmmenl 17,962,946 , 18,587.891 , 20,3.15,45-' 20,85J,S75 , 20,47~.698 , 20,252,981 , 21.237,703 22,666,968 2),786,927 22.470,110 
Judicinl 10m] Law Enforccmenl 60.795,584 69,726.438 69.656,955 72.502,150 73,081.%8 79,934,077 84,561.028 80,101,1.13 80,546,836 81.871.60<) 
Educ<llion mKI Rccre<llicln 1,717,102 1,915,987 1.579,2M 1.61~.5S8 1,298.502 1..104,505 1,361,048 1.'109,870 1.439,979 1.26~,975 

Health Md Welfare 3.794.712 10,024,011 10.600,245 10,576,843 9,5.~SJ II IOJ~5,286 10,622,893 10,416.8.19 10,479,513 10.267,776 
Muinlennnce or Structures and E<]uipmenl 15,830,658 19,851.%4 36.379,4 IS 17,123,159 12,543,110 12.115,480 11,792.372 12,677.678 12,178,205 II.S50,9~0 

C~pilal OlLllay 3.690,980 2,016.129 4.076,087 7,2IS,~S7 17,~:\4,755 11.913,277 6,777.118 8,270.112 12,829,17} 7.SIS,-'9'1 

~ Deb! Service:: 
-I>- Prineipnl 4,0<15,000 3.510,000 3,660,000 3.760,000 ~,9~2,070 .15.731.843 4,344,169 ~,4'18,O\l~ 4.~20,000 ~,9LU95 
N In(eresl and Commission 3.9.18,978 3.79<1,062 3.671.261 3.538,141 l5~O,237 4.12.'\.025 1.9i6,429 1,922,689 1.695 04~ 1.586..'36 

TOlal Exrenditurc~ , 116,795,960 12'),426,472 , 1~9,958,68,\ 137,187,24) 14~.843,651 195,720,474 142,672.765 141,963)83 147.375,682 1~2,O~,~j-'5 

E~cess (Deficiency) ofRcvcnucs 
Ovcr EXI}Cndilllrc.~ , 9,639,859 4,696,779 12,9J9,911 (747,847) (5,."11,467) (39,275,520) 9.-'44,768 6.386,261 (622,6')2) 1,547.S63 



2U07 "'" W!!2 lliJl l!lll l!!.U l!lL1 ""-' &; M!.!§. 
OTlIf:lt FINANCING SOUItC ES (US F~'S I: 
Tronsr~' l n 3. 101.422 , 8. 1'17.776 , 10.267.0GO S.49U80 2.S5 1.000 , 6.709.370 6,5ll0.69<J 5,) 10.045 , 1.598.71 7 1 .~9U7Q 

TransrcrOul (5. 187.5.\2) ( 11. 909.9~1) (U.'))4.1\')2) \11 .521.179) (.\.()~8. 7S5) {9.52~,951} 19.7S9 .. \71) (8.1 67.733) (4.()64.677) (5.169.565) 
Pr[lc ~C\J1I rf(l tll Sal.: orC"ri l ~ 1 Assets :;:, 111.000 
C~)lil n l Lc~se Oblig~l ic>ns 1.75 1.957 1.707 .. \6.\ 
IOSlOl Mec Proceeds 2.150.000 157.877 2.:1.%.5.1 2 1_" 4.0 11 
I ss~~;!I>['C o r Deb! 5.:150.000 47 . .\05.000 1.340.000 

Premium on ~hl ISSlied 2~9.2S.\ 4,970J22 
Pnymem lo Reli. nding [k llld ~cro '" Agcl1 l 15.G72.~7~1 ( 1.2(}8192) 

TOI ~l O IllC:I' l'immcing S[\urcC$ (Uses) 6).R'lQ (3 (1)4.118) , (I 131,.100) , 1.:H 6.iG9 j670.974} , ~9A60. 1)4 1 , t),1 98,67S 1 p: .8 15.S80 ) mS ,S'HI , (3.670 GS61 

Ncl al~UI:C In FUlld D~ I ,1r1( C5 9.70.\ .149 , 1.092501 11 .8OS.61 1 1.09S.9 2 ~ , {6.062.4 ~ 11 10. IS5.42 1 6.146.090 3.570.;18 1 ( 1..'15 1.289) U.I22.S2:\l 

IJc,bl SCl"Vicc A~ II r ercelll agc or 

NOll€lIpilnl E~pcntlilli res 7.:W. 6.0% ,SJ% 5. S ~. 6 .6% 32.00/. 4.6'/0 4.7% 4,6'-io 4.9% 

.JEFJi'ERSON COUNTY. TeXAS 

CENEllALGO VERNMENTIIL TAX RIWF.N UES BY SO URC E 

LAST TIi:N FISCAL YEA RS 
(mDtlilil't1 oc~ru R ILJIl~is Dr~rco \llllingl 

Fisrnl IIkoholi t lIole! OCCUf'3Dt )' 

~ I' ro pn1y Tu SM WS T~l lk!vcrII l:l' Tu Ta~ To lnl 

~ 2007 S6~.07 1 .5 1 ~ S 21.6H.606 , 503.134 <)7.1.56<) , 8S.202.112.> 
-"'" u> """ 1 1.5 16. 193 2.1.1106.777 !i06.04 7 ' .011.571 96.9~0 .5'}4 

2000 75.9 12.693 30.4 10.633 6 1" .47~ 1.294.063 I 08 .2.~ I.SG.1 

WIO 75.995.020 11}6 1.5 'l6 575.918 89J.2.i4 98.8 25.778 

2011 72.959,.\64 20.961.45.\ 547.605 98 1.6 19 95.450.041 
20 12 79;146.31 6 2.\.864.675 484.988 1.0M.1 65 104 .860. 144 
20 13 R259.\407 24 .695.194 ~7S.162 1.0 15.651 108.779.4 14 
WI< S062.?:!2 24.06-1 .857 6 1·1.,\84 1.150 .. 110 110,092J46 
2015 S2 .850.l5 8 2.1.047.286 656.6711 1,291.71 6 1 07.S46.~ _'8 

20 16 80.400.650 24.595.048 67.'. 1.15 1.21 1.569 106.S80.'102 



~ 
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JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXAnLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal 
Yenr Real Pro~('rt~ Personal Propcr~ Less: To(al Taxable 

Ended Residential Commercial Motor Tax Exempt Assessed 
September 30 Property Propcl-(Y Vchicles Other Rcnl Pro~erty Value 

2007 $ 5,433,538,560 $ 10,360,470,535 $ 54,889,880 $ 3,872,073,360 $ 3,180,724,674 $ 16,540,248,161 

2008 6,729,159,173 11,409,878,641 62,781,190 4,196,575,015 3,824,188,028 18,574,205,991 
2009 7,717,517,403 12,524,372,020 63,467,330 4,907,849,539 4,416,709,776 20,796,496,516 

2010 7,848,755,180 11,452,048,660 59,394,290 4,83 I ,378,530 3,053,53 I ,674 21,138,044,986 
2011 8,042,282,874 12,128,893,349 47,961,490 4,820,689, II 0 2,904,361,132 22, I 35,465,691 

2012 7,989,089,195 12,510,887,710 51,129,790 5,421,135,950 2,819,185,332 23,153,056,763 
2013 7,912,100,439 14,408,052,759 62,242,770 6,068,922,220 3,198,328,907 25,252,989,281 

2014 7,974,453,458 17,857,917,342 66,248,570 6,675,937,170 6,667,443,764 25,907,112,776 

2015 8,081,673,579 16,701,727,909 68,532,930 6,926,838,120 6,385,170,071 25,393,602,467 

2016 8,279,899,361 17,082,832,495 75,061,930 5,867,214,193 6,399,625,866 24,905,432, I 13 

Source: Jefrerson County Appraisal District 

Note: Properly in the county is reassessed anllually. The county assesses property tit 100% of actual value for all types of real tlild pCi'Sonul properly. 
However, each homestead rcsidential propel1y call only increase by a maximum or 10% in any given year. EstinUiled actual value is calculated by 
adding back the loss to the limit 011 homestead residenlial properties to the lotal taxable assessed value. Tax rates are per $\00 or 8ssessec! value. 

(a) Includes tax-exempt propel1y. 

TABLE 6 

Totnl Estimated Assessed 
Direct Actual Value (n) ~lS It 

Tax Taxable Percentage of 
Rate Value Actual Value 

$ 0.400 $ 16,560,749,332 83.98% 

0.390 18,87.9,604,039 84.29% 
0.365 21,244,03 I ,039 84.26% 

0.365 21,337,887,316 88.20% 
0.365 22,243,999,610 88.85% 

0.365 23,199,553,509 89.32% 

0.365 25,274,550,281 88.83% 

0.365 25,914,410,662 79.55% 

0.365 25,404,515,574 79.94% 

0.365 24,916,084,230 79.59% 
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Debt 
Fiscal Operating Service 
Year Hale Rate 
2007 $0.355 $0.045 
200S 0.353 0.037 
2009 0.3 31 0.034 
2010 0330 0.D35 
20 11 0.331 0.034 
2012 0.336 0.029 
2013 0.340 0.025 
20 14 0.341 0.024 
2015 0.340 0.025 
201 6 0.3 42 0023 

SOllrce: Je fferson Counly Tax Asses~r Collector 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PROPERTY TAX RATES 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING (a) GOVERNMENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEAHS 

OverlaPEing Rales 
Cities School Districts 

Total De!>t Total Debt 
County Operating Service City Operating Service 

Rate Ratc Rate Rate Rate Rate 
$0.400 $0.4 20 $0.232 $0.652 $1.311 $0.119 

0.390 0.419 0.1 87 0.606 1.077 0.144 
0.365 0.385 0.202 0.587 1.058 0.IS6 
0.365 0.394 0.199 0.593 1.073 0.220 
0.365 0.394 0.197 0.591 1.058 0.226 
0.365 0.401 0.185 0.586 1.059 0.230 
0.365 0.412 0.182 0.594 1.059 0.217 
0.365 0.419 0.189 0.608 1.058 0.235 
0.365 0.430 0.186 0.616 1.059 0.244 
0.365 0.441 0.175 0.616 1.059 0.259 

Total 
SCl1001 Special 
Rate Districts 

$ 1.430 $0.2 16 
1.221 0.205 
1.244 0.217 
1.293 0.226 
1.284 0.192 
1.289 0.193 
1.276 0.194 
1.293 0.193 
1.303 0.203 
1.318 0.206 

(a) Overlappin g ral ~'S are those of locnl governments thaI npply to property owners within Jefferson Counly. Not all ovcrlnpping rates apply to all Jefferson COlmly propert), ow[]crs. 
(e.g., (he rales for special districts f1ppl y only [0 Ihe proportion of the County's properly owners whose properly is located wi thin lhe geographic boundaries or the spec ial di slrict.) 

Note: Rates are per $100 or taxable value. Rfltes for overlflppiug cntities nre an avcmge tflX mte or all c ities (6), school districts (7). and special distri cts (14) located withill Jefferson County . 
For fi scal year 2016, Lotal rates mnged between .2353 1I.nd .7920 ror cities, l.! 6 and 1.444 for schoo l distric ls, nnd .0266 and .6182101 special districts. 

TABLE 7 

Total Direct 
& 

Overlapping 
Rates 

$2.698 
2.422 
2.413 
2.477 
2.432 
2.433 
2.429 
2.459 
2.487 
2.505 



TABLE 8 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

2016 2007 
Percentage of Percentage of 

Taxable Total Ta xable Taxable TotaJ13xabie 
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed 

TaxEa~'c rs Value (b) Rank Value Value (b) Rank Value 

Motiva Refinery S 4,661,4 12,430 I J8.72% $ 1,436,788,880 2 8.69% 
ExxonMobiJ Oil Corporation 2,171 ,142,8 14 2 8. 72% 2,465,190,720 14.90% 
Premcor Refining Group Inc 1,223, 104,595 3 4.91% 728,570, 150 4 4.40% 

Tolal Petrochemicals USA 773,2 15,900 4 3.10% 670,466,160 5 4.05% 

Huntsman Petrochemical Corp 43 I ,378,937 5 1.73% 943,796,470 3 5.7 1% 
Sunoeo Partners Mktg & T erm LP 387,879, 120 6 1.56% 
Chevron PhiUips Chemical Co 362,534,040 7 1.46% 365,608,8 10 6 2.2 1% 
BASF·Atofina Joinl Venture 362,145,120 8 1.45% 
Entergy Texas Inc. 320,208,240 9 1.29% 237,605,3 10 8 1.44% 

Enterprise Texas Pipeline LP 312,939,530 10 1.26% 
Goodyea r Tire & Rubber Co. 307,077,260 7 1.86% 
Samson Lone Star LP 150,640,910 9 0.9\ % 
E I Dupont De Nemours 140,004,9 10 10 0.85% 

TOTAL 51 1,005,960,726 44,20% $7,445,749,580 45.02% 

Source: Jefferson County Appraisal District 

(b) Amou nts shown for th ese taxpayers do not include assessed values attributable to certain subsid iaries and affiliates which 
are not grouped on the tax roll wi th the taxpayers shown. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

Septcmbcr 30 
2007 
2008 
2009 - 2010 .j:> 

'-' 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Collected within the Fiscal 
Year of the Levy 

Total Tax Collections in 
Levy for Percentage Subsequent 

Fiscal Year Amount of Lcvy Years 

$ 64,515,193 $ 63,544,312 98.50% $ 767,978 
70,666,067 69,387,969 98.19% 1,038,369 
74,714,190 73,704,158 98.65% 743,050 
74,402,173 73,446,110 98 .72% 648,334 
79,148,351 77,966,579 98.51% 819,312 
83,540,799 82,381,734 98.61 % 746,121 
89,395,773 88,220,195 98.68% 687,699 
92,613,963 91,329,673 98.6 1% 682,436 
90,499,797 89,246,776 98 .62% 476,355 
89,050,364 87,788,574 98.58% 

TABLE 9 

Total Collections to Date 

Pe,·centage 

Amount of Levy 

$ 64,312,290 99.69% 
70,426,338 99.66% 
74,447,208 99.64% 
74,094,444 99.59% 
78 ,785,891 99.54% 
83, 127,855 99.51% 
88,907,894 99.45% 
92,012,109 99.35% 
89,723,131 99.14% 
87,788,574 98.58% 
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General 
Fiscal Obligation 
Veal' Bonds 

2007 $75,385,127 
2008 71,912,777 
2009 68,290,426 
2010 64,553,045 
2011 60,664,579 
2012 56,704,005 
2013 52,482,467 
2014 49,28 1,192 
2015 44,444,323 
2016 39,437,454 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Notes Capital Total P.-imary 
Payable Leases Government 

$2,332,066 $52,224 $77,769,41 7 
2,005,529 73,918,306 
1,669,086 69,959,512 
1,322,435 1,144,977 67,020,457 

965,267 585,075 62,214,921 
597,263 57,301,268 
218,094 52,700,561 

49,281,192 
1,707,363 46, lSI ,686 
1,383,968 40,821,422 

Percentage of 
Personal 

Income (a) 

1.09% 
0.96% 
0.85% 
0.74% 
0.66% 
0.59% 
0.55% 
0.49% 
0.46% 
0.38% 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

TABL~10 

PCI' Capita (a) 

$ 3 19 
$ 305 
$ ~89 
$ 266 
$ 247 , 
$ 227 
$ 209 
$ P 95 
$ 1183 
$ 161 

(a) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for personal income and population data. 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Percentage of 
Estimated 

Less: Actual 
General Amounts Taxable 

Obligation Available in Value (a) 
Bonds Debt Fund Total of Property 

$75,385, 127 $31 8,212 $75,066,91 5 0.45% 
71 ,912,777 76,6 19 71,836, 158 0.38% 
68,290,426 176,339 68,114,087 0.32% 
64,553,045 330,833 64,222,212 0.30% 
60,664,579 354,241 60,310,338 0.27% 
56,704,005 716,106 55,987,899 0.24% 
52,482,467 1,071,014 51,411,453 0.20% 
49,281,192 1,010,241 48,270,951 0.1 9% 
44,444,323 1,096,05 1 43,348,272 0.17% 
39,437,454 602,071 38,835,383 0.16% 

TABLE 11 

Per Capita (b) 

$308 
297 
281 
255 
239 
221 
204 
191 
172 
153 

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

(a) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property in Table 6 for 
property value data. 

(b) See the Schedule of Demographic and Economics Statistics in Table 14 for population data. 



TABLE 12 

JEFFERSON COU NTY, TEX4.S 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

Governmeotal Unit 

JEFFERSON COUNTY DIRECT DEBT 
Total Direct Debt 

Estimalctl 
P e rcenl:1ge 
Applicable 

Debt Outstanding - (a) -

$40,821,412 100.0% 

OVERLAPPING DEBT REPAlD WITH PROPERTY TAXES: 
CITIES· 

BEAU1v10NT 

BEVIL OAKS 
GROVES 

NEDERLAND 
PORT ARTHUR 
PORT NECHES 
T AYLOR LANDING 

SCHOOL DlSTRJCTS: 

BEAUMONT 
HAMSHIRE FANNETT 
HARDIN JEFFERSON 
NEDERLAND 
PORT ARrnUR 
PORT NECHES 
SABWEPASS 

PORT DlSTRlCTS: 
BEAUMONT 
PORT ARTHlJR 
SAB1NE PASS 

DRAINAGE DISTRlCfS: 
DRAINAGE DISTRICTS #3 
DR/liNAGE D1STRlCTS #6 
DRAINAGE OISTRJCTS n 

NA VIGA TlON DISTRJCTS: 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

MUN ICIPAL UTlLlTY DfSTRJ CTS: 
NORTH WEST FOREST 

WATER DISTRJCTS: 
WATER DISlRJCT# IO 

EMERGENCY SERV IC E DISTRICTS: 
EMERGENCY SER VICE DISTRI CT #1 
EMERGENCY SER VICE DISTRICT #2 
EMERGENCY SERV ICE DISTRICT #3 

CONSER VATION Dl5TRJCTS: 
TRIN ITYBA Y 

IM PROVEMENT DlSnuCT: 
CARDfNAL MEADOWS 

Total Overlapping Debt 
TOTAL nmECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

210,970,000 
1,930,000 
2,195,000 

10,595,000 
55,280,000 
17,970,000 

369,005,000 
23,300,000 
36,152,5 17 
30,2 10,000 

328,870,000 
94.2 &4,998 
26,540,5 16 

2,860,000 
27,035,000 

1,632,506 

18,405,000 

5,250,000 

Sources : Debt ou tstanding dala was provided by each of the taxing ent ities. 

100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 

100.0% 
100.0% 
52.8% 

100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 
JOO.O% 

100.0% 
100.0% 
100.0% 

100 .0% 
100 .0% 
100.0% 

]00.0% 

]00.0% 

100.0% 

100'()"1c 

100.0% 
]00.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

Estimat ed Sha re of 

ch'erlapping Debt 

$40,821,422 
$40,821,422 

210,970,000 
1,930,000 
2, 195,000 

10,595,000 
55,280,000 
17,970,000 

369,005.000 
23,300,000 
19,088,529 
30,2 10,000 

328,870,000 
94,284,998 
26,540,516 

2,860,000 
27,035,000 

1,632,506 

18,405,000 

5,150,000 

$1,245,421,549 
$1,286,242,971 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in pan, with Ihe geographic bo undaries of the 
CO Ufl()'. This schedule estimates the ponion of the outs tanding debt of those overl apping governments that is 
bome by the res idents and bus inesses of Jefferson Counry. This process recognizes that, when considering 
the Counry's abili ry (0 issue and repay long·leon debl, the enlire debt burden borne by the residents and 
businesses should be taken into aecount. However, Ihis does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and 
therefore responsible for repaying the de bt, of each overlapping goverrunenl. 

(a) The percenlage of overlapping deb! applicable is eSlimaled using taxable assessed property va lues. Applicable 
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of taxing entity lhat is within the County's boundaries 
and dividing il by the laxing entity's total taxable assessed value. 
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Deblli mil 

TOla l nel debt app lh.:able 10 limi! 

Lega.l debt margin 

Totol ne[ debt a.PI)licable 10 Ihe 

limit as a percenlage or (lebt 
limit 

2006 

.$ 3502,210 

79,203 

$ 3,423,007 

2.26% 

2007 2008 

S 3,9<1 8,502 $ 4,534,760 

75J2Z.... 71.908 

$ 3,873,325 $ 4,462,85 2 

1.90% 1.59% 

JEI' FF,RSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

LEGAL l)~nT MARGIN INrORI\,IATION 
LAST T EN !'ISCAL YEAUS 

(am ounts cxpressctl in thollsand s) 

risc:!1 Year 
2009 2010 2011 

$ 5.060,<172 $ 4,825,20 1 .$ 5.042 ,794 

68 ,1<1 9 (i 4 ,234 60," 6 

.$ 4,9n,323 $ <1 ,760.967 .1i 4 ,982,37;.! 

1.35% 1.33% 1.20% 

T ARLE 13 

2012 2013 201<1 ~ 2016 

$ 5,124 ,994 $ 5,5 80,038 $ 6,458 .0 93 $6, 195,850 $ 6, 340,696 

60,4 16 48,404 44,070 39,564 35,468 

S 5,064,578 $ 5,53 1,634 ,Ii; 6,'-114,0 23 $: 6, 156,286 .,; 6,305,228 

1.1 8% 0,87% 0.68% 0. 6'-1% 0.56% 

u ga[ Debt Margin Calculation for ri~eal Year 2016 

Assessed Value o f Rc.11 Propert y 

Debllimil (25% o r assesscJ va lue o f real propcrly) 

Debt applicable to limit; 
General ob ligation bonds 
Le..'is : Amount set as ide lo r rep.1}'lllcnl 

of general obligalion debt 

Totolnct debt appliCtlblc 10 limit 
Lega I debt margin 

Nole: Und.:: r Article 1[1, Sect ion 52 of the Slate Conslilut ion . JeficrSOIl County's out stand ing genera) obJigalion debt ~ 11 Q( lld not exceed 25% o r 

assessed valua tion o r rea l property. By law, the genera l obligot ion debt subject to the limilat ion may be olTset by mnounts sel as ide ror re paying 
genera l obligalio n bonds. 

$ 25.362.782 

6,340,696 

36,070 

602 
.$ 35,468 
$ 6,305 .228 
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Fiscal 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Personal 

Income 

(amounts Pcr Capita School 
expresscd in Personal Median Enrollment 

Year Population (a) thousands) Incomc (b) ~e(a) (a) 

2007 243,914 $ 7,152,534 $ 29,324 36.4 59,776 
2008 241,975 $ 7,684,158 $ 31,756 36.7 62,290 
2009 242,142 $ 8,183,189 $ 33,795 36.5 61,721 

2010 252,273 $ 9,099,739 $ 36,071 35.6 62,433 
2011 252,273 $ 9,369,167 $ 37,139 36.0 63,371 
2012 252,802 $ 9,786,471 $ 38,712 35.9 63,371 
2013 251,813 $ 9,658,791 $ 38,357 36.0 63,433 
2014 252,358 $ 10,083,721 $ 39,958 35.9 63,350 
20 15 252,235 $ 9,971,354 $ 39,532 35.9 61,768 
2016 254,308 $ 10,809,362 $ 42,505 35.9 60,809 

Data sources 

(a) Bureau of Census 

(b) Texas Workforce Commission 

TABLE 14 

Unemployment 
Rate (b) 

5.7% 

7.3% 
10.7% 

10.6% 

11.7% 
10.2% 
10.1% 

7.8% 
6.6% 
7.4% 



TABLE 15 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND 1\11\'E YEARS AGO 

2016 2007 

Percen tage of Percen tage of 
Total County Total Count)' 

Employer Employees Ra nk Employment E mployees Rank Employment 

State o f Texas 4,)08 4.24% 41485 1 4.23% 
Beaumont ISD 2,700 2 2.66% 2,975 2 2.81 % 
ExxonMobil Oil Corporation 2,000 ) 1.97% 2,215 4 2.09% 
Chris ms Health Southeast Texas [,750 4 1.72% 2, 100 5 1.98% 
Memorial Hermann Baptis t Hospi tal [ ,500 5 1.48% 1,5 97 6 1.51% 
Motiva Enterprises [ ,500 6 1.48% 
Port Arthur ISD [,250 7 1.23% 1,) 00 8 
City o rBeaumonl 1,24) g 1.22% 1,235 10 1.16% 
Jefferson County 1,2 1) 9 1.19% 1,407 7 
Valero g[ ) [0 0.80% 
Conex International 2,475 3 2 .33% 
Wal-Mart Assoeiates [,245 9 1.17% 

TOTAL [8 ,277 17.99% 2 [,034 )7.28% 

Source: Employment numbers provided by each entity 
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TABLE 16 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT COUNTY EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of September 30 

Function 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 ------ ----
General Government 176 171 180 170 166 164 166 165 165 168 
Judicial & Law Enforcement 

Deputies 122 124 131 134 131 134 138 138 143 14 6 
Detention Officers 239 22 1 240 242 239 238 241 238 23 7 237 
Others 435 436 441 444 440 442 436 443 440 439 

Education & Recreation 17 18 18 20 14 15 15 15 15 15 
Health & Welfare 55 56 63 63 59 60 60 60 60 61 
Maintenance - Equipment & 

Structures 
Road & Bridges 71 70 69 68 67 66 64 64 60 64 
Engineering 9 10 10 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 
Maintenance 30 27 30 29 28 28 30 27 28 28 

Jack Brooks Regional Airport 23 26 23 25 25 23 24 25 24 24 
Ford Park 101 79 22 ?' - > 19 20 23 21 20 21 ---- -- ----

TOTAL 1,278 1,238 1,227 1,227 1,198 1,200 1,207 1,206 1,202 1,213 

Sources : County and Ford Park payroll records 
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TAOLEI7 
JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

Ol'ERATING I NDICATORS DY FUNCT ION 
LAST T EN FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL YEAR 
FUnClion 2007 2008 20119 20 10 20 11 20 12 2013 201' 20 15 2016 

Judicial & Law Enrorcemcn! 
Couns 

Number of Ind igen t Cases He ard 2,839 2,984 2,945 2,945 2,490 2,4 13 3,249 3,392 3,727 3,969 
Number of Justice of Peace Cases 51,416 50,997 43,326 43,488 44,642 48,363 43,205 4' ,359 33,717 28,1l0 

Sheriff 
Num ber of Arrests 6,423 6,543 6.404 6,573 6,099 6,023 5,898 5,5 17 5,730 5,))7 
Number ofCita tiollS 1,242 2,300 1,1 12 1,043 1,241 1,08 1 915 1,558 1,6 15 1,861 

Jail 

Average Dai ly Popu lation of Inmates 1,171 986 899 910 926 815 767 855 830 8 19 
Constables 

Number ofPapcrs Served 19,874 15 ,847 15,954 16,967 16,860 15,344 15,472 17,348 18,276 16,6 18 
EducaHon & Recreation 

Library 
Number of Palron Visils 5,995 6,300 4,002 1,536 n/,A nfa " n/tJ "- n/a" n/a" n/a 1\ 

Health & Welfare 

~ 
Hea!! h & Welfare 

'" Number of ral ienlS Seen in Cl inic 8, 111 8,310 9,375 11,53 1 11 ,968 11 ,644 7,433 11 ,314 10,508 10,' 01 

'" Mosqui!o Conlrol 
Number of Acreage Sprayed 1,386,752 1,393,743 2,175,872 1,070,464 818,972 1,328,128 700,672 1,048,256 563,520 839,680 

Maintenance - Equipmenl & SIn.IClUrcs 
Road & Bridge 

Road Miles MainLa ined 368 370 )70 370 370 369 370 370 369 369 
Ai rport 

Nu mber of A ireral\ Operations 55,350 32,273 27,89 1 26,332 22,602 22,5 15 20,35 1 19,109 15,' 62 14 ,842 
Number o f Enplaned 25,650 22, 126 22 , 174 17,957 18,098 5,666 24,669 36,605 34,879 27 ,245 

Number o fOep!aned 26, 11 7 22,387 21 ,588 17,997 18,207 5,328 24,35 1 35,340 34,5 17 28 ,098 
Health Insurance Risk Pool 

Number of Participants in Plan 1,429 1,490 1,541 1,568 1,550 1,58 1 1,612 1,807 1,652 1,667 
E:ntel1ainment Complex 

Number ofEvcnts 160 22 1 183 198 188 185 176 17' 170 183 

Total Attendance 6 17,246 280,0 12 658,337 647,207 629, 123 7 12,688 668 ,7 18 650,089 303,562 ))6,555 

Sources: Various county departments 
Note: Indicators are not available for Ihe general govcrnment rUllctions . 

.... Library was closed 12/3 II J a 



TAIlLE 18 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, TEXAS 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS IlY FUN CTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL YEAn 
Function 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Judicia l & Law Enforcement 

Sheriff 

Patrol Units 109 11 9 11 6 120 122 122 126 12 1 123 14 1 
A vialion Units 2 3 3 3 3 4 4 3 3 3 
Marine Units 3 4 9 9 II 11 11 11 11 10 

Jail 
Oonns 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 
Oed Capacity 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 1,268 

Constab les 

Palrol Units 29 30 3 1 32 27 24 29 32 32 34 
Education & Recreation 

~ 
Library Ho ldings (ie books, aud io, video) 44,28 1 46,104 35,549 36,038 nfa r- nla' nla ' nln " n/a 1\ nfa" 

v, Uealih & Welfare 
0\ 

Mosquito Control 
Mosquito Spray Trucks 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 

Weed Control Trucks 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
A viation Units 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Maintenance · Eq uipment & Structures 
RO<ld (miles) 368 370 370 370 370 369 370 370 369 369 
Bridges 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 

Airport 
Runways (linear feel) 11,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11,820 11 ,820 11 ,820 11,820 11 ,820 11,820 11 ,820 
T-Jlangar & Open Span Ii angars (sq uare feel) 154,376 144,276 123,076 123,076 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470 150,470 
Office Space (square leet) 15,535 14,439 14,426 14,426 18,885 18,885 43,850 43,850 43 ,850 45,850 

EntertCli nmmt Complex 
Number of venues 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
Soflball Fields 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 
Exhibit Floor Space (sql.lare feet) 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 142,000 
Sealing CClpacity 23 ,500 23,5 00 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 23,500 2 3,500 23,500 23,500 

Sources: Various co unty deparlmen ts 

Note: Indicators arc not aVClilable for the gc neml governmen t fu nction. 

" Library was closed 12/31110. 






